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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Throughout this report, references to @erhpany,” "we,
context indicates otherwise.

us" and "our" refer to Crocs, laad its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the

Statements in this Form 10-K and in docutsi@rcorporated by reference herein (or otherwiseerby us or on our behalf) contain
"forward looking statements" within the meaningfué Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 599 addition, we may make other
written and oral communications from time to tirhattcontain such statements. Forward looking statésrinclude statements as to industry
trends and our future expectations and other nsatibet do not relate strictly to historical factslaare based on certain assumptions of our
management. These statements are often identifitloebuse of words such as "may,"” "will," "expechelieve," "anticipate,” "intend," "coulc
"estimate," "are likely" or "continue," and similexpressions or variations. These statements aedlm the beliefs and assumptions of our
management based on information currently availables. Such forward looking statements are sulbgeitks, uncertainties and other factors
that could cause actual results to differ materieibm future results expressed or implied by siocivard looking statements. Important fact
that could cause actual results to differ materibbm the forward looking statements include, withlimitation, the following risk factors:

. macroeconomic issues, including, but not limitecthe current global financial crisi

. our ability to effectively manage our future grovathdeclines in revenue;

. changing fashion trends;

. our ability to maintain and expand revenues anggymargin, net of the impact of sales of impaira@ntories
. our management and information systems infrastragtu

. our ability to repatriate cash held in foreign leas in a timely and cost-effective manner;

. our ability to maintain compliance with our debveaants

. our ability to maintain sufficient liquidity

. our ability to develop and sell new products;

. our ability to obtain and protect intellectual peoty rights;

. our reliance on thir-party manufacturing and logistics providers for pmeduction and distribution of produc
. our ability to anticipate difficulties or disruptie to our manufacturing operatiol

. our reliance on a limited source supply for certaw materials;

. inherent risks associated with the manufacturaribigion and sale of our products overseas;

. our ability to meet the estimates or expectatidnsublic market analysts and investc

. seasonal variations in our business;

. our ability to accurately anticipate and responddasonal or quarterly fluctuations in demand forproducts;
. our ability to maintain effective internal contrp

. our defense and the ultimate outcome of a pendass @ction lawsur

. our ability to attract, assimilate and retain adgqualent;
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. our ability to maintain and improve business relaships with third parties selling our products;
. the effect of competition in our industi

. our ability to successfully integrate and grow daceplibusinesses and brands; and

. the effect of potential adverse currency exchaagg fluctuations.

We caution the reader to carefully consalesuch factors, including those described imlIteA. "Risk Factors". Furthermore, such
forward looking statements speak only as of the d&this report. We undertake no obligation toatpdany forward looking statements to
reflect events or circumstances after the dateicH statements.

PART |
ITEM 1. Business
Overview

We are a designer, manufacturer, distributorldwide marketer and brand manager of footweamen, women, and children. We aspire
to bring comfort, fun and innovation to the worltégt. We strive to be the global leader in molttwear design and development. We
manufacture a product offering that provides ned exciting molded footwear products that featurg ftomfort and functionality. We also
design and sell a broad offering of footwear antkasories that utilize our proprietary closed oedin, called Croslite. Our Croslite material is
unigue in that it enables us to produce an inngeatightweight, non-marking, and odor-resistardeshCertain shoes made with the Croslite
material have been certified by U.S. Ergonomicsethuce peak pressure on the foot, reduce musatlgué while standing and walking and to
relieve the musculoskeletal system.

Since the initial introduction and poputaieéf our Beach and Cayman (soon to be renamedsCe@assic) designs, we have expanded our
Croslite products to include a variety of new s$yded products and have extended our product teemigh the acquisition of new brand
platforms such as Jibbitz, LLC ("Jibbitz") and Ogédinded, Inc. ("Ocean Minded"). We intend to cont branching out into other types of
footwear, bringing a unique and original perspectiy the consumer in styles that may be unexpdted Crocs. In part, we believe this will
help us to continue to build a stable year-rounsin®ss as we look to offer more winter-orientedestyAll of our products are designed to
allow the product to be defined by comfort, fundduanction.

Our marketing approach is also becomingii@antly more focused on a defined target conguifilee majority of our marketing efforts
surround specific product launches and employlg fotegrated approach utilizing a variety of mediglets. Our marketing efforts strive to
drive business to both our wholesale partners amnd@mpany-owned retail and internet stores, enguhiat our presentation and story are first
class and drive purchasing at the point of sale.

We currently sell our Crocs-branded produbtoughout the U.S. and in more than 100 cowntiMée sell our products through domestic
and international retailers and distributors arréatly to end-user consumers through our webst@es)panyeperated retail stores, outlets i
kiosks. The broad appeal of our footwear has altbusto market our products to a wide range ofitistion channels, including department
stores and traditional footwear retailers as wekhaariety of specialty and independent retaihdess.

Our History

We were organized as a limited liabilityrgqeany in 1999 and began marketing and distributigwear products in the U.S. under the
Crocs brand in 2002, shortly after completing orst footwear design produced by Foam Creatiorss,dnd Finproject N.A., Inc. (now known
as Crocs
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Canada Inc.) ("Crocs Canada"). The unique charatitey of the Croslite material, developed by Cr@esada, enabled us to offer consumers
an innovative shoe unlike any other footwear madleh available. Initially, we targeted our productsvater sports enthusiasts, but the cor
and functionality of our products appealed to aentiverse group of consumers who used our footfeear wide range of activities. To
capitalize on the broad appeal of our footwearewganded our sales infrastructure, strengthenedemior management team, and developed
relationships with a range of retailers in the UrSJune 2004, we acquired Crocs Canada, incluitsnganufacturing operations, product lines,
and rights to the trade secrets for the Crosliteena. Beginning in June 2004, we significantlyparded all aspects of our operations in order
to take advantage of what we believed was an &itteamarket opportunity. We converted to a Coloradgporation in January 2005 and
reincorporated in Delaware in June 2005. We coragleur initial public offering on February 8, 2006.

From 2002 until 2007, our business grewn&rdously, both organically and through acquisgitirat we believe leveraged our business
model.

In 2006, we added:

. Jibbitz, LLC which produces unique charms spedifjcsuited to fit into Crocs shoe

. Fury Hockey Inc., formerly 55 Hockey Products I@€&ury"), which produced and distributed hockeycear and lacross
equipment manufactured with Croslite. In June 2008 Company decided to liquidate Fury after effoot sell the entity were
unsuccessful; and

. EXO lItalia ("EXO"), which designs and develops EY&thylene Vinyl Acetate) based finished productimarily for the
footwear industry.

In 2007, we added:

. Ocean Minded, Inc. which produces sandals primé&oiithe beach, action and adventure mai

. Bite, LLC ("Bite"), a manufacturer of performandeogs and sports sandals sold worldwide in fivegmates, including, goli
adventure, healthy lifestyle, travel and water spand

. YOU by Crocs™, a women's fashion line that combic@sfort with fashionable style
In 2008, we added:
. Tagger International B.V. ("Tagger"), a manufactuwemessenger bag

As of December 31, 2009, we continued terafe and sell our products through the CrocsijtdibtBcean Minded, and YOU by Crocs
brands. Other brands, including Fury, Bite, andgesdhave been discontinued.

Recent Events

From our inception through the year endeddnber 31, 2007, we experienced rapid revenuetigrand had difficulty meeting demand
for our footwear products. During this period, vignificantly increased production capacity, warebmgpace and inventory in an effort to n
demand. This pattern changed in 2008. Our revermetly moderated in the three month period endeccM3d, 2008 and began to decline
through the balance of our 2008 fiscal year. Tigad continued into 2009. During this time, ouatoevenues declined from $847.4 million in
the year ended December 31, 2007 to $645.8 millioing the year ended December 31, 2009. Shouldltial economic conditions
deteriorate further, we may experience further mexeedeclines in the Americas, European and Asiatkete Should we fail to develop and
effectively merchandise new products that appettiéaconsumer, we may not be able to compete afédgiand may experience further
declines in revenues. See Item IA, "Risk Factdis, further discussion.
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During 2008 and 2009, we incurred significeharges related to restructuring and other iesvundertaken to right-size our business and
migrate away from non-brand processes. These chargleide fixed asset impairments, intangible asspairments, contract termination
charges, severance, facility consolidation andratblated expenses. See Item 7, "Management's &igouand Analysis of Financial Condit
and Results of Operations,” for further discussibour financial condition and outlook, includingszt impairments, restructuring activities
reductions in selling, general and administratiosts. While it is not currently our expectatiordtwso, we may continue to incur operating
losses during fiscal year 2010, particularly if oewenues fall short of current expectations. lekient that revenues and product demand fall
short of our current expectations, we will needlice further actions to reduce operating costs.

Product Overview

While the majority of our products consi§footwear, we also offer accessories and appenah consisted of 4.7% of our total revenue
during the year ended December 31, 2009. The Gootwear products are divided into four categor{@sre, Active, Casual and Style. Our
Core product range is composed of primarily moldextiucts that are derivatives of the original Beasti Cayman (soon to be renamed Crocs
Classic) designs. The Core product range is tadgeteard a wide range of distribution channels emalsumers. Our Active product range is
composed of footwear intended for healthy livitgntludes sport-inspired products that offer ae#nd uses like boating, walking, and hiking
as well as for recovery after workouts. The Activeducts are targeted primarily toward our wholesald consumer direct channels focusing
on customers interested in healthy lifestyle praslithe Casual product range offers sporty anceelaesign inspirations. Casual products
targeted towards a broad range of customers. THe @ioduct range is comprised of stylish prodwdtéch are intended to broaden the wea
occasion for Crocs lovers. These designs are &ttdgetvards department stores and fashion and #yeatail accounts.

Footwear

A key differentiating feature of our footareproducts is the Croslite material, which is weilly suited for comfort and functionality. We
have carefully formulated the Croslite materiab&oof a density that creates a comfortable shde wah-marking footwear that is extremely
lightweight. Croslite material conforms to the sbay the foot, often reducing pressure points enftfot to increase comfort. Croslite material
is a closed cell resin, which is water resistamt arntually odor free, and allows many of our foe&v products to be cleaned simply with water.
As we have expanded our Crocs brand product offevire have incorporated traditional materials saghextile fabric and leather into our
products. However, we continue to utilize the Ateshaterial for the foot bed, sole and other keeycdural components for the majority of
these new products.

Our footwear offering has grown signifidgrgince we first introduced our Crocs product lin€002 with a single model in six colors.
Some of the more notable developments are listemhbe

. We expanded our Crocs product line from 25 mode0i06 to over 230 models in 2009, including Odglamded, and YOU by
Crocs™ footwear models.

. We introduced a shoe donation program currentlyaijpey under our "Crocs Cares" program. We havetihmillions of
Crocs shoes to those in need in both the local#oithl communities we serve. Another goal of thedSrCares program is to
establish a comprehensive program focused on ltegam building and community impact by providimg employees the
opportunity to volunteer in their community.

. We extended licensing agreements with Disney, Nodeon, Marvel, DC Comics, Warner Bros., and setetiege anc
professional leagues, among others, for Crocs lecfmbtwear and Jibbitz shoe charms. We also intred a limited edition
line of footwear and Jibbitz charms
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featuring such popular characters as Cinderellel Avlickey Mouse, Sponge Bob Square Pants, Dardttplorer, Spiderman
and Batman.

. We expanded our Crocs Work product selection tlude 12 styles (including both molded and leatletear) for the
hospital, restaurant, hotel and hospitality markeffectively broadening sales in the commerciabf@ar industry. We received
industry certifications on slip-resistance and etestatic discharge on various work styles. Weehdiversified and expanded
our sales by engaging our three primary channdisiegale, retail and internet, including estabhighilistribution with leading
uniform supply companies to penetrate large holfpitzhains, laboratories and clean-rooms.

. We expanded our medi-needs footwear (Crocs Rx) to six styles, captubraader markets for general footcare and dial
needs. We achieved a landmark by becoming the nuomgeselling medical footwear in the U.S. withtdimution in 3,800+
podiatry offices and medical shoe stores. We aseived the 2008 "Company of the Year" award froenAmerican Podiatric
Medical Association and are the first shoe compargver receive this award for "greatest impacthenfield of podiatry." We
have expanded our Crocs Rx sales in Europe, Asidratia with low-cost, lightweight footwear appragie for people with
diabetes. We have also received Medicare approvaefmbursement on custom diabetic shoes.

. We expanded into new footwear categories, includimgStyle and Active categories, by designing f@wtwear using our -
house design team as well as recognized footwesggrdexperts. As part of this strategy, we acquiEX® in 2006, which
expanded the capabilities of ourhiouse design team. EXO is based in Padova, Italysaan Italian producer of EVA (Ethyle
Vinyl Acetate) based finished products, primariy the footwear industry.

. We acquired substantially all of the assets of @ddanded, a designer and manufacturer of high tydather and EV/
footwear, sandals and printed apparel. Headqudrter8an Clemente, California, Ocean Minded istimséd as an "ocean
lifestyle" brand with deep roots in the beach amd sulture. The brand is also gaining tractionhivitthe inland outdoor and
mainstream footwear channels. Ocean Minded utilieegcled materials throughout its entire prodiret bnd engages in
environmental manufacturing processes wheneveitgest addition, as the name implies, the braie$ an active role in
protecting the oceans, rivers and beaches throegbhoclean-ups, support of the Surfrider Foundatiwhthrough various other
charitable efforts.

Footwear sales made up 94.6%, 91.6%, arid/®0f total revenues for the years ended Dece®ibe2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Sales of our Beach and Cayman (soon to be renamuas Classic) models accounted for 16%, 25%, aftl 80total unit sales for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respsctide believe that the declining percentage ofariginal styles is reflective of our effol
to diversify our product offering and reduce retiaron original styles. We intend to continue toleate our product offerings to develop
product collections in assortments that can be haerdised effectively to the consumer through whadeeand consumer direct channels. As
such, we expect that our future product offeringsbe more focused by category and segmented byrodl. As a result, we expect our style
count to increase as we better service our chamitiidifferentiated products.

During the year ended December 31, 2008;cqimately 77% of our sales consisted of prodgetred towards adults compared to 23%
of sales for products geared towards children.

Accessories and Apparel

Accessories. In addition to our footwear products, we owa flibbitz brand, a unique accessory brand withrfidlenap-on charms
specifically suited for Crocs shoes. We acquiréthi in
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December 2006 and have expanded the product limeliade a wide variety of charms in varying shaped sizes, with designs such as
flowers, sports gear, seasonal and holiday desamsials, symbols, letters and rhinestones. Ciioeasing agreements also extend to Jibbitz,
which allows Jibbitz to create designs bearing fogod emblems of Disney, MLB and the Crocs coltediae, among others. Jibbitz designs
allow Crocs consumers to personalize their footweareatively express their individuality. As oé8ember 31, 2009, approximately 1,200
unique Jibbitz charm designs were available to woress for personalizing their Crocs footwear.

Apparel. In 2007, we expanded our clothing line and tnad a new clothing line for boys, girls and meatdieing Croslite material. In
2009, we continued to scale back our apparel ptaaftering, making it available in only in a fewglect markets on a limited basis.

Operating Segments

We have three reportable segments: Ameria®pe and Asia. All of the reportable segmesetive their revenue from the sale of
footwear, apparel and accessories. Within each segiwe sell our products through our wholesal@ilrand internet channels, which are
described more fully below.

We evaluate the performance of our segmeaged primarily on the results of the segmentauttallocating corporate expenses, or
indirect general, administrative and other expenBks corporate and other category includes (i)a@ddinded, (ii) Colorado Footwear CV &
(iii) corporate category, which maintains corporatsts such as stock-based compensation, reseatateselopment, brand marketing, legal
expenses, depreciation on global long-lived asseth as molds, tooling, IT systems, and other ¢globsts that are not allocated to the regions.
Segment profits or losses include adjustmentsitoiehte intercompany profit or losses on intercompsales. Net revenues as shown below
represent sales to external customers for eachesggm

Financial information regarding our condated revenues, profits and total assets is indlirdeur consolidated financial statements
beginning on page F-1. Information relating to operating segments is included in Note 17 of omsotidated financial statements.

Americas Segme

The Americas Segment consists of revendesapenses related to the sale of our productoithNand South America. Our Americas
wholesale channel consists of sales to a broaderahgporting goods and department stores as walbecialty retailers. We also sell our
products directly to the consumer through 182 camgpavned store locations, including company-opetr&iesks and retail stores in such
locations as New York, Boston and Maui in the UNsontreal, Quebec in Canada, as well as througwetastores. In 2009, our Americas
segment constituted 46.1% of our consolidated neggicompared to 50.1% in 2008 and 59.0% in 2002009, 83.9% of our Americas
revenues were generated in the U.S., the larglest waritory in the Americas region, compared &b86 in 2008 and 88.0% in 2007.

Asia Segmer

The Asia Segment consists of revenue apdreses related to the sale of our products thraughsia, Australia, New Zealand, the Mid
East and South Africa. Our Asia wholesale chanaestists of sales to a broad range of retailers|asino the wholesale channel we have
established in our Americas Segment. We also selpmducts directly to the consumer through 11®pany-owned store locations, including
Company-operated kiosks and retail stores in socitions as Beijing, Johannesburg and YokohamaaSityell as through our webstores. In
2009, our Asia segment constituted 36.8% of ousobdated revenues compared to 28.4% in 2008 ar@¥d.th 2007. In 2009, 41.7% of our
Asia revenues were generated in Japan, the lasglkest territory in the Asia region, compared tal%in 2008 and 48.6% in 2007. We
occasionally utilize sales agents and buying
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groups in our international locations to service wholesale customers. We established a direcs gaesence in most major international
markets, rather than relying on distributors, whighbelieve enables us to obtain better marginsaflod's us to better control our marketing
and distribution.

Europe Segmel

The Europe Segment consists of revenueeapenses related to the sale of our products thimutgeurope and Russia. Our Europe
wholesale channel consists of sales to a broaderaheetailers, similar to the wholesale channeharee established in our Americas Segment.
We also sell our products directly to the consuthesugh 16 company-owned store locations, includiogpany-operated kiosks and retalil
stores in such locations as London, England, Haglssermany, and Turku, Finland as well as througtweebstores. In 2009, our Europe
segment constituted 16.6% of our consolidated neegicompared to 20.9% in 2008 and 21.2% in 2007ot%asionally utilize sales agents
and buying groups in our international locationseovice our wholesale customers. We establistibbat sales presence in most major
international markets, rather than relying on distiors, which we believe enables us to obtaindbettargins and allows us to better control
marketing and distribution.

Sales and Distribution

In each of our segments, we sell our prtgiticough three channels: wholesale, retail atetriet. Financial information regarding our
revenues, profits and total assets is includediinconsolidated financial statements beginning agepF-1. Information relating to our
operating segments is included in Note 17 of omsobtidated financial statements.

Wholesale and Distributor Sales

In 2009, approximately 62.6% of our netamwes were derived from sales through our wholedalanel compared to 76.5% in 2008 and
90.8% in 2007. Our wholesale channel consistslefda distributors and third-party retailers irdihg national and regional retail chains,
department stores, sporting goods stores and $fye@tailers, such as Nordstrom, Dick's Sportingp@s, The Sports Authority, Dillard's, The
Forzani Group and Journeys. No single customeruatted for 10% or more of our revenues for the yemted December 31, 2009, 2008 or
2007. We believe we have established strong domastl international wholesale customer channels.

We use distributors in select markets whezdelieve such arrangements are preferable ¢otdiales. In markets where we use third-
party distributors, these distributors purchaselpots pursuant to a price list and are grantedigfint to resell the products in a defined
territory, usually a country or group of countri€gir typical distribution agreements have termeraf to four years, are generally terminabl
30 days' notice prior to the end of the term othorty days prior notice at any time, and requite distributors to meet a minimum sales
threshold. We will accept returns from wholesald distributor customers for defective products,lipigssues, and shipment errors on an
exception basis at the sole discretion of our mamegnt. We may also accept returns from our whatemadl distributor customers, on an
exception basis at the sole discretion of managgrfarthe purpose of stock re-balancing to ensiiae our products are merchandised in the
proper assortments. Additionally, at the sole @ison of management, we may provide markdown alfmea to key wholesale and distributor
customers to facilitate the "in-channel" markdoviipducts where we have experienced less thanipatid sell-through.

Our domestic accounts are primarily seidgough our internal sales force, which focuseselling the appropriate mix and quantity of
our products to our retail accounts. They ensurepoeducts are displayed effectively at retail kimas and educate our retailers about our
Crocs brand and the quality of our products.
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Our financial success in the wholesale oehis significantly related to the willingnessafr wholesale customers to continue to carry
products, the expansion to new wholesale custoaratghe success of such customers. Our wholessterars are directly impacted by
fluctuations in the broader economy, including teeent global economic downturn, which, during 2668 2009, reduced foot traffic in
shopping malls and lessened consumer demand fgroducts. We do not have long term contracts aith of our wholesale customers, and
sales to our wholesale customers are generallynwander-by-order basis and are subject to rightsaotellation and rescheduling by the
customer. If we cannot fill our customers' orders timely manner, the sales of our products amaeationships with those customers may
suffer, and this could have a material adverseceéfe our product sales and ability to grow ourdut line.

Retail Sale:

In recent quarters, our consumer-direassafforts have performed well. As a result, wecameently expanding our direct sales efforts to
consumers through our retail channel, which cossistompany-operated global retail locations, amdinternet channel, which consists of
company-operated webstores worldwide. We beliesedhect sales provide us direct access to ouswmers and an opportunity to showcase
our entire line of footwear and accessory offerjregal that this strategy will serve as an imporéart effective means to enhance our product
and brand awareness. We view our consumer-direectreis to be complementary to our wholesale chaisabf December 31, 2009, we
operated the following retail stores:

U.S Retail Stores

Crocs Kiosk 95
Crocs Retail Store 30
Crocs Outlet Store 50
Total 17&

International Retail Stores

Crocs Kiosk/Store in Stoi 75
Crocs Retail Store 54
Crocs Outlet Store 13
Total 14z

Kiosks. As of December 31, 2009, we operated 170 daoast international retail kiosks located in malisl other high foot traffic
areas. With bright and colorful displays, efficieise of retail space, and limited initial capitaléstment, we believe that kiosks are an effe
outlet for marketing our products. Kiosks enableaikighlight a wide range of our products, morfe&fvely interact with potential consumers
and enhance our brand awareness among both corssantelocal retailers. We plan to continue to ojgecartain kiosk sites in select, high
foot traffic locations; however, during 2010, weieipate closing certain kiosk locations where ltheations are either underperforming, are
posing problems for relationships with our wholesalistomers or where we do not view the kiosk adb#st representation of the brand. Our
plans to open and/or close kiosks are subjectjtstdent based on the impact of economic conditammsdemand for our products.

Retail Stores. As of December 31, 2009, we operated 84 domasti international retail stores. During 2009,o0pened retail stores in
a variety of locations, including, among othersaMi, Beijing, and Johannesburg. Company-operated stores are designed with colorful
displays and allow us to effectively market our reavd existing products and interact with custonmergder to enhance brand awareness. We
plan to continue to open additional Company-opera¢ail stores in the future where
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we foresee adequate demand and an ability to neetatirc internal hurdle rates. Our plans to openemetail stores are subject to adjustment
based on the impact of economic conditions and ddrfar our products.

Outlet Stores. As of December 31, 2009, we operated 63 domastl international outlet stores. During 2009,0pened outlet stores
a variety of locations, including, but not limitesl Myrtle Beach, Berlin and Rehoboth Beach. Thiégebstores help us move older products in
an orderly fashion. We also sell full priced protuia our outlet stores. We plan to open more Compgperated outlet stores in early 2010
where we foresee adequate demand and an abiliteéd certain internal hurdle rates. Our plans #napew outlet stores are subject to
adjustment based on the impact of economic comdité;md demand for our products.

Internet. We currently offer our products domesticallylanternationally through our 23 webstores worldsvi@ur internet presence
enables us to educate consumers about our progluttsrand. We continue to expand our web-basedatiagkefforts to continue to drive
consumer awareness regarding the availability of@lproduct range on our market-specific welsite

Raw Materials

Croslite material, our proprietary closedtcesin, is the primary raw material used in mafsbur footwear and some of our accessories.
Croslite material is soft and durable and allowsroaterial to be nomarking in addition to being extremely lightweigtife continue to inve:
in research and development in order to refinencaterials to enhance these properties and to tdrgetevelopment of new properties for
specific applications.

Croslite material is produced by compougdiastomer resins that we or one of our thirdypprocessors purchase from major chemical
manufacturers together with certain other produciiputs, such as color dyes. At this time, we hdeatified two suppliers that produce the
particular elastomer resins used in the Crosliteerie. We may, however, in the future identify andize materials produced by other
suppliers as an alternative to the elastomer r@sinsurrently use in the production of our proigtmaterial. All of the other raw materials
that we use to produce the Croslite material aadihg available for purchase from multiple suppdier

Since our inception, we have substantiallyeased the number of footwear products that ffez.dMany of our new products are
constructed using leather, textile fabrics or otheterials. We or our third-party manufacturersagbthese materials from a number of third-
party sources and we believe these materials aslyravailable. We transitioned the Croslite materompounding from our former
manufacturing facilities in Canada to other fa@btand thirdparty facilities during the second quarter of 208& also transitioned the Cros
material compounding from our former manufactufiagjlities in China to third-party facilities dugrthe fourth quarter of 2009. We
compound Croslite material internally in Mexicoliaing subcomponent materials produced by a thadypin the U.S. We also outsource the
compounding of Croslite material and continue techase a portion of our compounded raw material® fa third party in Europe in
accordance with the terms of a continuously rengwimpply agreement.

Manufacturing and Sourcing

Our strategy is to maintain a flexible, lwadly diversified, low-cost manufacturing base. Wave Company-operated production facilities
in Mexico and Italy and we also contract with thparty manufacturers located around the world. \Weebe that our in-house manufacturing
capabilities enable us to rapidly make changesdduyztion, providing us with the flexibility to qekly respond to orders for high demand
models and colors throughout the year, while outsng allows us to capitalize on the efficienciesl @ost benefits of using contract
manufacturing. We believe that this productiontstyg will enable us to continue to minimize ourgotion costs, increase overall
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operating efficiencies and shorten production aeketbpment times to better serve our retail custeme

The process for manufacturing our footweas developed over an eight year period of contirefenement to improve consistency,
softness, durability, and yield. In the years endedember 31, 2009 and 2008, we manufactured ajppataly 27% and 17%, respectively, of
our footwear products at our Company-operated naatufing facilities primarily in Mexico and Italfauring the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, we obtained the remaining 73% aftl 83spectively, of our footwear products from riplét third-party manufacturers in
China and Bosnia. Our largest third-party supphie€hina produced approximately 36% of our footwesit volume during the year ended
December 31, 2009. We do not have written supplgeagents with our primary third-party manufactuiar€hina. During 2008, we
consolidated our manufacturing capacities at to#iti@as we operate in Mexico and with our thirdrgamanufacturers and shut down our
manufacturing facilities in Canada and Brazil tig@lour production capacities and cost structurgettreased demand and declining revenues.

Distribution and Logistics

We continue to make enhancements to otnilwlision and logistics network that will streandiour supply chain, increasing our speed to
market. Over the past year, we have consolidatedistribution and logistics network to leveragsaerces and simplify our fulfillment
processes while driving down costs in our operati@uring the year ended December 31, 2009, wernad to adjust our strategy based u
projected economic conditions and demand for oodpets. We continued to consolidate our globatithistion centers and warehousing,
thereby decreasing our fixed costs.

During the year ended December 31, 200%tared our raw material and finished goods inveasan Company-operated warehouse and
distribution facilities located in Colorado, Califéga, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, Mexico, the Netherlandigstralia, Japan, China and South Africa.
We also utilized distribution centers which wer@@ted by third parties located in Brazil, FinlaBdibai, Hong Kong, Korea, Singapore, In
Taiwan and China. Throughout 2009, we engagedfantsfto close and consolidate our global wareh@umkdistribution facilities. As a result,
we vacated several of our facilities; however, fB&cember 31, 2009, we had not yet been ablelilease certain facilities, including our
facilities in Aurora, Colorado, Narita, Japan amuattBrdam, Netherlands. Once these facilities haenlsublet, we will have decreased our
global warehouse and distribution footprint by apmately 0.7 million square feet. We believe owrenagile cost structure gives us the
flexibility to meet our rapidly changing businessjuirements and positions us to support the culeget of revenue as well as anticipate fut
growth. As of December 31, 2009, our Company-operatarehouse and distribution facilities provideduith 1.5 million square feet and our
third-party operated distribution facilities proeid us with 0.2 million square feet. We also shigogion of our products directly to our
customers from our internal and third party manufeers. We are actively pursuing initiatives aina¢dhipping more of our product directly to
our customers, which, if successful, is expecteldweer our cost of sales in the future.

In December 2007, we entered into an ageeémith Manhattan Associates to provide warehenaragement systems within all of our
Companyeperated distribution centers. As we look towardasnlining our distribution operations and reduding global warehouse footpri
we will continue to implement the Manhattan softevar locations that support this strategic aim.

Intellectual Property and Trademarks

We rely on a combination of trademark, aagit, trade secret, trade dress, and patent gioteto establish, protect, and enforce our
intellectual property rights in our product desigimsand,
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materials, and research and development effottgyadh no such methods can afford complete protectWe own or license the material
trademarks used in connection with the marketiiggridution and sale of all of our products, botimeestically and internationally, where our
products are currently either sold or manufactu@uat. major trademarks include the Crocs logo argigtleand the Crocs word mark, both of
which are registered or pending registration inwh®., the European Union, Japan, Taiwan, ChinaGarthda among other places. We also
claim common law trademark rights or have pendiagemark applications for Jibbitz, Jibbitz Logo, ¥®y Crocs™, YOU by Crocs Logo,
Ocean Minded, Fury, Fury Logo, Mambaz, Tail LogdeEnd Bite Logo, as well as for our proprietargterial Croslite and the Croslite logo,
globally. We intend to continue to strategicallgister, both domestically and internationally, trelemarks and copyrights we utilize today
and those we develop in the future. We will alsottwe to aggressively police our trademarks amyights and pursue those who infringe,
both domestically and internationally as we deecessary.

In the U.S., our patents are generallyfiect for up to 20 years from the date of the fjliof the patent application. Our trademarks are
generally valid as long as they are in use and tkgistrations are properly maintained and hauebeen found to become generic. Trademarks
registered outside of the U.S. generally have attur of 10 years depending on the jurisdiction arelalso generally subject to an indefinite
number of renewals for a like period upon apprdprépplication. We believe our trademarks are atuoithe successful marketing and sale of
our products, and we intend to vigorously proseaui@ defend our intellectual property rights thriomgt the world.

We consider the formulation of the Crosfitaterial used to produce our products to be aalddutrade secret. Prior to our acquisition of
Crocs Canada in June 2004, Crocs Canada developddrtnula for the Croslite material, and we bediglvat it did not publish or otherwise
make the formula available to third parties withthg protection of confidentiality or similar agneents. Post acquisition, we continue to
protect the formula by using confidentiality agresns with our third-party processors and by reqgivur employees who have access to the
formula to execute confidentiality agreements doedoound by similar agreements concerning theeptioh of our confidential information.
Neither we nor Crocs Canada have attempted topsgtekt protection for the formula. We are not awdrany third party that he
independently developed the formula or that otheswias the right to use the formula in their préslother than Finproject, our third-party
supplier of Croslite in Italy and another third{gdicensee. Under the terms of our supply agreeméh Finproject, Finproject has certain
limited rights to use the Croslite material, whighre originally negotiated in connection with ourrghase of Crocs Canada from Finproject's
parent company. We believe the comfort and utditpur products depend on the properties achiesad the compounding of the Croslite
material and constitute a key competitive advanfages, and we intend to vigorously protect tihésle secret.

We also actively combat counterfeiting tigh monitoring of the global marketplace. We useesaployees, sales representatives,
distributors, and retailers to police against imjing products by encouraging them to notify uamyf suspect products and to assist law
enforcement agencies. Our sales representativedsareducated on our patents, pending patendgrnrarks and trade dress and assist in
preventing potentially infringing products from abting retail shelf space. The laws of certain doas do not protect intellectual property
rights to the same extent or in the same manndo &se laws of the U.S., and, therefore, we mayeldifficulty obtaining legal protection for
our intellectual property in certain jurisdictions.

Seasonality

Due to our significant sales growth front oxception through 2007 coupled with the contr@atiin the business due to the global
economic turmoil and lessening demand for our petslin 2008 and 2009, there is still uncertaintyhi@ degree to which sales of our footwear
products will be subject to
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seasonality. During 2008 and 2009, we observedrévainues generated during our first and fourthitquare less than revenues generated
during our second and third quarter, when the rontthemisphere is experiencing warmer weather. lleve this revenue trend is due to the
fact that the majority of our footwear styles dgri2008 and 2009 were more suited for warm weather accordingly, we expect this trend to
continue. However, we intend to continue branclunginto other types of footwear, including offegimore winter-oriented styles, and this
product expansion may help us mitigate some ofgésonality in the future. Our quarterly resufteperations may fluctuate significantly a
result of a variety of other factors, including tiraing of new model introductions or general eamimor consumer conditions. Accordingly,
results for any one quarter are not necessariligédtiste of results to be expected for any otherrtguar for any year.

Backlog

As of December 31, 2009, our backlog, witichsists of open orders as of December 31 2008 approximately $165.0 million,
compared to $113.3 million as of December 31, 200&. backlog increased year-over-year as a retulhat we believe to be strong
acceptance of our 2010 spring/summer styles (foclwdome customers have already placed ordersamaidprovement in the overall
economic conditions resulting in an easing of augtemer's tightened purchasing practices from aaga. Backlog may not be a reliable
measure of future sales for any succeeding penddage subject to cancellation by customers atiamg. In addition, our historical
cancellation experience may not be indicative tfifel cancellation rates. We expect the majoritthee orders to be fulfilled within the year.

Competition

The global casual footwear and apparelstrgus highly competitive. Although we believe tinee do not compete directly with any sin
company with respect to the entire spectrum ofpraducts, we believe portions of our business caenpith companies such as, but not
limited to, Nike Inc., Heelys Inc., Deckers Outd&wrp., Skechers USA Inc. and Wolverine World Wikhe, Our company-owned retail
locations also compete with footwear retailers sagvMacy's Inc., Nordstrom Inc., Dick's Sportingo@e Inc. and Collective Brands Inc.

The principal elements of competition irstindustry include brand awareness, product fonetity, design, quality, pricing, customer
service, marketing and distribution. We believe tha unique footwear designs, the Croslite maltesiar prices and our expanding product
offering and distribution network position us wigllthe marketplace. However, some companies icdlseal footwear and apparel industry
have greater financial resources, more comprehemsduct lines, broader market presence, longedgtg relationships with wholesalers,
longer operating histories, greater distributiopatalities, stronger brand recognition and greatarketing resources than we currently have.
Furthermore, the unique designs and resulting ssocokour footwear products have attracted newegptaiyn the market with imitation products
that are similar to ours; we face competition fritrese new market entrants.

Product Design and Development

Our primary goal in product design and depment is to create and introduce new and innegdtiotwear products that combine our
standards of comfort, functionality, and style, amthance the awareness of the Crocs brand. Wesdsgie the global leader in active casual
footwear products. Our footwear product line isigiesd by a combination of our internal design aadaiopment staff supported by outside
designers. By introducing outside sources to tiségtleprocess, we believe that we are able to captwariety of different design perspectives
on a cost-efficient basis and anticipate trendsengpiickly. To expand our internal design capabki#itiEXO has been involved in the design of
several of our new styles. We are committed toinairtg to dedicate significant resources to proalesign and development to sustain our
commitment to innovation, maintain or grow our euntrlevel of revenue and drive our global brand.
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We develop footwear models based on whatiemtify as opportunities in the marketplace. Oaaesign has been identified and demand
in the marketplace has been validated, the designthen translated into product specificationsinydevelopers and made into prototypes at
our facility in Italy or by one of our third-partpanufacturers in China. Our designers and devedoperk closely with each other to develop
product prototypes, test and refine products angige quality assurance throughout the manufagypimcess. Our design and development
process is highly collaborative, as members offibsign team frequently meet with our sales and etids staff, production and supply
managers and certain of our retail customers théurefine our products to meet the particulamdsesf our target market. We continually
strive to improve our development function so we being products to market quickly and reduce cegtde maintaining product quality. We
spent $7.7 million, $6.4 million and $5.3 milliom Company-sponsored research, design and developweiarnities for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we employed apprately 3,560 persons, compared to 3,700 as of idbee 31, 2008. This included 2,030
employees in the U.S. and Canada, 220 employddsxico, 890 employees in Asia, 30 employees in Bduherica, and 390 employees in
Europe. Globally, as of December 31, 2009, we h@f2persons employed in our consumer-direct cHanwhile our headcount in the
consumer-direct channels grew to accommodate ainéss, we reduced our non-consumer-direct heatibguapproximately 300 persons
since 2008, primarily due to consolidation of oampany-operated distribution centers and otheratizhs in staffing. As of December 31,
2009, none of our employees were represented ijoa.u

Public Filings and Corporate Information

Our corporate headquarters are locate828 &onarch Park Place, Niwot, Colorado 80503. iDt@arnet address is www.crocs.com. On
our website, we post the following filings as s@sreasonably practicable after they are electatipiiled with or furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission: our annual report on Adii, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our catmeports on Form 8-K and any
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyamsto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitied Brchange Act of 1934. All such filings
our website are available free of charge. Alsolab#e on our website are the charters of the cotesstof our board of directors, as well as our
corporate governance guidelines and code of etBiggies of any of these documents will be provihegrint to any stockholder who submit
request in writing to Integrated Corporate Relatjotb0 Post Road East, Westport, CT 06880.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

Our short and long-term success is sulbjegtany factors beyond our control. If any of thédwing risks, as well as any risks described
elsewhere in this Form 10-K, actually occur, ousibass, financial condition or results of operatioould suffer. Given these risks and
uncertainties, investors should not place unduane¢ on forward-looking statements as a prediatfoactual results.

Current economic conditions may adversely affechsamer spending and the overall general health afrgetail customers, which, in turn,
may adversely affect our financial condition, regsilof operations and cash resources.

Uncertainty about the current and futuebgl economic conditions may cause consumers daiters to defer purchases or cancel
purchase orders for our products in response tetigcredit, decreased cash availability and weadt@onsumer confidence. Our financial
success is sensitive to changes in general ecormmnditions, both globally and nationally. Recesaiy economic cycles, higher interest
borrowing rates, higher fuel and other energy castition, increases in commodity
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prices, higher levels of unemployment, higher comsudebt levels, higher tax rates and other chaimg@s laws or other economic factors 1
may affect consumer spending or buying habits coalttinue to adversely affect the demand for oodpcts. In addition, a number of our
third-party retailers may be impacted by the sigaiit decrease in available credit that has regtilten the current financial crisis. If credit
pressures or other financial difficulties resulirnsolvency for these third parties it could adedrsmpact our estimated reserves and financial
results. There can be no assurances that goverranéronsumer responses to the disruptions irirthadial markets will restore consumer
confidence.

We may be unable to successfully execute our loagrt growth strategy or maintain our current revendevels.

Although we exhibited significant growtlofn our inception through 2007, revenues have detlin recent years, from $847.4 million
the year ended December 31, 2007 to $721.6 miliiothe year ended December 31, 2008 to $645.8omifbr the year ended December 31,
2009. We may experience similar decreases in regimuthe future. Our ability to maintain our remerevels or to grow in the future depends
upon, among other things, the continued succesaroéfforts to maintain our brand image and briompelling and revenue-enhancing
footwear offerings to market and our ability to ard within our current distribution channels. Likegy in order to effectively execute against
our current turnaround strategy and our long-terowgh strategy, we will need to continue to straambur supply chain in an effort to
increase operating efficiencies and decrease deailsire to manage our operations in a cost efftareanner could result in greater difficulty in
completely filling customer orders, declines ingwot quality, difficulty with product acceptanceather production and distribution
difficulties, any of which could adversely impactrdusiness performance and operating results. &lenbt losses for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and we may continugto losses unless our expenses are reduced onddoraour product improves.

The popularity of our Crocs footwear may not grow eapidly as it has in the past and may decline,igthwould have a negative impact on
our sales and results of operations.

Our footwear sales, which represented agprately 94.6% of our revenues for the year endeddnber 31, 2009, contributed to our
significant growth through 2007. We expect thattfeear will constitute our principal product linerfihe foreseeable future. The footwear
industry is subject to rapidly changing consumenaeds, preferences and fashion trends, and owéaotmay not remain popular or we may
fail to develop additional footwear designs thgtegl to consumers. As our core products have ntatareertain markets, we have generally
experienced less demand for those core produdiswlise, we may experience a decline in demanddopmducts if counterfeit or imitation
products gain market share. If the popularity of fmotwear declines, if we are unable to succels@xXpand our footwear line or if new
designs do not generate wide customer appeal,weerp@rience, among other things:

. lower sales;

. loss of retail customers;

. excess inventorie:

. inventory markdowns and discounts provided to letsy

. deterioration of our brand image; and

. lower revenues and gross and operating margiresyesult of price reduction
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Further, we could experience a declineunrevenues and earnings from any or all of thevabGiven the limited history of our Crocs
brand, it is difficult to evaluate whether our puats will hold long-term consumer appeal.

If we do not accurately forecast consumer demane, mvay have excess inventory to liquidate or haveager difficulty filling our customers
orders, either of which could adversely affect dousiness.

The footwear industry is subject to cydlicariations, consolidation, contraction, and ahgs, as well as fashion trends, rapid changes in
consumer preferences, the effects of weather, gkeeonomic conditions, and other factors affectieghand. These factors make it difficult to
forecast consumer demand and, if we overestimatedd for our products, we may be forced to liquedatcess inventories at a discount to
customers, resulting in markdowns and lower grosggins. Conversely, if we underestimate consumeraghel, we could have inventory
shortages, which can result in lost potential salelys in shipments to customers, strains onalationships with customers and diminished
brand loyalty. Moreover, because our product Imkniited, we may be disproportionately affectedclyglical downturns in the footwear
industry, changes in consumer preferences, and fattrs affecting demand, which may make it ndiféicult for us to accurately forecast
our production needs, exacerbating these riskedrte in demand for our products, or any failuneooir part to satisfy increased demand for
our products, could adversely affect our busineskrasults of operations.

In 2009, we sold a significant amount of inventotlyat was being carried at low or no cost, which wescretive to our gross margin durin
the year. We may not be able to repeat this revermuegross margins, at this level in the future.

During the third quarter of 2008, consisteith our quarterly practice, we evaluated thaueadbf our inventory on hand. In light of the
negative economic conditions due to the global eota downturn, the forecasts prevailing at the tand the amount of inventory that we
were carrying after what has traditionally been stuongest selling season, we forecasted that Blidmpairs of shoes were impaired because
we estimated that the market value of these shasdegs than their cost. We wrote this inventonyrdto a level that we believed was
realizable. These write-downs depended in partstimates of our ability to sell or dispose of theduct through various channels, some of
which were undeveloped or were not previously ugedur Company. For example, our companyaed retail channel was relatively immal
and undeveloped at the time.

During the remainder of 2008 and in 2008,ssld substantially all of the impaired inventprimarily through our retail and internet
channels, which grew rapidly and exceeded our @afiens during the year. Much of this impaired intery sold at prices higher than what
had previously estimated. The gross profit amoelaited to the sales of these units was accretieartgross profit percentage during the year.
The net positive effect of these sales on our gposst during the year ended December 31, 2009%4&s8 million. In addition, because we
were executing against a plan to reduce inventerfegticularly impaired inventories—during 2009,esalvere higher during the year. During
the year ended December 31, 2009, we generated B8fion in revenue from sales of impaired invagtanits. The revenue and gross ma
generated by sales of the previously impaired wnitsthrough our plan to reduce inventory reflectiausual event and are not likely to be
repeated in future periods.

We believe that the macroeconomic conditithrat arose in 2008 and that played a signifioaletin the estimates used in 2008 to calc!
the net realizable value of our inventory were walisGoing forward, we are making greater use ofrmw-established internal outlet chann
(i.e. retail and internet) to address any impaire@ntory. Further, we believe our retail and intgrchannels will provide us with greater
visibility into and greater control of pricing omeess inventory. We believe that these changelikatg to lessen any future adjustments to
inventory and reduce the impact of these issuesuoigross margins.
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Our current management information systems may et sufficient for our business, and planned systenprovements may not be
successfully implemented on a timely basis or bffisient for our business

We are in the process of implementing namgiinformation systems designed to support seeeeals of our business, including
warehouse management, order management, retaftgfesale and internet point-of-sale as well asouss systems that provide interfaces
between these systems. These systems are intandssist in streamlining our operational processeiseliminating certain manual processes.
However, for certain business planning, finance arxbunting functions, we still rely on manual meses that are difficult to control and are
subject to human error. We may experience diffieslin transitioning to our new or upgraded systémguding loss of data and decreases in
productivity as our personnel become familiar wigw systems. In addition, our management informagistems will require modification
and refinement as our business needs change, whidti prolong difficulties we experience with syatetransitions, and we may not always
employ the most effective systems for our purpodese experience difficulties in implementing n@wvupgraded information systems or
experience significant system failures, or if we anable to successfully modify our managementinédion systems to respond to changes in
our business needs, our ability to properly runtmsiness could be adversely affected.

We have substantial cash requirements in the Ul®wever, a majority of our cash is generated andcheutside of the U.S. The risks
attendant to holding cash abroad could adverselfeaf our financial condition and results of operatns.

We have substantial cash requirementsartl$., but the majority of our cash is generatatiteeld abroad. We consider unremitted
earnings of subsidiaries operating outside of ttf. tb be indefinitely reinvested and it is not ourrent intent to change this position. Cash
held outside of the U.S. is primarily used for tmgoing operations of the business in the locationghich the cash is held. Most of the cash
held outside of the U.S. could be repatriated éoUlsS., but under current law, would be subjedi 6. federal and state income taxes, less
applicable foreign tax credits. In some countriepatriation of certain foreign balances is ret#ddy local laws and could have adverse tax
consequences if we were to move the cash to anotlueitry. Certain countries, including China, mayé monetary laws which may limit our
ability to utilize cash resources in those coustfa operations in other countries. These linotagi may affect our ability to fully utilize our
cash resources for needs in the U.S. or other deargnd may adversely affect our liquidity. Simepatriation of such cash is subject to
limitations and may be subject to significant téo@t we cannot be certain that we will be ablegjpatriate such cash on favorable terms or in a
timely manner. If we continue to incur operatingdes and require cash held in international acedonuse in our U.S. operations, a failure to
repatriate such cash in a timely and cost-effectiemner could adversely affect our business, filcondition, and results of operations.

Our asset-backed revolving credit facility contaifisancial covenants that require us to maintain itain financial metrics and ratios and
restrictive covenants that limit our flexibility. dreach of those covenants may cause us to be faideunder the facility, and our lenders
could foreclose on our assets.

The credit agreement for our asset-backedlving credit facility requires us to maintaicertain level of tangible net worth and a
minimum fixed€harge coverage ratio on a quarterly basis. A tdckvenue growth, a failure to meet our tangit#eworth level or an inabilit
to control costs could negatively impact our apitit meet these financial covenants and, if wedreaich covenants or any of the restrictive
covenants described below, the lenders could eidfase to lend funds to us or accelerate the rmapay of any outstanding borrowings under
the revolving credit facility. We might not haveffitient assets to repay such indebtedness upaiaald. If we are unable to repay the
indebtedness, the lenders could initiate a bankyuptoceeding against us or collection proceedmigjs respect to our assets, all of which
secure our indebtedness under the revolving cfadlitty.
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The credit agreement also contains certgtrictive covenants that limit, and in some ainstances prohibit, our ability to, among other
things:

. incur additional debt

. sell, lease or transfer our assets;

. pay dividends;

. make capital expenditures and investme

. guarantee debts or obligatiol

. create liens;

. enter into transactions with our affiliates; and

. enter into certain merger, consolidation or otl@rganizations transactior

These restrictions could limit our ability to obtduture financing, make acquisitions or neededtabpxpenditures, withstand the current or
future downturns in our business or the econongeimeral, conduct operations or otherwise take aegarof business opportunities that may
arise, any of which could place us at a competitisadvantage relative to our competitors that Hase debt and are not subject to such
restrictions.

We have had issues maintaining sufficient liquidity the past, and if we are unable to maintain sigient liquidity or obtain any additional
capital necessary to meet our requirements, ouribess may be adversely affected.

Although we obtained an asset-backed réwgleredit facility of up to $30 million during thgear ended December 31, 2009 and we had
approximately $180.6 million in working capital asDecember 31, 2009, we may need to seek additoamital if we incur operating losses
during fiscal year 2010, our revenues continueetdide or we are unable to reduce operating coessijting in a failure to meet the financial
covenants under our credit agreement or to othermigintain cash flows that will be sufficient toeheur ongoing operating needs. A default
under our revolving credit facility could restrimt terminate our access to our borrowing capadaityeu the facility and materially impair our
ability to meet our obligations as they come duey Aefault, or a failure to generate sufficientrc®m operations, may require us to seek
additional capital or modifications to our revolgioredit facility, which may not be available. Te@an be no assurance that any such capital
will be available to us on acceptable terms oflaeapecially due to current conditions and uraiety in the global credit markets. Our ability
to fund working capital needs, planned capital exi@res and scheduled debt payments depends datate operating performance and cash
flow, which, in turn, are subject to prevailing @omic conditions and to financial, business an@otactors, some of which are beyond our
control. Any of these risks and uncertainties cdwdgle a material adverse effect on our financialtfam, results of operations or cash flow.

We are dependent on sales of a small number of pid, and the absence of continued market demandffiese products would have a
significant adverse effect on our operating resul

We generated approximately 94.6% of oueneres for the year ended December 31, 2009 froes sélour footwear products, which
consisted of more than 230 models, including Odéented, Bite, YOU by Crocs™ and our Crocs footwesrdels. Sales of our Beach and
Cayman (soon to be renamed Crocs Classic) modetsiated for approximately 16% of our total footwaait sales in the year ended
December 31, 2009. A high portion of our Crocs feesr models are developed from the same base desigprese classic models and we
expect to continue to derive a substantial portibaur revenues from these models or related ptsdodhe foreseeable future. Because we
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dependent on a line of footwear models that habstautial similarities, factors such as changeimmsumer preferences and general market
conditions in the footwear industry may have a dipprtionately greater impact on us than on ourmetitors. In addition, other footwear
companies have introduced products that are sufzbasimilar to our footwear models, which maytee sales of our footwear products. In
the event that consumer preferences evolve away éur footwear models or from casual lifestyle feear in general, or if our retail
customers purchase similar products sold by oumpetitors, the resulting loss of sales, increasavientories and discounting of our products
are likely to be significant, which could have atem&l and adverse impact on our business and tipesa

Expanding our footwear product line may be diffidubnd expensive. If we are unable to successfultytinue such expansion, our bran
may be adversely affected and we may not be abledmtain or grow our current revenue levels or ovevenues may continue to decline.

Our ability to maintain or grow our curreatzenue levels is founded primarily on the corgithgales of our footwear, and we intend to
continue to refine the number of models offeredun footwear product line to broaden the appealusfproducts to consumers. To success
expand our footwear product line, we must anti@panhderstand, and react to the rapidly changistg$eof consumers and provide appealing
merchandise in a timely manner. New footwear mothelswe introduce may not be successful with coress or our brand may fall out of
favor with consumers. If we are unable to anti@paentify, or react appropriately to changesdnsumer preferences, our revenues may
decline further, our brand image may suffer, owgrafing performance may decline and we may nobheta execute upon our growth plans.

In producing new footwear models, we magoamter difficulties that we did not anticipate ithgrthe development stage. Our
development schedules for new products are difficupredict and are subject to change as a regahifting priorities in response to consui
preferences and competing products. For exampés we begin to design a new footwear model, ittakia six to nine months to progress to
full production because of the need to fabricate melds and to implement modified production toglemd revised manufacturing techniques.
If we are not able to efficiently manufacture neadigveloped products in quantities sufficient togap retail and wholesale distribution, we
may not be able to recover our investment in thesligment of new models and product lines and weldvoontinue to be subject to the risks
inherent in having a limited product line. Evenvié develop and manufacture new footwear produetsabnsumers find appealing, the
ultimate success of a new model may depend onrizing. We have a limited history of introducingm@roducts in certain target markets; as
such, we may set the prices of new models too tugthe market to bear or we may not provide therapriate level of marketing in order to
educate the market and potential consumers abaupraducts. Achieving market acceptance will reguis to exert substantial product
development and marketing efforts, which could ltdeua material increase in our selling, geneaall administrative expense, and there ce
no assurance that we will have the resources ragetssundertake such efforts effectively. Failtogain market acceptance for new products
that we introduce could impede our ability to maintor grow our current revenues, reduce our waditlversely affect the image of our bra
erode our competitive position, and result in ldagn harm to our business.

Failure to adequately protect our trademarks anchet intellectual property rights and counterfeitingf our brands could divert sales,
damage our brand image and adversely affect ouribess.

We utilize trademarks, trade names, copysigtirade secrets, issued and pending patentsradeldress and designs on nearly all of our
products and believe that having distinctive mahlet are readily identifiable is an important fadtocreating a market for our goods, in
identifying us, and in distinguishing our goodsnfrthe goods of others. We believe that our tradksygratents, and other
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intellectual property rights are important to ouautd, our success and our competitive position péfedically discover products that are
counterfeit reproductions of our products or thieowise infringe on our intellectual property righlf we are unsuccessful in challenging
another party's products on the basis of trademiadesign or utility patent infringement, or if \eee required to change our name or use a
different logo, continued sales of such competirggpcts by third parties could harm our brand athekesely impact our business, financial
condition, and results of operations by resultimghie shift of consumer preference away from oodpcts. We have taken actions to protect
our intellectual property rights, some of which described in Part I, lteml3gal ProceedingsThe actions we have taken or those we will
to establish and protect trademarks, patents, dret mtellectual property rights may not be adégua prevent imitation of our products by
others or to prevent others from seeking to bl@kssof our products as violations of proprietarypther rights.

In addition, the laws of certain foreigruotries may not protect intellectual property rggtd the same extent as do the laws of the U.S.
We have registered Crocs as a trademark for footimeaver 45 countries, including Aruba, Australiae European Union, Israel, Indonesia,
Jamaica, Japan, Mexico, Netherlands, Antilles, Mealand, Norway, Panama, Peru, Romania, Switzerleaid/an, the United Kingdom and
Vietnam. As of December 31, 2009, we have appbeegister Crocs and the Crocs logo as trademar&sgedr 30 other jurisdictions around
world, including the U.S., but such applicationsdaot been approved and are currently pendingdéition, in certain countries we have
extended the scope of our trademark registratiodsagplications for both the Crocs mark and logoaeer non-footwear products such as
sunglasses, goggles, knee pads, watches, luggatispme of our internet sales activities. We caasstire you that the actions we have taken
to establish and protect our trademarks and otttelléctual property rights outside the U.S. wél ddequate to prevent imitation of our
products by others or, if necessary, successfalflenge another party's counterfeit products odpcts that otherwise infringe on our
intellectual property rights on the basis of tradekor patent infringement. We may face significaxpenses and liability in connection with
the protection of our intellectual property rigbtstside the U.S., and if we are unable to succgsgftotect our rights or resolve intellectual
property conflicts with others, our business oafinial condition could be adversely affected.

We also rely on trade secrets, confidemti@rmation, and other unpatented proprietary rimfation related to, among other things, the
formulation of the Croslite material and productelepment, especially where we do not believe fgiestection is appropriate or obtainable.
Using third-party manufacturers and compoundingjifees may increase the risk of misappropriatidroor trade secrets, confidential
information and other unpatented proprietary infation. The agreements we use to try to protectraalectual property, confidential
information and other unpatented proprietary infation may not effectively protect such intellectpedperty and information and may not be
sufficient to prevent unauthorized use or disclesafrsuch trade secrets and information. A partyn®e of these agreements may breach the
agreement and we may not have adequate remediggdiotbreach. As a result, our trade secrets, aemiial information, and other unpatented
proprietary information may become known to othersluding our competitors. Furthermore, as witly trade secret, confidential informati
or other proprietary information, others, includiogr competitors, may independently develop oraliec such trade secrets and information,
which would render them less valuable to us.

Because we depend on th-party manufacturers located in China, we may fackallenges in maintaining a sufficient supply of gds to
meet sales demand, and we may experience interamgtin our supply chain. Any shortfall in the suppbf our products may decrease our
sales and have an adverse impact on our customé&tienships.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, théndly manufacturers produced approximately 73%uoffootwear products as measured by
number of units; one such manufacturer in Chinapced
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approximately 36% of our third-party footwear prothu We depend on these manufacturers' abilitinemte the production of goods ordered
and to maintain adequate manufacturing capacityd@/eot exert direct control over the third-partgmafacturers and as such, have
experienced at times, delays or inabilities toilulistomer demand and orders. While we are irginggour communication and relationships
with our third-party manufacturers, we cannot gaseea that we will be able to fully mitigate any @ in the production and shipment of our
products.

In addition, we do not have long-term sypgintracts with these third-party manufacturersiuding the third-party manufacturer that
produced the majority of our footwear productshia year ended December 31, 2009, and any of thgrmunikaterally terminate their
relationship with us at any time or seek to incegth® prices they charge us. As a result, we arassured of an uninterrupted supply of
products of an acceptable quality and price fromtbind-party manufacturers. We may not be ableffset any interruption or decrease in
supply of our products by increasing productiomim Company-operated manufacturing facilities dueapacity constraints, and we may not
be able to substitute suitable alternative thirdypmanufacturers in a timely manner or at accdptphices. Any disruption in the supply of
products from our third-party manufacturers, inahgdthose stemming from political risk, may harnr business and could result in a loss of
sales and an increase in production costs, whiaklidredversely affect our results of operations.

We manufacture a portion of our Crocs products, whirepresents a fixed cost for the company. Anyfidiflties or disruptions in our
manufacturing operations could adversely affect osgles and results of operations.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, wdymed approximately 27% of our footwear productsietCompany-operated manufacturing
facilities in North America and Italy. Our ownerghof these facilities adds fixed costs to our @batcture which are not as easily scalable as
variable costs. The manufacturing of our produeisfCroslite requires the use of a complex proaeslswe may experience difficulty in
producing footwear that meets our high quality colrdtandards. We will be required to absorb thetsof manufacturing and disposing of
products that do not meet our quality standardss@&ltosts are primarily incurred in connection whthinitial production of new products,
although we may also experience increases in tgicdsts when we initiate production of new produéfe may incur increased costs as a
result of the introduction of new manufacturing ipaoent, such as molds and injection molding machid@y increases in our manufacturing
costs could adversely impact our margins. Furtheemmur manufacturing capabilities are subject smynof the same risks and challenges
noted above with respect to our third-party mantufiees, including our ability to scale our prodocticapabilities to meet the needs of our
customers, and our manufacturing may be disrumtecebisons beyond our control, including work stamgs, fires, earthquakes, floods, or
other natural disasters. Any disruption to our nfacturing operations will hinder our ability to dedr products to our customers in a timely
manner, and could have a material and adverset effiecur business.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers for kmpduction materials, and any disruption in the sply of such materials could interrupt
product manufacturing and increase product cos

We depend on a limited number of sourceshfe primary materials used to make our footwdéée.source the elastomer resins that
constitute the primary raw materials used in conmgling Croslite, which we use to produce our footwmaducts, from two suppliers. We do
not have any formal purchase agreement with theigkecs of the elastomer resins, and we purchasetekastomer resins on a purchase order
basis. If the suppliers we rely on for elastomsime were to cease production of these materiasnay not be able to obtain suitable subst
materials in time to avoid interruption of our puation cycle, if at all. We may also have to paytenally higher prices in the future for the
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elastomer resins or any substitute materials wewisieh would increase our production costs anddcbave a materially adverse impact on
our margins and results of operations.

If we are unable to obtain suitable elagtoresins or if we are unable to procure sufficgumntities of the Croslite material, we may not
be able to meet our production requirements imal§f manner. Such failure could result in lost ptitd sales, delays in shipments to
customers, strained relationships with customerd,daminished brand loyalty.

Our products are subject to risks associated witlerseas sourcing, manufacturing, shipping and fineing.

Because third-party manufacturers manufacumajority of our products outside of our prpadisales market, our products must be
transported by third parties over large geograghitances. Delays in the shipment or delivery offmoducts due to the availability of
transportation, work stoppages, port strikes, Biftecture congestion, or other factors, and cosdsdelays associated with transitioning
between manufacturers, could adversely impactioan€ial performance. In addition, manufacturingagle or unexpected demand for our
products may require us to use faster, but morersipe, transportation methods such as aircrafchwtould adversely affect our profit
margins. The cost of fuel is a significant compdrieriransportation costs, so increases in theemfgetroleum products can adversely affect
our profit margins.

Sales of our products are likely to be subject &msonal variations, which could increase the voli#yi of the price of our common stocl

From our inception through 2007, we expes@s significant growth in our business. Beginrim@008, our business contracted due in
part to the global economic crisis. As a resulthefse growth patterns, there is still uncertairitthe degree to which sales of our footwear
products will be subject to seasonality. We expleat our business, similar to other vendors off@atr and related merchandise, will be sul
to seasonal variation. During the years ended DbeeRil, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the majority of oueneies were attributable to our footwear
styles that are more suitable for fair weather. Meve many vendors that market footwear prodsuited for warm weather normally
experience their highest sales activity duringgéeond and third quarters of the calendar yeaticparly when there is a revenue
concentration in countries in the northern hemisphé/hile we have introduced footwear models thatmaore suitable for cold weather, such
as the Mammaoth, Blitzen, Claire and Gretel styles expect that demand for our products, and thexefor sales, may continue to be subject
to seasonal variations and significantly impacteavieather conditions.

In addition, our quarterly results of opgemas may fluctuate significantly as a result ofaiety of other factors, including the timing of
new model introductions or general economic or aorey conditions. Accordingly, results for any onmder are not necessarily indicative of
results to be expected for any other quarter oafgryear, and revenues for any particular periag fluctuate. This could lead to results
outside of analyst and investor expectations whalid cause the volatility in our stock price tor@ase.

We may fail to meet analyst expectations, which kcbecause the price of our stock to decline.

Our common stock is traded publicly andaas securities analysts follow our financial rés@nd frequently issue reports on us. These
reports include information about our historicaldincial results as well as the analysts' estinadtear future performance. The analysts'
estimates are based upon their own opinions andftme different from our estimates or expectatioheur business. If our operating results
are below the estimates or expectations of pubticket analysts and investors, our stock price cdatldine.
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We will incur significant time and expense in docunting, testing and certifying our internal contradver financial reporting. Any
deficiencies in our financial reporting or internatontrols could adversely affect our business ahe price of our common stock.

Beginning with our Annual Report on FormK@or our fiscal year ended on December 31, 200& Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") rules require that our chief@xere officer and chief financial officer periodity certify the existence and effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reportinghi$ process generally requires significant docuatém of policies, procedures, and systems,
review of that documentation by our internal acamgnstaff and our outside auditors, and testinguwfinternal control over financial reporti
by our internal accounting staff and the independenditors. Continued documentation and testinguofinternal controls will involve
considerable time and expense, and may straiméennial resources and have an adverse impact ccosts.

During the ongoing course of our testing, may identify deficiencies which we may not beeatbl remediate in time to meet the annual
deadlines imposed by SEC rules for certificatiomaf internal control over financial reporting. A€onsequence, we may have to disclose in
periodic reports we file with the SEC any matewalknesses in our system of internal controls.

The existence of such material weaknessegdipreclude management from concluding that pt@rnal control over financial reporting
effective and would preclude our independent auslii]om issuing an unqualified opinion that ouemmal controls are effective. In addition,
disclosures of this type in our SEC reports coaldse investors to lose confidence in our finanepbrting and may negatively affect the price
of our common stock. Moreover, effective internahtrols are necessary to produce reliable finamedbrts and to prevent fraud. If we have
deficiencies in our internal control over finanaiaporting, such deficiencies may negatively impgagtbusiness, results of operations and
reputation.

Third parties may claim that we are infringing theintellectual property rights, and such claims mdpe costly to defend, may require us to
pay licensing fees, damages, or other amounts, aral/ prevent, or otherwise impose limitations onetimanufacture, distribution or sale ¢
our products.

From time to time, third parties may claimat we are infringing their intellectual properights, and we may be found to infringe those
intellectual property rights. While we do not begkethat any of our products infringe the valid llgetual property rights of third parties, we
may be unaware of the intellectual property rigiftethers that may cover some of our technologgroducts. If we are forced to defend
against such third-party claims, whether or notstlaims are resolved in our favor, we could enteuexpensive and time-consuming
litigation, which could divert our management amry personnel from business operations. If we anaddo be infringing on the intellectual
property rights of other companies, we may be mreguio pay damages or ongoing royalty paymentspomly with other unfavorable terms
we are found to be infringing on the intellectusdgperty rights of other companies, we may not be &bobtain license agreements on terms
acceptable to us, or at all, and this may preveritam manufacturing, marketing or selling cerainducts. Thus, such third-party claims may
significantly reduce the sales of our productsnaréase our cost of goods sold. Any such reductiorales or cost increases could be
significant, and could have a material and advaffeet on our business.

We have been named as a defendant in a securiti@sscaction lawsuit that may result in substant@bsts and could divert management's
attention.

Starting in November 2007, certain stoclleas filed several purported shareholder class@ein the U.S. District Court for the District
of Colorado alleging violations of Sections 10(hf&0(a) of the Exchange Act based on allegedmgaies made by us between July 27, 2007
and October 31, 2007.
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We and certain of our current and former officard directors have been named as defendants in agrtgpfiled by investors in the United
States District Court for the District of Coloradithe first complaint was filed in November 2007ye@l other complaints were filed shortly
thereafter. These actions were consolidated arSejstember 2008, the Court appointed a lead pifaémtd counsel. An amended consolidated
complaint was filed in December 2008. The amendaedptaint purports to state claims under Sectio},0(a), and 20A of the Exchange
Act on behalf of a class of all persons who puredasur stock between April 2, 2007 and April 1402@the "Class Period"). The amended
complaint alleges that, during the Class Periotermtants made false and misleading public statesvauut us and our business and prospects
and that, as a result, the market price of ourksteas artificially inflated. The amended complaifgo claims that certain current and former
officers and directors traded our stock on thedakmaterial non-public information. The amendethplaint seeks compensatory damages on
behalf of the alleged class in an unspecified amonterest, and an award of attorneys' fees astsadf litigation. The Company believe the
claims lack merit and intends to defend the actigorously. Motions to dismiss are currently pergdinith the Court. Due to the inherent
uncertainties of litigation and because the lifigrais at a preliminary stage, we cannot at timeetaccurately predict the ultimate outcome of
the matter, or of the amount or range of potetisd, if any. It is possible that this action cob&resolved adversely to us.

Risks associated with legal liability afeea difficult to assess or quantify, and theirst&hce and magnitude can remain unknown for
significant periods of time. While we maintain diter and officer insurance, the amount of insurazmeerage may not be sufficient to cover a
claim, and the continued availability of this inance cannot be assured. We may, in the futurdhebatget of additional proceedings, and the
present or future proceedings may result in sukisfasosts and divert management's attention asaurees that are needed to successfully run
our business.

Our business could suffer if our third-party manuturers violate labor laws or fail to conform to gerally accepted ethical standards.

We require our third-party manufacturersneet our standards for working conditions and othatters before we are willing to do
business with them. As a result, we may not alvedtain the lowest cost production. Moreover, wendbcontrol our third-party
manufacturers or their respective labor practitfeme of our third-party manufacturers violatesigeally accepted labor standards by, for
example, using forced or indentured labor or claltbr, failing to pay compensation in accordancivacal law, failing to operate its factori
in compliance with local safety regulations, oretiying from other labor practices generally acagpieethical, we likely would cease dealing
with that manufacturer, and we could suffer anringetion in our product supply. In addition, sucmanufacturer's actions could result in
negative publicity, damage to our reputation arvilue of our brand, and discourage retail custsraed consumers from buying our
products.

We have experienced significant management turnover

Effective March 18, 2009, John H. Duerdeaswappointed President and Chief Executive Offisea successor to our former President
and Chief Executive Officer, Ron Snyder. Mr. Snydamained a Director until June 30, 2009. Effecidezember 31, 2009, Erik Rebich
resigned as Vice President, General Counsel anetaeg. Effective January 1, 2010, Daniel P. Haaswppointed as our Executive Vice
President, Chief Legal and Administrative OfficadeSecretary. In addition, we have experiencegmifsgtant amount of turnover in our
extended leadership team as we seek to reorgamizaternal reporting structure. High turnover eh®r management can adversely impact
our stock price, our results of operations andalient relationships and may make recruiting fdufe management positions more difficult. In
some cases, we may be required to pay signifiaanuats of severance to terminated management eegsoyn addition, we must
successfully integrate any new management persoimaealve hire within our organization in order theeve our operating
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objectives, and changes in other key managemeittqggesmay temporarily affect our financial perfante and results of operations as new
management becomes familiar with our business. @liiegly, our future financial performance will deqkto a significant extent on our abil
to motivate and retain key management personnel.

If we are unable to recruit and retain key personnmeecessary to operate our business, our abilitystawcessfully manage our business a
develop and market our products may be harmed.

We are reliant on key personnel and oucef§, including our new Chief Executive Officeohih Duerden. To expand our business we
will need to attract, retain, and motivate highlylled design, development, management, accounsialgs, merchandising, marketing, and
customer service personnel. Competition for manheée types of personnel is intense. As a resaltnay be unable to successfully attract or
retain qualified personnel. Any of our officerseamployees can terminate their employment with wgttime, and we do not maintain key
person life insurance on any of our employees.ldsg of any key employee or our inability to attracretain other qualified employees could
harm our business and results of operations.

As a result of the difficult global macroeconomionditions and extremely challenging retail envirorents, we implemented restructurir
initiatives and workforce reductions, which requideus to incur restructuring charges. Our restructing initiatives may adversely affect the
morale and performance of our personnel and our kfyito hire new personnel. We may also need togadditional restructuring charges
in the future.

Our business has been adversely affectedhéijenging retail environments in many of the ke#s in which we operate due in large part
to the current global economic downturn. Accordingh 2008 and 2009, we took actions to reducecost structure to better align with our
lower sales volumes and revenues including, butimated to, the closure and consolidation of certsarehouse, manufacturing and
distribution space; headcount reductions; and tetion of certain sponsorship contracts that ngéommet our longeterm marketing strateg
These actions, among other things, resulted inlacteon to our global workforce and required uinttur restructuring charges. We recognized
restructuring charges of approximately $14.7 millamd $8.6 million in 2009 and 2008, respectiv&lyese restructuring plans, or any
restructuring plans undertaken in the future, majdyunintended consequences, such as attritioarttegur intended reduction in workforce
and reduced employee morale, which may cause oplogees who were not affected by the reduction ankforce to seek employment
elsewhere. We run the risk that our restructuriifigres may not sufficiently reduce costs to maintprofitability, or, in the alternative, our
restructuring efforts may result in too many redured, which could adversely affect our operationd may potentially stunt our growth.
Additional attrition or an inability to find adeqigareplacements for lost personnel could adveséget our ability to meet our operational or
financial goals. Although we have no current plando so, it is possible that we may need to imglenadditional restructuring in the future,
which may adversely affect our operating resuitgricial condition and cash flows.

Our financial success may be limited to the strelngif our relationships with our wholesale customesad to the success of such wholesale
customers.

Our financial success is significantly tetato the willingness of our wholesale customersantinue to carry our products, the expansion
to new wholesale customers, and to the successhfaistomers. We do not have long term contraittsamy of our wholesale customers, .
sales to our wholesale customers are generallyarder-by-order basis and are subject to rightsaatellation and rescheduling by the
customer. If we cannot fill our customers' ordera itimely manner, the sales of our products amdedationships with those customers may
suffer, and this could have a material adverseceffe our product sales and ability to grow ourduet line.
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Furthermore, many of our wholesale custensempete with each other and if they perceivewraare offering their competitors better
pricing and support, they may reduce purchasesiopducts. In addition, we compete directly withr wholesale customers by selling our
products to consumers via the internet and thrauwgtcompany-owned retail locations. If our wholesalstomers believe that our direct sales
to consumers divert sales from their stores, tlag meaken our relationships with such customerscande them to reduce purchases of our
products. Likewise, our consumer-direct channasnfgany-owned retail and internet) grew 42% in 2808 we plan to further grow these
channels in the future, which could exacerbateiisige.

The changes in the global economy could affect our customers' liquidity and capital reseg and their ability to meet their payment
obligations to us, which in turn would decreasértbeedit terms and our ability to collect our agats receivable, which may have a material
adverse impact on our cash flows and capital ressuiVe continue to monitor our accounts receivableg and have recorded appropriate
reserves as we deem appropriate.

We face significant competition, and if we are unalio compete effectively, sales of our productsyrdacline and our business could be
harmed.

The footwear industry is highly competitiv®ecent growth in the market for casual footwess éncouraged the entry of new competitors
into the marketplace and has increased compefition established companies. Some of our compett@offering products that are
substantially similar, in design and materialsptw Crocs-branded footwear. In addition, acces#fghore manufacturing is also making it
easier for new companies to enter the markets inhwlie compete.

Our competitors include most major athleticl footwear companies, branded apparel companidsietailers with their own private
labels. A number of our competitors:

. have significantly greater financial resources thay

. have more comprehensive product lines than ours;

. have broader market presence than we have in wdielstores, or have more Company-operated reta@sthan we do;
. have longe-standing relationships with wholesalers than

. have a longer operating history than ours;

. have greater distribution capabilities than us;

. have stronger brand recognition than us;

. spend substantially more than we do on productréidirey and sales

Our competitors' greater capabilities iesth areas may enable them to better withstanddiedownturns in the footwear industry,
compete more effectively on the basis of price prudiuction, and more quickly develop new produiétae fail to compete successfully in the
future, our sales and profits may decline, ourrftial condition may deteriorate, and the marketepdf our common stock is likely to fall.
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We may fail to successfully streamline our distrifian network or introduce our products in new marteabroad and this may cause our
results of operations to fall short of expectatians

As part of our strategy, we plan to stréaebur supply chain network and expand the sdlesioproducts into new locations
internationally. Successfully executing this stggtevill depend on many factors, including:

. the strength of the Crocs brand and competitivelitimms in new markets that we attempt to enter;

. our ability to attract and retain qualified distribrs or agents or to develop direct sales chan

. our ability to use and protect the Crocs brand,@mdother intellectual property, in these new retsland territories; and
. our ability to consolidate our network to leveragsources and simplify our fulfillment process.

If we are unable to successfully streaméinesupply chain and sell our Crocs-branded prtsdincnew markets abroad, our business may
fail to grow, our brand may suffer, and our resofteperations may be adversely impacted.

We conduct, and in the future expect to conducsignificant portion of our activities outside the 8., and, therefore, we are subject to the
risks of international commerce.

We use third-party manufacturers locatefibirign countries; we operate manufacturing féesilocated in North America and Italy; and
we sell our products to retailers outside of th8.Woreign manufacturing and sales activities abgest to numerous risks, including the
following:

. tariffs, anti-dumping fines, import and export aaté, and other non-tariff barriers such as quataslocal content rules;
. delays associated with the manufacture, transpamtand delivery of foreign-sourced products;

. increased transportation costs due to distanceggipeices, or other factor

. delays in the transportation and delivery of godds to increased security concel

. foreign currency fluctuations, for which we do rotrently engage in any material hedging transastio

. restrictions on the transfer of funds;

. changing economic condition

. restrictions, due to privacy laws, on the handhng transfer of consumer and other personal inftomg

. changes in governmental policies and regulations;

. political unrest, changes in law, terrorism, or waary of which can interrupt commerce;

. expropriation and nationalizatio

. difficulties in managing foreign operations effeelly and efficiently from the U.S.; and

. difficulties in understanding and complying wittcld laws, regulations, and customs in foreign glicsons.

Furthermore, our manufacturing activitysadé of the U.S., including the production of owmwdgucts by third-party manufacturers,
particularly in China, is subject to risks of paeirastructure,
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shortages of equipment, and labor unrest, in addit those risks noted above. Once our produetsnanufactured, we may also suffer delays
in distributing our products due to work stoppagskes, or lockouts at the ports where our préslacrive. Such labor disruptions could result
in product shortages and delays in distributingmoducts to retailers. These factors and theraila properly respond to them could make it
difficult to obtain adequate supplies of qualitpgucts when we need them, resulting in reduced sedd harm to our business.

In addition, during 2009, we generated $388illion, or 60.2%, of our revenues outside & thS., and in the year ended December 31,
2008, we generated approximately $400.3 millior6®56% of our revenues outside of the U.S. Ouitghid maintain the current level of
operations in our existing international marketsubject to risks associated with internationa¢salperations, as noted above, as well as the
difficulties associated with promoting productaimfamiliar cultures.

We may be adversely affected by currency excharage fluctuations.

The market has recently seen significatdtiliy in the value of the dollar against otherdign markets and currency. We purchase
products and supplies from third parties in U.Slads and receive payments from certain of ourrimaonal customers in foreign currencies.
The cost of these products and supplies sourced@a® and payments received from customers, maffdeted by changes in the value of
relevant currencies. Price increases caused bgrowyrrexchange rate fluctuations could make ouryotsdess competitive or have an adverse
effect on our profitability. Currency exchange ribetuations could also disrupt the business eftttird-party manufacturers that produce our
products by making their purchases of raw matenaise expensive and more difficult to finance. kgmecurrency fluctuations could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatanmd financial condition. For the year ended Ddxmm31, 2009, we experienced $0.7 million
net in foreign currency exchange rate gains. Likewforeign currency exchange rate fluctuationsthadffect of decreasing our U.S. dollar
basis revenue by $14.9 million during the year drdecember 31, 2009. We are exploring new oppdiasnio hedge our foreign currency
risk.

Acquisitions may be difficult to identify and sucssfully integrate into our business and could haether adverse consequenct

We have made, and may in the future matajiaitions of, or investments in, other compangesyided we may do so under our current
bank arrangements. We expect to consider otherrappties to acquire or make investments in othesitesses and products that could
enhance our manufacturing capabilities, compleroanturrent products or expand the breadth of cankats or customer base. The pursuit of
acquisitions may divert the attention of managenagitcause us to incur various expenses in idamgifynvestigating and pursuing suitable
acquisitions, whether or not they are consummatethe event we finance acquisitions by issuingitgcar convertible debt securities, our
stockholders may be diluted.

If we acquire additional businesses, we matybe able to integrate the acquired operatiansessfully with our business or effectively
manage the combined business following completfadheacquisition. We may not achieve the antia@gdaienefits from the acquired business
due to any of the following factors:

. unanticipated costs associated with the acquisition

. diversion of management's attention from our cargess

. harm to our existing business relationships wituafiacturers and customers as a result of the &tiqnis
. the potential loss of key employees; or
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. risks associated with entering new product linemarkets in which we have little or no prior expece.

If we are unable to integrate any new bessnsuccessfully, we could be required eithergpatie of the acquired operations, which, ar
other things, may result in restructuring or imp@nt charges, or to undertake changes to the achjoperations in an effort to integrate them
with our business. If we experience any of theidlitties noted above, our business and financiatlitmn could be materially and adversely
affected.

Our restated certificate of incorporation, amendedd restated bylaws and Delaware law contain pravis that could discourage a third-
party from acquiring us and consequently decreake tmarket value of an investment in our stoc

Our restated certificate of incorporatiamended and restated bylaws, and Delaware cordavateach contain provisions that could
delay, defer, or prevent a change in control ofrushanges in our management. Among other thihgsgt provisions:

. authorize us to issue preferred stock that carrdmted and issued by the board of directors withdot stockholder approve
with rights senior to those of common stock;

. do not permit cumulative voting in the electiondirectors, which would otherwise allow less thamaority of stockholders to
elect director candidates;

. prohibit stockholders from calling special meetindgstockholders

. prohibit stockholder action by written consent,réi®y requiring all stockholder actions to be takéa meeting of our
stockholders;

. allow the authorized number of directors to be gieahonly by resolution of the board of directc

. establish advance notice requirements for subrgitiominations for election to the board of direstand for proposing matters

that can be acted upon by stockholders at a meetindy

. classify our board of directors so that only sorhew directors are elected each ye¢

These provisions could discourage proxytests and make it more difficult for our stockhakl® elect directors and take other corporate
actions, which may prevent a change of controlhanges in our management that a stockholder magigtider favorable. In addition,
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation hay discourage, delay, or prevent a change irrabott us. Any delay or prevention of a
change of control or change in management thakstdders might otherwise consider to be favorablglat cause the market price of our
common stock to decline.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
ITEM 2. Properties

Our principal executive and administratbfices are located at 6328 Monarch Park Place oi®@olorado. We lease, rather than own, all
of our facilities. We consider our facilities to beitable for our needs.
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The general location, use and approximiageaf our principal properties are given below:

Approximate

Location Use Square Feet
Ontario, Californie Warehoust 399,00(
Rotterdam, the Netherlan Warehous:t 357,00(
Narita, Japal Warehoust 289,00(
Aurora, Coloradc Warehoust 264,00(
Shenzhen, Chin Warehous:t 231,00(
Leon, Mexica Manufacturing/office: 226,00(
Leon, Mexica Warehouse/office 214,00(
Niwot, Coloradc Corporate headquarters and regional off 126,00(
Shanghai, Chin Warehoust 86,00(
Tampere, Finland(1 Warehouse/office 60,00(
Melbourne, Australi Warehous:t 48,00(
Den Haag, the Netherlan Regional offices 40,00(
Padova, Italy EXO's Regional offices/manufacturing facil 28,00(
Singapore Regional offices 26,00(
Gordon's Bay, South Afric Warehouse/office 24,00(
Boulder, Coloradt Warehoust 16,00(
Shanghai, Chin Regional offices 13,00(
Shenzhen, Chin Manufacturing/office: 13,00(

(1) Our Facility in Tampere, Finland is partially sudded.

We also maintain small branch sales offinddong Kong, Taiwan, Korea, Australia, Puertodiiand India. We enter into short-term
leases for kiosks domestically and internationafith fixed monthly rents subject to certain covetsamith contingent rents based on
percentage of revenues. We also lease retail $pa86 domestic and 54 international retail staaed 50 domestic and 13 international outlet
stores. Our short term and long term leases empivarious dates throughout the year 2026. Wetsiitl leases on facilities in Aurora,

Colorado and Rotterdam, Netherlands, however rasudt of our restructuring efforts during 2009, ssare shut down all or a portion of these
facilities and the appropriate lease terminatioarghs are reflected in our consolidated finandaksnents. We intend to sublet warehouse and
distribution space that has been vacated includindacilities in Aurora, Colorado, Narita, Japardan Rotterdam, Netherlands.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

On March 31, 2006, the Company filed a claimp with the ITC against Acme Ex-Im, Inc., AudtaaUnlimited, Inc., Cheng's
Enterprises, Inc., Collective Licensing Internaigi.LC, D. Myers & Sons, Inc., Double Diamond Dilstition, Ltd., Effervescent, Inc., Gex-
Sports, Inc., Holey Soles Holdings, Ltd., Inter-BlacTrading Corporation, and Shaka Holdings, Iratleging patent and trade dress
infringement and seeking an exclusion order bantfiegmportation and sale of infringing products 8ugust 10, 2006, the Company filed a
motion to voluntarily remove its trade dress cldiom the investigation to focus on the patent clkiffthe Company's motion was granted by
Order No. 20 on August 24, 2006. The utility andige patents asserted in the complaint were iskugte Company on February 7, 2006 and
March 28, 2006 respectively, by the United Statete® and Trademark Office. The ITC has issued @ieterminations terminating Shaka
Holdings, Inc., Inter-Pacific Trading Corporatigkcme Ex-Im, Inc., D. Myers & Sons, Inc., Australimlimited, Inc. and Gen-X Sports, Inc.
from the ITC investigation No. 337-TA-567 on thestseof settlement and Cheng's Enterprises, Inthesuspension of accused activities. The
ITC Administrative Law Judge ("ALJ") issued an laltDetermination of non-infringement related tceaf the patents at issue. The
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Company filed a petition with the Commission toiesv this determination. The Commission granted@benpany's petition and on

February 15, 2007, after briefing by the partibs, Commission vacated the ALJ's determination ofinfringement with respect to the
remaining respondents and remanded it to the ALfufther proceedings consistent with the Commissiorder. In light of the Commission's
Order, the procedural schedule and hearing date keset pursuant to Order No. 38. A trial was lbelfibre the ALJ from September 7 to 14,
2007. The ALJ issued an Initial Determination orrihpl, 2008 with a finding of no violation, findininfringement of the utility patent by
certain accused products, but also finding thauthigy patent was invalid as obvious. The ALJafeund that the design patent was valid, but
not infringed by the accused products. The Comidey a Petition for Review of the Initial Deterngition which was due on April 24, 2008.
On June 18, 2008, the Commission issued a Notatdttivould review the ALJ's findings in the Initl2etermination with respect to the
determination of non-infringement of the desigrepatand the determination of invalidity of the itfilpatent. On July 25, 2008, the
Commission issued a Notice of its decision to teate the Investigation with a finding of no viotatias to either patent. Crocs filed a Petition
for Review of the decision with the United Statesu@ of Appeals for the Federal Circuit on Septenitis 2008, and filed its initial brief on
January 21, 2009. Briefing before the Federal @irgas completed in April 2009 and oral argumengenheard on July 10, 2009. On
October 4, 2009, the Company and Collective Liaagsinternational, LLC reached a settlement. CtilledLicensing, International, LLC
agreed to cease and desist infringing on the Coy'paatents and to pay the Company certain mondtamnages, which was recorded upon
receipt. On February 24, 2010, the Federal Cifowihd that the Commission erred in finding that ttiéty patent was obvious and reversed
the Commission's determination of non-infringemaithe design patent. The case has been remandkddthe Commission for a
determination of infringement of the utility patearid any appropriate remedies.

On April 3, 2006, the Company filed a coaipt in the U.S. District Court for the District Gbolorado alleging patent and trade dress
infringement and seeking injunctive relief agaiAsme EX-IM, Inc., Australia Unlimited, Inc., ChesdEnterprises, Inc., Collective Licensing
International, LLC, D. Myers & Sons, Inc., Doublébhond Distribution, Ltd., Effervescent, Inc., G¥rSports, Inc., Holey Soles
Holdings, Ltd, Inter-Pacific Trading Corporatiorh&ka Holdings, Inc., and Does 1-10 based uponinartdity and design patents that were
issued to the Company on February 7, 2006 and M28¢cR006 respectively, by the United States PatedtTrademark Office. Consent
judgments have been entered against Shaka Holdimgs)nterpacific Trading Corporation and Acme-Im, Inc. The Company entered into a
settlement with Australia Unlimited, and filed gsiation for dismissal of all claims and countaints on January 25, 2007. The Company has
entered into a settlement agreement with D. Myefo&s and obtained a consent judgment in connettt@ewith on May 23, 2007. This
action has been stayed pending resolution in tkeRToceeding, Investigation No. 337-TA-567, whislturrently on appeal to the U.S. Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. On June 11,2Q08e Company filed a Notice of Voluntary DismissiGen-X Sports, Inc. on the basis of
settlement and on November 4, 2009, the Compagg &lNotice of Voluntary Dismissal with prejudideGollective Licensing
International, LLC on the basis of settlement.

The Company and certain current and foroficers and directors have been named as defem@dtanbmplaints filed by investors in the
United States District Court for the District of lBado. The first complaint was filed in Novemb@&02Z; several other complaints were filed
shortly thereafter. These actions were consolidatet] in September 2008, the Court appointed ag&santiff and counsel. An amended
consolidated complaint was filed in December 200& amended complaint purports to state claimsmu8detion 10(b), 20(a), and 20A of the
Exchange Act on behalf of a class of all persone pirchased the Company's stock between April @7 20d April 14, 2008 (the "Class
Period"). The amended complaint alleges that, dutie Class Period, defendants made false andadislg public statements about the
Company and its business and prospects and thatessilt, the market price of the Company's steak artificially inflated. The amended
complaint also
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claims that certain current and former officers divdctors traded in the Company's stock on thésldsnaterial non-public information. The
amended complaint seeks compensatory damages ali bethe alleged class in an unspecified amointgrest, and an award of attorneys'
fees and costs of litigation. The Company belighesclaims lack merit and intends to defend th@aatigorously. Motions to dismiss are
currently pending with the Court. Due to the inlmnencertainties of litigation and because thgdition is at a preliminary stage, the Company
cannot at this time accurately predict the ultinmtecome of the matter.

On May 11, 2009, Crocs Europe B.V. receigéetter from Dr. Ing. H.c.F. Porsche AG ("Porsglataiming that the Company's use of the
"Cayman" shoe model designator infringes upon tBeimmunity Trademark Registration of the mark "CAXNI" in class 25. Porsche is
requesting that Crocs Europe B.V. immediately ceaskdesist use of the Cayman mark and pay Possatiefney's fees in conjunction with
the issuance of the notice letter. On July 30, 206@Company was served with notice of an injumctigainst Crocs Europe BV's use of the
Cayman mark in Germany. On December 16, 2009 tleiseint was entered into where Crocs Europe B.¥ duggieed to pay Porsche certain
damages and cease using the mark CAYMAN as ad@dignator. This matter is considered closed.

On December 8, 2009, Columbia Sportsweanjgzmy ("Columbia") filed an Amended Complaint adgihe Company as a defendant
case between Columbia and Brian P. O'Boyle andhlIRe. in the Multnomah County Circuit Court iretBtate of Oregon. Columbia has
asserted claims against the Company for misapaiopmi of trade secrets, aiding and abetting breddiduciary duty, intentional interference
with contract, injunctive relief, disgorgement aandlaccounting. The Amended Complaint also seekadasin an unspecified amount, return
of patent rights, reasonable attorney's fees asts @nd expenses against the Company. On Janua2@ 2% the Company filed an Answer to
the Amended Complaint. The Company denies Colusblaims in the Amended Complaint and intends fertethis action vigorously. Due
to the inherent uncertainties of litigation andédngse the litigation is at a preliminary stage,@oenpany cannot at this time accurately predict
the ultimate outcome of the matter.

Although the Company is subject to othégdition from time to time in the ordinary courdebaisiness, including employment, intellect
property and product liability claims, the Compasyot party to any other pending legal proceedthgsthe Company believes will have a
material adverse impact on its business.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Sectty Holders
Not Applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchasesf Equity Securities
Market Information

Our common stock, par value $0.001, igtisin the NASDAQ Global Select Market and tradegeuthe stock symbol CROX. The
following table sets forth, for each of the qudstgreriods indicated, the high and low sales priesur common stock as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Select Marke

Fiscal Year 2009 Three Months Ende: High Low

March 31, 200¢ $ 165 $ 1.0C
June 30, 200 $ 450 $ 1.1¢
September 30, 20C $ 748 $ 2.5t
December 31, 200 $ 82(C $ 4.3¢
Fiscal Year 2008 Three Months Ended High Low

March 31, 200¢ $ 39.2¢ $ 16.1¢4
June 30, 200 $ 20.9¢ $ 7.67
September 30, 20C $ 1058 $ 3.51
December 31, 200 $ 36¢ $ 0.7¢

On November 1, 2007, our board of direcagpgroved an authorization to repurchase up tanghien shares of our common stock. On
April 14, 2008, the board of directors approvedadditional authorization to repurchase an additifima million shares of our common stock.
As of December 31, 2009, 5,476,000 shares remainddr our share repurchase authorizations. Shpueateases under these authorizations
may be made in the open market or in privately tietesl transactions. The timing and actual numibehares repurchased will depend on a
variety of factors, including price, corporate ardulatory requirements and other market conditidhe repurchase authorizations do not |
an expiration date and do not oblige us to acquiseparticular amount of shares of our common stdbk repurchase authorizations may be
modified, suspended or discontinued at any time d\lenot repurchase any shares in the year endednitger 31, 2009 under our publicly
announced repurchase plan. We did, however, repsectertain shares as a tax payment for certaire&xecutive Officers (NEOSs), as
shown in the table below. These purchases werparbof a publicly announced repurchase plan.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number

of Shares Maximum Number
(or Units) (or Approximate
Purchased as Dollar Value) of
Total Average Part of Shares (or Units)
Number Price Publicly that May Yet Be
of Shares Paid per Announced Purchased Under
(or Units) Share Plans or the Plans or
Period Purchased (or Unit) Programs Programs
November 1, 20(—November 30, 200!
(a) 27,487 $ 5.71 — —
December 1, 20(—December 31, 20(
(a) 13,69: $ 5.7¢ — —
Total 41,17¢
€) On November 11, 2009 the Compensation Committeeoapg "withhold to cover" as a tax payment methmdNEOs

vesting in restricted stock awards. Four electiartich were outside of a publicly announced repasehplan, were made
in 2009, as summarized in the table above, in whitdtal of 41,179 shares were withheld upon m&stli stock vesting to
cover tax withholding obligations. These sharesay#aced in treasury, increasing the treasury vedealance to 565,1"
at December 31, 200

Performance Graph

The following performance graph comparesdhmulative total return of our common stock witat of the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the Dow Jones US Footwear Index from Februa@p86 through December 31, 2009. Our stock waisiilyilisted on NASDAQ on
February 8, 2006, the date our shares began te mallicly. Prior to that time, there was no pulbtiarket for our stock. The graph assumes an
investment of $100 on February 8, 2006 and reimvests of all dividends and other distributions &nrkflecting our stock prices post-stock
split.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return on Investment
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2/8/2006 12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009

|—¢—Crocs. Inc, —#—Nasdaq Composite Index —a&— Dow Jones US Footwear Index

For the Year Ended December 31

2/8/2006 2006 2007 2008 2009
Crocs, Inc. $ 100.0C $ 144.0C $ 2454 $ 827 $ 38.3:
Nasdaq Composite Ind¢ $ 100.0C $ 106.8¢ $ 117.3:t $ 69.77 $ 100.4(

Dow Jones US Footwear Ind $ 100.0C $ 114.9: $ 143.5¢ $ 102.8: $ 131.4¢
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The Dow Jones U.S. Footwear Index consis@rocs, Inc., NIKE, Inc., Deckers Outdoor Coffimberland Co. and Wolverine World
Wide, Inc. Because Crocs, Inc. is part of the Dowed U.S. Footwear Index, the price and returr@rots, Inc. stock have an effect on this
index. The Dow Jones U.S. Footwear Index includapanies in the major line of business in which@oenpany competes. This index does
not encompass all of our competitors nor all of praduct categories and lines of business.

The stock performance shown on the perfagearaph above is not necessarily indicative tfreuperformance. We do not make nor
endorse any predictions as to future stock perfanaa

Holders

The approximate number of stockholderseabrd of our common stock was 166 as of Januarg@®l0. Because many of the shares of
our common stock are held by brokers and otheitiisins on behalf of stockholders, we are unabledtimate the total number of beneficial
owners represented by these stockholders of record.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividem our common stock. We currently intend toineddl available funds and any future
earnings for use in the operation of our busineslsdm not anticipate paying any cash dividenddénforeseeable future. At present, we have
restrictions associated with our financing arrangets that impede our ability to pay cash dividerdds, future determination to declare cash
dividends will be made at the discretion of ourtdoaf directors, subject to compliance with covasamder any then existing financing
agreements, which may restrict or limit our abititydeclare or pay dividends, and will depend onfmancial condition, results of operations,
capital requirements, general business conditiamd,other factors that our board of directors megnd relevant. We issued a stock dividend in
connection with our 2-for-1 stock split, which weféected in the form of a 100% common stock dividleistributed on June 14, 2007.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected histb financial data of the Company for each of it five fiscal years. The information in this
table should be read in conjunction with the coidstéd financial statements and accompanying rigsining on page F-1 and with
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinarnC@iditions and Results of Operations," which iduded in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated
Statements of
Operations Data

Revenue! $ 64576° $ 72158¢ $ 847,35( $§ 354,72t $  108,58:
Cost of sale: 337,72( 486,72. 349,70: 154,15¢ 47,77:
Restructuring

charges 7,08¢ 901 — — —
Gross profil 300,96: 233,96t 497,64¢ 200,57( 60,80¢

Selling, general an

administrative

expense: 311,59. 341,41¢ 268,97¢ 104,17: 33,90¢
Foreign currency

transaction losse

(gains), ne (665) 25,43¢ (10,059 77€ 33
Charitable

Contributions 7,51( 1,84« 95¢ 27€ 46
Restructuring

charges 7,62 7,66¢ — — —
Impairment charge 26,08t 45,78¢ — — —
Income (loss) fron

operations (51,189 (188,287 237,76’ 95,34¢ 26,89:
Gain (loss) or

Charitable

Contributions (3,169) — — — —
Interest expens 1,49¢ 1,79: 43¢ 567 611
Other (income)

expense—net (895) (565) (2,997 (1,84% 8
Income (loss

before income

taxes (48,62 (189,51() 240,32t 96,62¢ 26,28¢
Income tax expens

(benefit)(1) (6,547 (4.439 72,09¢ 32,20¢ 9,317
Net income (loss (42,079 (185,07¢) 168,22¢ 64,417 16,97:
Dividend on

redeemable

convertible

preferred share — — — 33 27¢

Net income (loss
attributable to
common
stockholder: $ (42,079 $ (185,070 $ 168,22¢ $ 64,38. $ 16,697

Income (loss) pe
common share
Basic $ (0.49 $ 2.29) $ 208 $ 087 $ 0.2€
Diluted $ (0.49 $ (2.29) % 20C $ 081 $ 0.2€
Weighted average
common shares:

()
Basic 85,112,46 82,767,54 80,759,07 74,598,40 50,987,15.
Diluted 85,112,46 82,767,54 84,194,88. 80,170,51 67,140,00
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As of December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheets Da:
Cash, cash equivalents, and

marketable securitie $ 77,34: $ 5166t $ 36,33t $ 64,98, $ 4,787
Total asset 409,73¢ 455,99¢ 627,42t 299,45 78,03
Long term obligation: 35,46: 35,30: 15,86« 3,29( 5,518
Redeemable common sha — — — — 1,80(
Redeemable convertible preferred

stock — — — — 5,50(C
Total stockholders' equity (defici 287,62( 287,16: 444,11 208,25t 18,91

1) On January 4, 2005, we converted from a limitebliliizg company to a taxable corporation. For theyaars beginning ¢
January 1, 2005 and afterward, we are subjectrfpocate-level U.S. federal, state and foreign inedaxes. The
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBthe2005 reflects a ortene income tax benefit of $797,000 to rec
the net deferred tax assets at the date of cowersi

(2)  We issued a stock dividend in connection with odor21 stock split, which was effected in the foafa 100% common
stock dividend distributed on June 14, 2007. Alirghand per share amounts prior to June 14, 208¥ feen adjusted to
reflect the 2-for-1 stock split. Diluted weightedeaage shares have been calculated excluding litevdieffect of stock
options and awards in years where the Company maset loss position as their inclusion would hiagen an-dilutive.

ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis dfinancial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We aspire to bring comfort, fun and inndsato the world's feet. We strive to be the gldealder in molded footwear design and
development. We manufacture a product offering pinavides new and exciting molded footwear prodtitas feature fun, comfort and
functionality. We also design and sell a broadriffig of footwear and accessories that utilize aoppetary closed cell-resin, called Croslite.
Our Croslite material is unique in that it enahlsgo produce an innovative, lightweight, non-miagkiand odor-resistant shoe. Certain shoes
made with the Croslite material have been certifigd).S. Ergonomics to reduce peak pressure ofotitereduce muscular fatigue while
standing and walking and to relieve the musculetkébystem.

Since the initial introduction and poputaief our Beach and Cayman (soon to be renamedsCe@assic) designs, we have expanded our
Croslite products to include a variety of new s$yd&d products and have extended our product teemigh the acquisition of new brand
platforms such as Jibbitz, LLC ("Jibbitz") and Oeédinded, Inc. ("Ocean Minded"). We intend to con branching out into other types of
footwear, bringing a unique and original perspectiy the consumer in styles that may be unexpded Crocs. In part, we believe this will
help us to continue to build a stable year-rounsin®ss as we look to offer more winter-orientedestyAll of our products are designed to
allow the product to be defined by comfort, funddnnction. Our marketing approach is also becorsiggificantly more focused on a defined
target consumer. The majority of our marketing ecurround specific product launches and emplilaintegrated approach utilizing a
variety of media outlets. Our marketing effort$v&rto drive business to both our wholesale pasta@d our compangwned retail and intern
stores, ensuring that our presentation and steryiist class and drive purchasing at the poirgabé.
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We currently sell our Crocs-branded produbtoughout the U.S. and in more than 100 cowtide sell our products through domestic
and international retailers and distributors andatly to end-user consumers through our webst@espanyeperated retail stores, outlets i
kiosks. The broad appeal of our footwear has altbuseto market our products to a wide range ofitistion channels, including department
stores and traditional footwear retailers as weklhaariety of specialty and independent retaihclets.

Recent Events

From our inception through the year endeddnber 31, 2007, we experienced rapid revenuetigrand had difficulty meeting demand
for our footwear products. During this period, vignificantly increased our production capacity, alesuse space and inventory in an effort to
meet demand. This pattern changed in 2008. Ountevgrowth moderated and then began to declinegl@008 when compared to 2007.
Accordingly, we evaluated our production capacitgd aperations structure and, in 2008, we discoetimur Canadian manufacturing
operations and consolidated our Canadian distdhudrtivities with other existing North Americarstlibution operations; we abandoned
certain equipment and molds that represented exegegity; we wrote down the value of certain uimitswentory that we felt we may not be
able to sell for a price above cost; and we disnaetd manufacturing operations at our Brazilian afacturing facility. During 2008 and 2009,
we decreased our fixed costs by consolidating tbyag distribution centers and reducing our waredgospace; we took additional impairments
on goodwill, intangible assets, molds, tooling, ipquent and other assets related to manufacturisgjltltion and sales; we executed against a
plan to dispose of previously-impaired inventorgg$elow); and we reduced our global headcounppyoximately 33%. We believe these
actions were necessary in order to align our prisdn@nd distribution capacities with our reviseshtind projections. Furthermore, we have
taken actions to reduce our selling, general amdir@dtrative costs by reducing personnel, reduciagspace costs by consolidating certain
offices and reducing other discretionary spendiwa result of these and other actions taken byagement as part of our turnaround strategy,
we achieved improved year-over-year gross marg2000 as well as improved operating margin andasst despite weakened economic
conditions during 2009. We may, in the future, thkgher actions to align our cost structure wigmgral demand for our products.

The following table summarizes our restudicly and asset impairment, including intangibleeds, charges for the year ended
December 31, 2009:

Warehouse and

Distribution
Consolidation Other(1) Total
Asset impairment chargs
Equipment and mold  $ 3,02¢ $ 15,12¢ $ 18,15(
Leasehold
Improvements — 327 327
Capitalized Softwar — 4,51¢ 4,51¢
Other Intangible asse — 3,09t 3,09t
Restructuring charge
Operating lease exit
costs(2) $ 5,35¢ $ 231 $ 5,58
Other restructurin
costs(3) — 5,30¢ 5,30¢
Termination benefit 37¢€ 3,43¢ 3,81t
$ 8,75¢ $ 32,03t $ 40,79

1) During the year ended December 31, 2009, we todkioeactions to reduce our global cost structure.
Actions included in the "Other" column include thiete-off of obsolete molds, tooling, manufacturing
equipment and sales and marketing assets and tte®ff
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of capitalized software, patents and tradenameotret intangible assets we no longer intend tizati

(2 Operating lease exit costs include lease terminati@mrges for our facilities in Aurora and Rottendand
freight and labor charges related to the trandf@mentory and equipment as a result of the Comgjsan
decision to close and consolidate its distributienters.

3) Other restructuring costs include cancellation ofanufacturing agreement with a third party in Basn
termination of the Company's sponsorship agreemihtthe Association of Volleyball Professionals
("AVP"), $1.1 million related to obtaining a releasom any further obligations under the purchase
agreement with Bite, LLC and $0.5 million in chasgelating to termination of consulting arrangersent
with former key company employe

Throughout the year ended December 31,,208%®xecuted against a plan for the disposal oflmecontinued and impaired product
inventories. This plan included structured salesstablished discount retailers, sales througlcompanyewned outlet stores, warehouse s
and other disposition activities as well as donetito ourCrocs Caresktharitable organization. These actions were dedigmeninimize
adverse impacts to our resellers, distributorsampany-owned retail channels. As a result of aercation against this plan, the average
selling price of our products declined during tlealy However, because we were able to sell mudiegbreviously-impaired product at prices
higher than what we had previously estimated wbeldhe net realizable value of that product, thteeffect of these sales during the year was
accretive to our gross margin.

Additionally, during the second quarte2609, we offered to purchase stock options withr@ge prices equal to or greater than $10.50
per share for cash from certain eligible employ@es "Tender Offer") in order to restore the inéemtvalue of our long-term performance
award programs and in response to the fact thagxbecise prices of a substantial number of outitanstock options held by our employees
far exceeded the market price of our common stdskpart of the Tender Offer, we repurchased 2,3bBdock options from our employees
and non-employee directors. Accordingly, we recdrdeharge of $16.3 million in the quarter endinge)30, 2009 related to previously
unrecognized share-based compensation expendeefa tendered and cancelled options. Of this $1éli®n charge, $13.3 million was
recorded to selling, general and administrativecesps and $3.0 million was recorded to cost ofsale

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Camy identified an error in the calculation of stdzsed compensation expense for prior
periods. The errors were identified after the Conyfsathird-party equity accounting software providetified its clients, including the
Company, that it made a change to how its softwesgram calculates stodkased compensation expense. Specifically, the peiion of this
software calculated stodkased compensation expense by incorrectly congnairapply a weighted average forfeiture rate eowbsted portio
of stock option awards until the grant's final véate rather than reflecting actual forfeituresested, resulting in an understatement of stock-
based compensation expense in certain periodstpribe grant's final vest date in 2008 and 20@&dBise the Company's stock option awards
generally vest on a monthly basis after the firstigersary date of the award, the Company undeygrized stock-based compensation
expense in certain periods. This error changetintfing of stock-based compensation expense redogniut does not change the total stock-
based compensation expense. As stock-based contiparesgoense is a notash item, this error did not impact net cash grediby operatior
in any period. This error resulted in the undeestent of stockkased compensation expense, with a corresponduhgrstatement of addition
paid in capital, in the approximate amounts of $4ifion in 2008, $1.0 million in the ¥ quarter of 2009 and $0.5 million in thé®3quarter o
2009. Note that $2.0 million of the then existingrwlative error was offset as a consequence osadgnts made pursuant to the

38




Table of Contents

tender offer in the second quarter of 2009. The @amy recorded an additional $3.9 million in sto@séd compensation during the fourth
quarter of 2009 to correct the balance of thisreffbe Company does not believe that these errarslated corrections are material to its
previously issued historical consolidated finanstatements for 2008 or its quarterly or annualltegor 2009.

At December 31, 2009, we had $77.3 millioeash and cash equivalents compared to $51.&mak December 31, 2008. Our primary
source of cash is working capital from operatiddsr primary uses of cash are working capital feeragions and capital expenditures. During
the year ended December 31, 2009, the Companyrifigid its remaining obligation on its Revolvinge@it Facility with Union Bank of
California N.A. (the "Revolving Credit Facility")ral entered into a Revolving Credit and Securitye®gnent with PNC Bank, N.A. (the "Cre
Agreement"). At December 31, 2009, there was andtenal amount outstanding under the Credit Agregnteee Note 9—Notes Payable and
Capital Lease Obligations for further discussion.

Presentation of Operating Segments

Commencing with this Annual Report on FdtaK for the year ended December 31, 2009, we bagen reporting our results of
operations by operating segment. We have threeatipgrsegments: Americas, Europe and Asia. Alhefreportable segments derive their
revenue from the sale of footwear, apparel andsaweees. We evaluate performance and make deciglumg allocating resources to our
operating segments based on financial measuresasuglvenue and gross margin.

Gross margin and operating income is tlmgmy measure used by our chief operating decisiaker to evaluate segment operating
performance and to decide how to allocate resouccesgments. Operating income is defined as dpgraicome before asset impairment
charges and restructuring charges. We evaluateettiermance of our segments based primarily omdhelts of the segment without allocat
corporate expenses or indirect general, adminiggraind other expenses. The corporate and othegaatincludes (i) Ocean Minded,

(ii) Colorado Footwear CV, and (iii) corporate aatey, which maintains corporate costs such as dvaslked compensation, research and
development, brand marketing, legal expenses, digpien on global long-lived assets such as matusing, IT systems, and other global
costs that are not allocated to the regions.

Segment profits or losses include adjustmmneliminate intercompany profit or losses drelicompany sales. Segment assets include the
elimination of any intersegment profits or lossegiventory, however, include the elimination afercompany receivables. Segment assets,
primarily in the Americas, include certain loliged assets that are depreciated in corporatealtheeir global functionality. Net revenues in-
discussion that follows represent sales to exterastomers for each segment.

General

Revenues are recorded when products gopethiand the customer takes title and assumesfrieks, collection of related receivables are
probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangemestsegnd the sales price is fixed or determindlitke passes on shipment or on receipt by
customer depending on the country of the sale laa@greement with the customer. Allowances forrested returns and discounts are
recognized when related revenue is recorded. Beoaseasise both internal manufacturing and contréitt third parties to manufacture our
products, our cost of sales represents our costataifacture products in our Company-owned faeditincluding raw materials costs and all
overhead expenses related to production, as wélleasost to purchase finished products from oid{party manufacturers and costs to
transport these products to our facilities, inalesif all warehouse and outbound freight expertSest of sales also includes the wages of our
retail-related employees as well as depreciati@haanortization of manufacturing assets such as srenhd tooling.
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Our selling, general and administrative expensaistsprimarily of wages and related payroll anglaryee benefit costs for selling, market
and administrative employees, unrealized gainessds on foreign currency exchange, all non-proditatl-related expenses (including rent
and depreciation) and professional fees, facilyenses, bank charges and non-cash charges fertssed compensation. Selling, general
administrative expenses also include depreciatimhaamortization related to non-product, non-manufétg assets such as our global
information systems.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2009 a2@08

Set forth below are the results of operetifor the year ended December 31, 2009 as compatkd year ended December 31, 2008 (in
thousands, except for percentages).

(Year Ended December 31,)

2009 2008 $ Change % Change

Revenue! $ 645,76° $ 721,58¢ $ (75,829 (10.5%
Cost of sale: 337,72( 486,72: (149,007 (30.6)
Restructuring charge 7,08¢ 901 6,18t 686.5%
Gross profil 300,96: 233,96¢ 66,99¢ 28.6%
Selling, general and administrative exper

and foreign currency gains/loss 310,92 366,95¢ (56,029 (15.9)
Charitable Contribution 7,51C 1,84« 5,66¢ 307.c
Restructuring charge 7,628 7,664 (42) (1.0
Impairment charge 26,08¢ 45,78¢ (29,699 (43
Loss (income) from operatiol (51,184  (188,28) 137,09¢ (72.)
Interest expens 1,49¢ 1,79 (29¢) (16.€)
Gain (loss) on Charitable Contributio (3,169 — (3,169 *
Other (income) expens—net (89%5) (56%) (330 58.¢
Income (loss) before income tax (48,62 (189,510 140,88¢ (74.9)
Income tax expense (benel (6,547 (4,434 (2,109 47.€
Net income (loss) attributable to comnr

stockholder: $ (42,079 $ (185,079 142,99¢ (77.2%
* Percentage change is not relevant as prior yeauatsi@vere zerc

Revenues. Revenues decreased 10.5%, or $75.8 millio$i6#5.8 million, in the year ended December 31, 20@® $721.6 million in
the year ended December 31, 2008. The declinensgty attributed to a decrease in our revenuesuinAmericas and European markets.
Total unit sales of footwear products increasechfB85.3 million pairs during the year ended Decen8ier2008 to 36.8 million pairs in the y:
ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in revemhesgste the increase in unit sales, was the resthie execution against our plan to sell
inventories of discontinued and impaired produeleS of our discontinued and impaired product vegre lower selling price, thereby causir
decline in revenue despite the increase in unlt ss well as a decline in the average sellingepaf our shoes. The average selling price o
shoes during the year ended December 31, 2009 ia8®compared to $18.35 during the year endedrbleee31, 2008. Sales of our Jibbitz
products decreased 46.6% to $25.2 million in ther yeded December 31, 2009, from $47.2 milliorhinyear ended December 31, 2008.

Our wholesale channel revenues decreas@d@®r $147.6 million, to $404.5 million, in thear ended December 31, 2009, from
$552.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 believe that this decrease arose as a resthe gflobal economic downturn, which has
lessened consumer demand
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and caused some retailers to choose to operagarai inventory levels. In addition, during thedaportion of 2009, we implemented a more
disciplined wholesale approach and, accordinglyehtaken measures to reduce the number of whotssad#ling our product in order to better
position the brand in the marketplace. These meadwave resulted in fewer wholesale customers. [$éebelieve sales of our footwear at
wholesale has declined due to the challenges veeifamerchandising our expanded product lines istiexy wholesale channels and lessening
consumer demand for our products as such prodeathra more mature stage in their product life.Hakee also been affected by competitors
entering the market with imitation products that aold at substantially lower prices.

Our company-owned retail locations, inchglretail stores, kiosks and outlets, increaseliblocations at December 31, 2009, which is
up from 279 at December 31, 2008. Total revenua ftompany-owned retail locations increased 21.1%$26.5 million, to $152.3 million in
the year ended December 31, 2009, from $125.8amiftor the year ended December 31, 2008. We befeatethis year-over-year increase in
revenue is driven by an increase in the numbetooés as well as the fact that we are able to namdise the full breadth and depth of our
product line. As our retail business becomes alapgrtion of our business, we expect to see sampedvements in total revenue and gross
margin as we have traditionally been able to agheehigher average selling price in this channel.plén to close certain kiosks and
selectively open more branded stores. Our plansXpanding retail locations in future periods mayadjusted or suspended should economic
conditions worsen or should management determigeetidifferent course of action for our future ileterategy is necessary.

Revenues from our internet channel incré&gks.3 million, or 103.7%, to $89 million in thear ended December 31, 2009 from
$43.7 million in the year ended December 31, 20 increase in revenues during 2009 is due priynarincreased web-based and other
marketing efforts aimed at driving consumer awassred our webstores as well as the launches ofalevew sites serving international
markets. We intend to expand our webstores andhasbd and other marketing efforts as this chanreddles us to showcase our entire
product offering directly to the consumer, which adieve to be advantageous to us in terms of salesne and brand awareness. As a
percentage of total revenue, revenue from ourrietecthannel was 13.7% and 6.1% for the years eDdedmber 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. While still a relatively small per¢age of our overall business, as our internet lassilbecomes a larger portion of our total
revenue, we expect to experience some improvenrettsal revenue and gross margin as we have ioadity been able to achieve a higher
average selling price in this channel. Our plamddture expansion may be adjusted or suspendaddskoonomic conditions worsen or sho
management determine that a different course adraédr our future internet strategy is necessary.

The majority of our revenues during theryeraded December 31, 2009 were attributable tanoorclassic footwear models. Sales of our
classic models, Beach and Cayman (to be renamexs @lassic) represented 16% of total unit salegii®year ended December 31, 2009,
compared to 25% for the year ended December 38.Z4les of our core products, which includes Bg&cbcs Classic, Kids Cayman (to be
renamed Kids Crocs Classic), Athens, Kids AthenaryMane, Girls Mary Jane, Mammoth and Kids Mammmethresented 33% of our overall
unit sales in 2009 compared to 57% in 2008. Sdlesw 2009 footwear product lines represented apprately 17% of our overall unit sales
for the year ended December 31, 2009. We intemoitinue to diversify our product offerings in orde expand our brand and expect that
sales of our classic and core models will repreaesmaller portion of our overall revenues in theife. We also intend to segment our product
offerings into our various sales channels and taaoe our visual and fixture merchandising platlrmcompany-owned and wholesale
customers' stores to more effectively display ogramded product portfolio.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rsitese December 31, 2008 contributed $14.9 millmour revenues in the year ended
December 31, 2009. We expect that sales in intematmarkets in foreign currencies will continwerépresent a substantial portion of our
overall revenues. Accordingly,
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changes in foreign currency exchange rates coutdmablly affect our overall revenues or the compdity of those revenues from period to
period as a result of translating our financiatesteents into our reporting currency, the U.S. dolla

Americas Segment—Revenu@®ur revenues from the Americas decreased 1706%63.7 million, to $298.0 million in the yeardsd
December 31, 2009 compared to $361.7 million feryiear ended December 31, 2008. This decline wasrdby declines in our wholesale
channel, offset somewhat by increases in our ratallinternet channels. We believe the net deatimevenues is reflective of economic
conditions in the United States coupled with thallemges we face in merchandising our expandedugtdihes as well as the maturity of our
core products in the consumer market and lesset@ntand for such products. Likewise, we believeréigqoof the decline was driven by sales
of end of life and impaired units, which were satdower prices. See "Recent Events" above. We hagen executing against plans to re-
invigorate revenue in the U.S. wholesale channélariicipate continuing to invest in these planisiclv include, but are not limited to,
investments in cooperative advertising and mercisarmglassistance for select locations at our ldargeS. wholesale accounts.

We experienced a decrease in sales reamehallowances, which are included as a net adgrgtto revenue, of 59.1% or $24.6 million
$17 million in the year ended December 31, 200&nft1.6 million for the year ended December 31,820e decrease in sales returns and
allowances is due to a higher 2008 balance, wheragement, in light of then-prevailing economic dtinds, granted certain return requests
and allowances to a number of customers it believex@ strategically important to our ongoing busseiccordingly, our estimate for sales
returns and allowances for the year ended DeceBhe&t008 was significantly higher than historicstimates as a result of specific reserves
related to those granted return and allowance sguBee also "Recent Events" above.

The number of company-owned retail locagionthe Americas, including retail stores, kioaksl outlets, increased slightly to 182
locations at December 31, 2009 from 157 locatidridewember 31, 2008. Revenue from company-ownedl fetations in the Americas
increased 54.7%, or $37.6 million, to $106.3 millia the year ended December 31, 2009, from $68libmfor the year ended December 31,
2008.

Asia Segment—RevenueOur revenues in Asia increased 15.9%, or $88lén, to $237.5 million in the year ended DecemB1, 200!
from $204.9 million for the year ended DecemberZI)8. Revenue in the region increased as a refssitong demand in all channels,
particularly in the wholesale and retail channeffset somewhat by a lower average selling priceG@9 compared to 2008, which we believe
to be primarily driven by sales of end of life antpaired units, which were sold at lower pricesg&sussed in "Recent Events" above.

We experienced a decline in sales retundsaélowances of 43.4%, or $6.9 million, to $9.0lion in the year ended December 31, 2009
from $15.9 million for the year ended DecemberZ108. The decrease in sales returns and allowangesnarily related to a higher 2008
balance, when management, in light of then-prevgiéiconomic conditions, granted certain returnsadlogvances to some of our wholesale
customers to properly balance their portfolios of products with respect to size, color and style.

We increased the number of company-operatad locations in Asia to 119 locations at Debem31, 2009, from 107 locations at
December 31, 2008. Revenue from Company operataill Ioeations in Asia increased 27.5%, or $13.Hiam, to $63.6 million in the year
ended December 31, 2009, from $49.9 million forythar ended December 31, 2008.

Europe Segment—Revenuedur revenues in Europe decreased 29.1%, oB$dillion, to $106.9 million in the year ended
December 31, 2009 from $150.7 million for the sgrasod in 2008. This decline was led by a declinetaolesale, where we experienced a
drop in demand due in part to
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economic conditions and an increased number oétiit products in the region. Partially offsettihis decline were increases in revenue f
our company-owned retail locations (partially driiey an additional retail location) and an increiasevenue from our internet channel.

Sales returns and allowances, which arerded as a net adjustment to revenue, decreasedor ¥%8.6 million, to $7.6 million in the
year ended December 31, 2009 from $26.2 milliothéyear ended December 31, 2008. The declindes seturns and allowances is due
higher 2008 balance, when management, in lightefi{prevailing economic conditions, granted centatnrn requests and allowances to a
number of customers it believed were strategidallyortant to the Company's ongoing business. Adnghyl our estimate for sales returns
allowances for the year ended December 31, 200&iga#icantly higher than historical estimatesaagsult of specific reserves related to
those granted return and allowance requests. Se€Récent Events” above.

As of December 31, 2009, we operated 14| retcations in Europe versus 15 in the same pesid?008. Revenue from Company
operated retail locations was $11.0 million in ylear ended December 31, 2009 versus $7.2 milliothfoyear ended December 31, 2008.

Gross profit.  Gross profit increased 28.6% to $301.0 milliothe year ended December 31, 2009. Gross margieased to 46.6% in
the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to 3@A#ie year ended December 31, 2008. During 26@%o0ld $58.3 million of impaired
product (see "Recent Events"). Much of this prodhact been written down to a level that we considieealizable; however, we were able to
sell this product at prices substantially highemtlivhat we had previously estimated. The grosstfount related to these units was
accretive to our gross profit percentage duringyter ended December 31, 2009. The net effectesktisales on our gross profit during the
year ended December 31, 2009 was $49.8 millioningu2009, we also experienced an increase in raailinternet sales as a percentac
our total revenue, as discussed previously. Thisdtthas contributed to higher gross margins asawve traditionally been able to achieve a
higher average selling price in these channelseahiny of the fixed costs associated with operaiingcompany-owned retail stores are
included in selling, general and administrativeenges. Partially offsetting these increases insgpogfit were restructuring charges of
$7.1 million associated with the consolidation aof aarehouse and distribution space and canceilatiour warehousing agreement. See
"Restructuring" below for further discussion. Indé@@n, as a result of our Tender Offer (see "Ré&arents"), we recognized $3.0 million in
additional stock-based compensation expense throogthof sales during 2009. In addition, we now ae&lide range of products which require
additional materials, such as canvas, cloth liding suede, and additional processes, such asrggit¢b manufacture, thereby increasing our
direct costs and lowering our gross margins onahweducts. As we continue to expand our portfatid non-classic models become a larger
portion of our business, we expect that our profirgins will be adversely affected. By comparisduring 2008, we recorded charges of
$76.3 million related to inventory write-downs a&b4l2 million related to losses on future purchasamitments. We also recorded
$0.9 million in restructuring costs in cost of sa#s a result of the closure of our Canadian matwiag operation (See "Restructuring”
below).

Changes in foreign currency exchange rsitese December 31, 2008 decreased our gross margia.4 million in the year ended
December 31, 2009. We expect that sales at subgsichianpanies with functional currencies other th@U.S. dollar will continue to generate
a substantial portion of our overall gross prdfitcordingly, changes in foreign currency exchargges could materially affect our overall
gross profit or the comparability of our gross jrixbm period to period as a result of translatmg financial statements into our reporting
currency, the U.S. dollar.
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Selling, general and administrative expasnseSelling, general and administrative expenseadsed 15.3% to $310.9 million in the year
ended December 31, 2009, from $366.9 million ferykar ended December 31, 2008. As a percentags odvenues, selling, general and
administrative expenses declined to 48.1% in ttae gaded December 31, 2009 from 50.8% for the geded December 31, 2008. This
decline was primarily attributable to our executamgainst cost-savings initiatives during 2009, effisomewhat by growth in our retail-related
expenses as we continued to expand our retail ehaBpecifically, compared to 2008, 2009 advergisand marketing expense declined by
$27.9 million, of which $11.1 million was relateal ¢orporate sponsorships and $16.8 million wagteeélw advertising expenses, as we exited
corporate sponsorships and changed our approanhrieting our products towards a more integratedsemer-focused program. In addition,
legal expense declined $24.1 million during 2008pared to 2008. Also included in selling, general administrative expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2009 is a net gain on changesrency exchange rates for transactions denogdnand settled or to be settled, in a
currency other than the functional currency ofd¢besolidated entity of $0.7 million compared toet loss on changes in currency exchange
rates of $25.4 million for the year ended Decen#igr2008. Offsetting these declines were increamss®ck compensation due to the tender
offer of $13.3 million and $4.5 million due to tegquity accounting software error discussed ear@t expense of $7.4 million and salaries
and wages of $4.1 million. As our retail channeddraes a larger portion of our total business, sasudised previously, we expect that selling,
general and administrative expenses will increase gercentage of total revenue as certain fixsts@ssociated with the retail channel are
recognized in selling, general and administratigeases.

Changes in the average foreign currenchanxge rates used to translate expenses from octidoal currencies to our reporting currency,
the U.S. dollar, from 2008 fiscal year to 2009 disgear contributed approximately $4.0 million tar @lecrease in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

During the 2008 and 2009 fiscal years, @gktcertain actions to reduce our selling, genanal administrative expenses. Those actions
included, but were not limited to, workforce redans, office space reductions and reductions itegediscretionary spending, including
discontinuation of certain sponsorship and consgléirrangements. We continue to evaluate our dpgrakpenses, including selling, general
and administrative expenses. Should economic dondifurther deteriorate or demand for our proddetsiine further, we may experience
further declines in revenues and we may take amfditiactions to reduce our selling, general andisidtrative expenses further.

Restructuring charges. We recorded $14.7 million in restructuring des in the year ended December 31, 2009, of whidh iillion
was reflected in restructuring charges and $7.lianilvas reflected in cost of sales. In the yeateshDecember 31, 2008, we recorded
$8.5 million in restructuring charges related te thosure of our facilities in Canada and BraZzil,63million of which was recorded in
restructuring charges and $0.9 million of which weftected in cost of sales. These restructuriray@bs arose primarily as a result of the
Company's execution against a plan to better @lgts with current revenue streams. The 2009 ktsting charges consisted of:

. $5.6 million related to the termination of operatiegses and other costs associated with the cdasioln of our warehousin
distribution and office space worldwide;

. $3.8 million related to the termination of our mametiuring agreement with a third party in Bosnia andsponsorshi
agreement with Association of Volleyball Professitsn("AVP");

. $3.7 million in severance costs;
. $1.1 million related to the release from furtheligdttion under the earn-out provisions of our asiigin of Bite, LLC;
. $0.5 million in other restructuring charg
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We established reserves covering futurevknobligations related to the consolidation of glabal distribution facilities. Reserves at
December 31, 2009 were $3.1 million and have beelnded in the line items accrued restructuringgbs and long-term restructuring in our
consolidated balance sheets.

Impairment charges. During the year ended December 31, 2009, werded $26.1 million in impairment charges which sisted of th
following items:

. $18.1 million related to the write-off of obsolet®lds, tooling, manufacturing and distribution gmoent, sales and marketing
assets and other distribution and manufacturingtasprimarily associated with the consolidatiomafehouse and distribution
space as well as other cost-savings initiative®rtalden during the year,;

. $7.6 million related to the write-off of capitaldeoftware, patents, trade names and other inteng#isets that we no longer
intend to utilize; and

. $0.4 million related to the write-off of other item
During 2008, we recognized impairment ckeargf $45.8 million which consisted of the followin

. $20.9 million related to the wri-down of fixed assets, primarily related to equipitreemd shoe molds for shoes we no lor
intend to manufacture or styles for which we hademoolds on hand than necessary to meet projeetecod;

. $0.6 million related to the impairment of patentsiath we no longer intend to utilize;

. $0.3 million related to the impairment of the Ftngde name and customer relationships and $0.®bmiklated to the Jibbitz
trade name; and

. $23.8 million related to the write-off of goodwdhd other indefinite lived intangible assets, cssy of $1.0 million in
goodwill related to the closure of Fury, and $2@i8ion in goodwill written off as a result of ampairment analysis.

Loss from Operations. During the year ended December 31, 2009, @as flmm operations was $51.2 million compared ltusa of
$188.3 million during the year ended December 8082 for the reasons stated above. Our operatipngeaets, combined, generated
$90.1 million in operating income during 2009, whigas offset by $7.6 million in restructuring cotat were recorded in selling, general and
administrative expenses; $26.1 million in assetaimpent charges; and an operating loss of $107l®mielated primarily to unallocated
corporate costs in our corporate and other categascribed previously in "Operating Segments."

Our Americas segment generated operaticgnme of $21.2 million during the year ended Decen®ie 2009 compared to an operating
loss of $43.5 million during the year ended Decen®de 2008. During 2008, the operating loss inAomrericas segment was driven primarily
by declines in gross profit as a result of inveptarite-downs and excess capacity in our Compargrated manufacturing and distribution
facilities. In addition, we experienced foreign ety exchange losses related to fluctuationserCtinadian dollar, Mexican peso and
Brazilian real in 2008. During 2009, we executediast a plan to reduce and consolidate our glolaaélwouse footprint, which increased our
Americas gross margin compared to 2008, and werexqed declines in marketing and advertising experas we exited corporate
sponsorships and changed our approach to markatingroducts.

Our Asia segment generated operating inaoi$&7.8 million during 2009 compared to operatimgome of $16.6 million during 2008.
During 2008, our Asia operating income was affedtedoreign exchange losses and inventory impaitmén 2009, we experienced higher
gross margins in Asia, driven largely by growttour Asia retail channel as well as an overall iaseein total revenues from
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the Asia segment. We also experienced an increagains from fluctuations in foreign currency excea rates during 2009 in our Asia
segment.

Our Europe segment generated operatingrieaaf $11.0 million during 2009 compared to opagincome of $1.0 million in 2008.
During 2008, our Europe operating income was adiiétty foreign exchange losses and inventory impaitsn In 2009, we experienced higher
gross margins in Europe as a result of the reduetia@ consolidation of our global warehouse anttidigion footprint; however, these higher
margins were achieved at lower sales volumes. e atperienced a lower loss from fluctuations irifgn currency exchange rates during
2009 in our Europe segment.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased 16.6%, or $0.3milio $1.5 million in the year ended December28D9. The decline in
interest expense during the year was driven by daeét balances, as we fully repaid our previougdRéng Credit Facility on August 3, 2009
and had an immaterial amount of bank debt outstanadin our Credit Agreement as of the end of the.\aspite lower debt balances during
2009, interest rates on our borrowings under theoR@ng Credit Facility were higher in 2009 than2008, resulting in only a slight decreas
interest expense for the year. Also partially difeg the aforementioned decline was additionari@st from a new capitalized lease obligation
which financed certain equipment and internallyedeped software during 2009.

Income tax expense.During the year ended December 31, 2009, wagrézed an income tax benefit of $6.5 million opra-tax loss of
$48.6 million, compared to income tax benefit of4brillion on pre-tax loss of $189.5 million forelyear ended December 31, 2008. The
effective tax benefit rate was a 13.4% during tearyended December 31, 2009 compared to a 2.3%eteit rate during the year ended
December 31, 2008. We restructured our internatioperations and cost-sharing arrangements whiate@sed the tax benefit for 2009.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2008 a@@07

Set forth below are the results of operetifor the year ended December 31, 2008, as comhpatbe year ended December 31, 2007 (in
thousands, except for percentages).

(Year Ended December 31,)

2008 2007 $ Change % Change

Revenue! $ 721,58¢ $ 847,35( $ (125,76) (14.9%
Cost of sale: 486,72: 349,70: 137,02: 39.2
Restructuring charge 901 — 901 *
Gross profil 233,96t 497,64¢ (263,68)) (53.0
Selling, general and administrative expense

and foreign currency gains/loss 366,95t 258,92 108,03: 417
Charitable Contribution 1,84« 95¢ 88t 92.%
Restructuring charge 7,664 — 7,664 *
Impairment charge 45,78¢ — 45,78¢ *
Income (loss) from operatiol (188,28)) 237,76 (426,049 (179.2)
Interest expens 1,792 43¢ 1,35¢ 309.4
Gain (loss) Charitable Contributic — — — *
Other (income) expens—net (56%) (2,997 2,43 (81.2)
Income (loss) before income tax (189,51()  240,32¢ (429,83f) (178.9
Income tax expense (benel (4,434 72,09¢ (76,53)) (106.2)
Net income (loss) attributable to comnr

stockholder: $ (185,07¢) $ 168,22¢ $ (353,309 (210%
* Percentage change is not relevant as prior yeauatsiavere zero.
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Revenues. Revenues decreased 14.8%, or $125.8 millio781.6 million, in the year ended December 31 826@m $847.4 million i
the year ended December 31, 2007. The declineénsagty attributed to a decrease in our revenuesuinAmericas and European markets,
specifically driven by a decrease in unit saleswffootwear and Jibbitz products. Unit sales otfeear products decreased 24.7% or
11.6 million pairs, to 35.3 million pairs in thegreended December 31, 2008, from 46.9 million paitke year ended December 31, 2007.
Sales of our Jibbitz products decreased 30.2% Tc2$4illion in the year ended December 31, 2008nf667.5 million in the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Our wholesale channel revenues decreas882®r $186.8 million, to $552.1 million, in thear ended December 31, 2008, from
$738.9 million in the year ended December 31, 200& believe that this decrease is due to lowersaiés primarily resulting from lessening
consumer demand due to the global economic downtenbelieve unit sales of our footwear also declidue to the challenges we face in
merchandising our expanded product lines in exgstiholesale channels as well as lessening consdemeand for our products as such
products reach a more mature stage in their prddecnd competitors enter the market with imiatproducts that are sold at substantially
lower prices. Declines in revenue are also attablgt to an increase in sales returns and allowambih are recorded as a reduction of net
revenue as sales returns and allowance increas®d¥82.2 million for the year ended December 30,72 $83.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Our Company operated retail locations,uduig retail stores, kiosks and outlets, increase2V’9 locations at December 31, 2008, which
is up from 209 at December 31, 2007. Total revdrara Company operated retail locations increase8%8or $51.6 million, to
$125.8 million in the year ended December 31, 26@8n $74.2 million for the year ended DecemberZ17.

Revenues from our webstores increasedrfiflli®n, or 28.8%, to $43.7 million in the year esttiDecember 31, 2008 from $33.9 million
in the year ended December 31, 2007. The increasénues during 2008 is due primarily to incrdaseb-based and other marketing efforts
aimed at driving consumer awareness of our webstore

The majority of our revenues during theryeraded December 31, 2008 were attributable tanoorclassic footwear models. Sales of our
classic models, Beach and Cayman (soon to be reh@mes Classic), represented 25% of total unésstdr the year ended December 31,
2008, compared to 30% for the year ended Decenthe20®7. Sales of new 2008 footwear product liegsasented approximately 15% of our
overall revenues for the year ended December 318.20

Changes in foreign currency exchange msitee December 31, 2007 contributed $31.3 millmour revenues in the year ended
December 31, 2008. We expect that sales in intemeltmarkets in foreign currencies will contineergépresent a substantial portion of our
overall revenues. Accordingly, changes in foreignmency exchange rates could materially affectauarall revenues or the comparability of
those revenues from period to period as a resuitaoglating our financial statements into our réipg currency, the U.S. dollar.

Americas Market. Our revenues from the Americas decreased 288%i44.7 million, to $365.9 million in the yeardad
December 31, 2008 compared to $510.6 million feryiear ended December 31, 2007. We believe théndaslreflective of economic
conditions in the United States coupled with thallemges we face in merchandising our expandedugtdihes as well as the maturity of our
core products in the consumer market and lesset@ntand for such products, as discussed in "RecenttE' above.

We experienced an increase in sales reamdsllowances, which are included as a net adgrstto revenue, of 94.4% or $20.2 million,
to $41.6 million in the year ended December 3182B6m $21.4 million for the year ended DecemberZI07. The increase in sales returns
and allowances is primarily attributable to knowrd anticipated returns as well as price mark down
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allowances for certain product styles and colorsafoich we have experienced less than anticipag#drsough in our wholesales customer
channel, as discussed in the "Recent Events" above.

The number of Company operated retail iooatin the Americas, including retail stores, kimgind outlets, increased slightly to 157
locations at December 31, 2008 from 153 locatidridexember 31, 2007. Revenue from Company operatai locations increased 45.0%,
$21.3 million, to $68.7 million in the year endeéd@mber 31, 2008, from $47.4 million for the yeader December 31, 2007. Our Company
operated retail locations allow us to showcaseeatire product offering, which we believe resuttbetter sales of new product offerings and
increased brand awareness.

Asian Market. Our revenues in Asia increased 25.7%, or $#1li#on, to $204.9 million in the year ended DeceamB1, 2008 from
$163.0 million for the year ended December 31, 20Wi# increase is attributable to higher unit spkxsod over period as we increased our
direct sales in China and expanded our productioffe as well as our increase in door openingHDB2

The overall increase in revenues in ouaAsegion was partially offset by an increase leseeturns and allowances of 329.8%, or
$12.2 million, to $15.9 million in the year endedd@mber 31, 2008 from $3.7 million for the yearesmh®ecember 31, 2007. The increase in
sales returns and allowances is primarily relaveturns which enabled our wholesale customepsdperly balance their portfolios of our
products with respect to size, color and style.

We increased the number of Company operated venues in Asia to 107 locations at Decen#ier2008, from 53 locations at
December 31, 2007. Revenue from Company operataill Ioeations increased 85.5%, or $23.0 millian$49.9 million in the year ended
December 31, 2008, from $26.9 million for the yeaded December 31, 2007.

European Market. Our revenues in Europe decreased 13.2%, o0$@ilion, to $150.7 million in the year ended Dedzer 31, 2008
from $173.7 million for the same period in 2007. Ye noted a decline in revenues in certain E@nopeuntries, particularly in those which
represent a more mature market for our productsb®lleve a portion of this decline is due to arré@ased number of imitation products tha
believe infringe on our intellectual property adives the maturity of our core products in the aonsr market and lessening demand for such
product. We believe the decline in revenues inEunopean market may result from the challenge aeiased competition from producers of
imitation products that are sold at lower products.

Sales returns and allowances, which isrdEmbas a net adjustment to revenue, increase@%68r $19.0 million, to $26.2 million in the
year ended December 31, 2008 from $7.2 millioh@aytear ended December 31, 2007. The increaséei reaurns and allowances is prima
attributable to known and anticipated returns al ageprice mark down allowances for certain pradwand other products in certain colors for
which we have experienced less than anticipatexs $alour wholesales customer channel, as discusskd "Recent Events" above.

As of December 31, 2008, we operated ldilretcations in Europe versus 3 in the same pesid2D07. Revenue from Company operated
retail locations was $7.2 million in the year endtember 31, 2008 versus $262 thousand for theeyeied December 31, 2007.

Gross profit. Gross profit decreased 53.0% to $234.0 milliothe year ended December 31, 2008. Gross masgiinegd to 32.4% in
the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to 5@r78te year ended December 31, 2007. The deciea@gess profit was partially the
result of excess capacity in our Company-operatadufacturing and distribution facilities, which aezognized in our results of operations as
period costs. As of December 31, 2008, we recoatedied losses on purchase commitments for inwemtith a market lower than cost of
$4.2 million, our write-down of inventories relatiescertain products that were or are going toibeatinued of $76.3 million,
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including core products in colors that have experés substantial declines in consumer demand sassfied in "Recent Events" above.
Likewise, we recorded $0.9 million in restructurirgjated costs in cost of sales as a result oflibsure of our Canadian manufacturing
operation, as explained more fully in "restructgreharges” below. For the year ended December(818,2ve also experienced a change in
sales mix to include products with lower profit migis when compared to the sales mix for the yede@mecember 31, 2007. We now
manufacture a wide range of products which recailditional materials, such as canvas, cloth lirind suede, and additional processes, such
as stitching, to manufacture. As we continue toaexbour portfolio and non-classic models beconmagel portion of our business, we expect
this trend to continue. The additional costs in raaterials, duties and processes associated veifie thtyles ultimately result in lower gross
profit margins. These changes in our manufactustngcture, coupled with the inventory write-dowdsgrease in revenues and increase in
returns and allowances were primarily responsibtetie decrease in gross profit for the year erdecember 31, 2008 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2007.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rsiteese December 31, 2007 increased our gross mhayghi6.4 million, in the year ended
December 31, 2008. We expect that sales at subgsichianpanies with functional currencies other th@U.S. dollar will continue to generate
a substantial portion of our overall gross prdfitcordingly, changes in foreign currency excharages could materially affect our overall
gross profit or the comparability of our gross firbbm period to period as a result of translatmg financial statements into our reporting
currency, the U.S. dollar.

Selling, general and administrative expsnseSelling, general and administrative expensesiged 41.9% to $368.8 million in the year
ended December 31, 2008, from $259.9 million ferykar ended December 31, 2007. As a percentags oévenues, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased to 51.1% in ¢lae gnded December 31, 2008 from 30.7% for the geded December 31, 2007. This
increase was primarily attributable to increasemarketing expenses of $22.3 million, of which $&ilion is related to corporate
sponsorships and $12.0 million is related to adsied expenses, increases in building expenses@b3nillion related to additional retail and
office space, increases in salaries and wages@88$tillion and increases in legal expenses of&hdillion as a result of increased legal fees
for ongoing litigation and intellectual propertyfercement. In addition, total share-based compé@rsapense was $18.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008, compared to $21.7 miiothe year ended December 31, 2007. Also includeslling, general and
administrative expenses for the year ended DeceB1het008 is a net loss on changes in currencyasgshrates for transactions denominated,
and settled or to be settled, in a currency othan the functional currency of the consolidatedtgof $25.5 million compared to a net gain on
changes in currency exchange rates of $10.1 milbothe year ended December 31, 2007.

Changes in the average foreign currenchanxge rates used to translate expenses from octidoal currencies to our reporting currency,
the U.S. dollar, from 2007 fiscal year to 2008 disgear contributed approximately $3.8 million tar @hange in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

During the 2008 fiscal year, we took certactions to reduce our selling, general and adinative expenses. Those actions included;
workforce reductions, office space reductions, eattlictions in certain discretionary spending, idizlg discontinuation of certain sponsorship
and consulting arrangements. We are continuingatuate our operating expenses, including sellg@meral and administrative expenses.
Should economic conditions further deteriorateemdnd for our products decline further, we may erpee further declines in revenues and
we may take additional actions to reduce our sgligeneral and administrative expenses further.

Restructuring charges. We recorded $8.5 million in restructuring chesdgn the year ended December 31, 2008, of whidh idillion
was reflected in restructuring charges and $0.89anilvas reflected in cost of sales. We did nobgggze any restructuring charges during the
year ended December 31, 20
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During 2008, we announced our decisiorettructure our North American operations. This sieoiincluded the closure of our Canadian
and Brazilian manufacturing facilities and the aditsation of distribution activities into other eting North American operations.
Accordingly, restructuring charges of $1.9 millieated to our facility operating leases were distiabd during the year ended December 31,
2008, as a firm "cease use" date was establishatithgeto these leases. This is our estimated éuxpense related to the future abandonment
of facilities under the operating leases in accocdavith ASC Topic 420EXxit or Disposal Cost Obligations"Accounting for Costs Associal
with Exit or Disposal Activities. We recorded $2rillion in the year ended December 31, 2008 relébezhrly termination costs for certain
equipment operating leases, cancellation of puecbatigations and freight and duty charges rel&eidansferring inventory and equipment to
the United States and Mexico facilities. Furthereyave recorded $4.5 million in termination benefitsounted for in accordance with
SFAS 112Employers' Accounting for Post Employment Benefda amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 andid@uded in ASC Topic
712"Compensation—Nonretirement Post Employment Behefit

We established reserves covering futurevknobligations related to the closure of our Caaadind Brazilian manufacturing operations
and the move of our Canadian distribution operatiGteserves at December 31, 2008 were $2.4 mdlohhave been included in the line
items accrued restructuring charges and long-tesmucturing in our consolidated balance sheets.

Impairment charges. Impairment charges were $45.8 million during ytear ended December 31, 2008. We did not recegmy
impairment charges during the year ended Decenthe2®7. During 2008, we recognized the impairnobigirges listed below.

. A $20.9 million impairment charge on fixed assetémarily related to equipment and shoe molds. Wéduated our productio
capacity at our facilities compared with demandgutions and capacity requirements and decidethan@on certain
manufacturing equipment that clearly representegxcapacity. The impairment charge on molds rédedboe styles that we
either no longer intend to manufacture or stylesafbich we have more molds on hand than necessanett projected demar

. A $0.6 million impairment charge related to patemtsch we no longer intend to utilize.

. A $0.3 million impairment charge related to theytrade name and customer relationships and $0lBmielated to the Jibbil
trade name.

. A $23.8 million write-off of goodwill and other irdinite lived intangible assets, consisting of $hillion in goodwill related to

the closure of Fury, and $22.8 million in goodwitlitten off as a result of an impairment analysis.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased 350.0%, or $1.4omjllo $1.8 million in the year ended DecemberZI)8. The increase
in interest expense is the result of larger borngsiagainst our Revolving Credit Facility for agkar portion of the year in 2008 compared to
2007.

Other income/expense, netOther income decreased 80.0%, or $2.4 milior$0.6 million in the year ended December 31, 200
decrease resulted primarily from a decrease iméatédearing cash and cash equivalents.

Income tax expense.During the year ended December 31, 2008, waegrézed an income tax benefit of $4.4 million opra-tax loss of
$189.5 million, compared to income tax expense7@.$ million on pre-tax income of $240.3 milliorr fine year ended December 31, 2007.
The effective income tax rate was a 2.3% tax berati during the year ended December 31, 2008 amedo a 30.0% tax expense rate du
the year ended December 31, 2007. The decrea$fedtivee tax rate is primarily the result of valigat allowances being recorded on net
deferred tax assets in tax
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jurisdictions where we believe it is not more likéhan not that those tax benefits will be realjzdae to our financial outlook as
December 31, 2008 and increases in reserves ferait tax positions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2009, we had $77.3 millioeash and cash equivalents. In August 2009, We fepaid our Revolving Credit Facility
with Union Bank of California, N.A. We anticipateat cash flows from operations will be sufficientnheet the ongoing needs of our business
for the next 12 months. However, in order to prevédiditional liquidity in the future and to helggort our strategic goals, we secured an
asset-backed revolving line of credit, which preasdis with up to $30 million in borrowings, as désed below. Additional future financing
may be necessary; however, due to current macroedarconditions and their affect on the global drethrkets, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to secure additional debtauity financing on acceptable terms to us or at all

On September 25, 2009, we entered intowdIRieg Credit and Security Agreement with PNC BaNKA. (the "Credit Agreement"),
which matures on September 25, 2012. The Credigémgent provides for an asset-backed revolving tfadiity of up to $30 million in total,
which includes a $17.5 million sublimit for borrawgis against our eligible inventory, a $2 milliorbbonit for borrowings against our eligible
inventory in-transit, and a $4 million sublimit fatters of credit. The total borrowings availabteler the Credit Agreement at any given time
are subject to customary reserves and reductiotigtextent our asset borrowing base changes. Bimys under the Credit Agreement are
secured by all of our assets, including all redelies, equipment, general intangibles, inventoryestment property, subsidiary stock and
leasehold interests. The Credit Agreement requise® prepay borrowings under the Credit Agreenretite event of certain dispositions of
property.

Principal amounts outstanding under thediC¥&greement bear interest at a two percent (28#)ngum over a rate that is the greater of
either (i) PNC's published reference rate, (ii) Heeleral Funds Open Rate in effect on such daygriashalf of one percent (0.5%) or, (iii) the
sum of the daily LIBOR rate and one percent (1.084h respect to domestic rate loans. Eurodollaroteinated principal amounts outstand
under the Credit Agreement bear interest at theauitree and one half percent (3.50%) premium avexte that is the greater of (i) the
Eurodollar rate, or (ii) one and one half percdn5Q%) with respect to Eurodollar loans, as appleaThe Credit Agreement requires monthly
interest payments with respect to domestic rated@and at the end of each period with respect todgllar rate loans.

As of December 31, 2009, an immaterial amewas outstanding under the Credit Agreement. mu2009, $0.5 million in fees and third-
party costs incurred to secure the Credit Agreemvené capitalized as deferred financing costs. Cireglit Agreement contains certain
customary restrictive and financial covenants. Veenn compliance with these financial covenant®asember 31, 2009.

Our ability to fund working capital needsdgplanned capital expenditures depends on ourdaperating performance and cash flow,
which in turn are subject to prevailing economiaditions and to financial, business and other fa¢tsome of which are beyond our control.

Due to the decline in revenues and incoraexperienced in 2008 and 2009, we took certaiorato right-size our production and
distribution capacity in those years. We may tadditional steps to right-size our business duriig®to be commensurate with current
revenue streams. Likewise, should revenues contmdecline in future periods, we may be requiethke further cost reduction actions in
order to maintain a level of liquidity necessaryrmeet our ongoing operational needs. Our abilityetarn to profitability is dependent on the
timely completion of these activities and there bamo assurance that any actions taken by usesililt in a return to profitability.
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Seasonal variations in product demand hedssociated changes in operating assets arlitigabin response to such seasonal variations
may directly and adversely affect our cash flovesrfroperating activities. Accordingly, cash flowsrfr operating activities for any period are
not necessarily indicative of cash flows from opie@gactivities to be expected for any other period

The changes in the global economy could affect our customers' liquidity and capital reseg and their ability to meet their payment
obligations to us which, in turn, would decreasarthredit terms and our ability to collect our acots receivable, which may have a material
adverse impact on our cash flows and capital regsuiVe continue to monitor our accounts receivableg and have recorded reserves as we
deem appropriate. Our accounts receivable balasoé Becember 31, 2009 was $50.5 million, an ineeezf $15.2 million compared to the
balance as of December 31, 2008. The increasecouats receivable was largely the result of higlaes in the fourth quarter of 2009
compared to the fourth quarter of 2008. Days salgstanding increased from 25.8 days at Decemhe2®18 to 34.1 days at December 31,
2009. This increase was driven by the grantingtfrn request and allowances to customers in tin¢hfquarter of 2008, which we felt was a
necessary action in response to the severe ecommwicturn and its impact on consumer demand fopoeducts and, accordingly, our
wholesale customers. The granting of return reguesd allowances to customers resulted in a higli@wvance for these matters, causing a
lower net accounts receivable balance for 2008.cbmebination of these factors artificially loweredr days sales outstanding for the fourth
quarter of 2008 by approximately 10 days.

We are a global business with operatiomeamy different countries, which requires cash ant®to be held in various different
currencies. The global market has recently expeeiemany fluctuations in foreign currency excharages which impacts our results of
operations and cash positions. The future fluctumatin foreign currencies may have a material impamur cash flows and capital resources.
Cash balances held in foreign countries have axhditirestrictions and covenants associated witimtiéhich adds increased strains on our
liquidity and ability to timely access and transfash balances between entities.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $77.3 amlin cash and cash equivalents. We consider uttezh@arnings of subsidiaries operating
outside of the U.S. to be indefinitely reinvested & is not our current intent to change this posi However, most of the cash held outside of
the U.S. could be repatriated to the U.S., but underent law, would be subject to U.S. federal atade income taxes, less applicable foreign
tax credits. In some countries, repatriation ofaiarforeign balances is restricted by local lawd eould have adverse tax consequences if we
were to move the cash to another country. Certaimties, including China, have monetary laws whidy limit our ability to utilize cash
resources in those countries for operations inrathentries. These limitations may affect our apitd fully utilize our cash resources for ne:
in the U.S. or other countries and may adversdgcabur liquidity. As of December 31, 2009, wech&b64.8 million of our total $77.3 million
in cash in international locations. This cash imrily used for the ongoing operations of the hass in the locations in which the cash is t
Of the $64.8 million, $16.0 million could potentiabe restricted, as described above. If the rengifi48.8 million were to be repatriated to
the U.S., we would be required to pay approximadly’ million in international withholding taxestwino offsetting credit. We believe that
there will be sufficient U.S. net operating los§&8$0OLs") to absorb any increases to U.S. net inc¢amel therefore, U.S. federal income tax)
brought about by potential cash repatriation. Ttaeeefull valuation allowances on the NOLs that lddue released to result in no tax effect or
cash tax payments for the U.S. if we were to régt@t$46.3 million in cash to the U.S. as of Decenfi, 2009.

We have entered into various operatingdeaisat require cash payments on a specified stsheduver the next five years we will make
payments of $127.2 million related to our operatease. See "Contractual Obligations" below. We pdacontinue to enter into operating
leases related to our retail stores. Our evaluatfarost reduction opportunities will include ara@ation of contracts for
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sponsorships, operating lease contracts and otinvéracts that require future minimum payments téesyin fixed operating costs. Any chan
to these contracts may require early terminaties fa& other charges that could result in significash expenditures.

Our inventories decreased to $93.3 milibDecember 31, 2009, from $143.2 million as of &wber 31, 2008. Since early 2008, we t
been actively managing our inventory levels throdghreased production and actively selling throogthexisting inventory with the goals of
decreasing inventories and increasing our cashiposiVe expect that new product introductionsjtitions on production capacities and
seasonal variations may cause our inventory teas® or decrease materially in the future as wesatl) meet changing market conditions.

During the years ended December 31, 2002808, we had net capital expenditures of $29IBomiand $76.2 million, respectively.
During 2008, most of our capital expenditures wagdicated to infrastructure expansion to meet gpeeted sales volume, particularly during
the first half of the year. Due to the revenue ieclve experienced in the latter half of 2008 and009, we altered our capital expenditure
strategy and, accordingly, during 2009, spent prilpnan certain infrastructure that we consideredbé critical to executing our business
strategy, rather than on expansion. We will corgittumake ongoing capital investments in moldsathdr tooling equipment related to
manufacturing new products and footwear stylesasag those related to opening additional retailes; however, we have slowed the pac
which we are opening new retail stores. We plaretinice our expenditures in our distribution and afiacturing due to our reduction in
revenues and are currently in the process of im@hdimg new software systems which we hope will dpgneater efficiencies to our distributi
strategy in the long term. We expect to continumtest in our global information systems infrasture to further strengthen our management
information and financial reporting capabilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our operating lease obligations, whichude various building and equipment transactioresnat reflected on our balance sheet. See
"Contractual Obligations" below for further detail.

We also guarantee payments to our thirdypaanufacturer in China for purchases of matdaathe manufacture of finished shoe
products, which is not reflected on our balanceeshiEhe maximum potential amount of future paymdémas we could be required to make
under the guarantee is € 2.1 million (approxima$dy0 million). See Note 15, "Commitments and Qugencies," in the consolidated financial
statements for further discussion.

At December 31, 2009, we had purchase comenits with our third-party manufacturers for $5&ilion in inventory.

On July 26, 2005, we entered into an amérmahel restated four-year supply agreement withrgjept S.P.A., the former majority owner
of Crocs Canada, pursuant to which hawse havexitiasive right to purchase the material for the ofanoture of finished shoe products,
except for certain current customer dealings (idiclg boot manufacturers). The supply agreementextended through June 30, 2010, and
provides that we meet minimum purchase requirententsaintain exclusivity throughout the term of tgreement. The pricing is to be agr
upon each quarter and fluctuates based on ordemelcurrency fluctuations, and raw material prices
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Contractual Obligations

The following table discloses aggregaterimfation about our contractual cash obligationsfd3ecember 31, 2009 and the periods in
which payments are due (in thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 year years years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 170,77 $ 44,74¢ $ 48,86: $ 33,647 $ 43,51
Long-Term Debt Obligation — — — — —
Corporate Sponsorshi 24C 212 14 14 —
Minimum Licensing Royalties(1 1,337 1,301 35 1 —
Purchase Obligatior 52,11¢ 52,11¢ — — —
FIN 48 estimated liability(2 29,16: 19,66¢ 9,49¢
Capital Lease Obligatior 1,551 64C 904 7 —
Total $ 255,17¢ $ 118,68. $ 59,31« $ 33,66¢ $ 43,51

Q) Includes royalties relating to licensing agreemevith companies such as Disney, MLB, and Nickeladeo

2) Represents estimated liabilities as a result obtiveadoption of the Financial Accounting Standd@dard ("FASB")
issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting fardgrtainty in Income Taxes ("FIN 48"), as codifiadAccounting
Standards Codification Topic 7<'Income Taxes.

We also guarantee payments to our thirtdypaanufacturer in China for purchases of matdaathe manufacture of finished shoe
products, which is also excluded from the tablee raximum potential amount of future payments tbem@any could be required to make
under the guarantee is € 2.1million, approxima$dy0 million. See Note 15- Commitments and Contiges in the consolidated financial
statements for further discussion.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements have been preparadcordance with accounting principles generadlgepted in the U.S., which require us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the regp@rnounts of assets, liabilities, revenues andresgs and related disclosure at the date of
our financial statements. On an ongoing basis, waduate our estimates and judgments, includingetiekated to revenue, intangible assets,
and stock compensation. We base our estimatesidgdhgnts on historical experience and on varioherdtactors that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resultbioh form the basis of our judgments about they@ag values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Aaegults or changes in the estimates or other jedgsof matters inherently uncertain that are
included within these accounting policies couldutem a significant change to the information mneted in the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the estimates and asisuns below are among those most important toraterstanding of our consolidated
financial statements contained in this report.

We consider certain accounting policieatesl to revenue recognition, reserves for uncaliecaccounts receivable, sales returns,
allowances and discounts, inventory valuation, stised compensation, income taxes and goodwilbtret intangible assets, impairment of
long-lived assets, acquisitions and restructurimgrges to be critical policies due to the estimatesjudgments involved in each.
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Revenue Recognition.The majority of our revenues are derived frohrolgsale sales to retailers. Our standard arranggeioreour
customers includes a valid purchase order or contveth no customer acceptance provisions. We neiegegevenues from sales of products
when:

. we enter into an agreement with a customer or perge evidence of an arrangement exists;

. delivery has occurred,;

. customer payment is deemed fixed or determinaldefr@e of contingencies or significant uncertaisit

. collection is reasonably assured; :

. title passes on shipment or on receipt by the custalepending on the arrangement with the customer.

Reserves for uncollectible accounts reddiza We make ongoing estimates relating to the ctalality of our accounts receivable and
maintain a reserve for estimated losses resultimg the inability of our customers to make requipagments. In determining the amount of
the reserve, we consider our historical level efltrlosses and make judgments about the creditinads of significant customers based on
ongoing credit evaluations. Since we cannot prddicire changes in the financial stability of oustomers, actual future losses from
uncollectible accounts may differ from our estinsad@d we may experience changes in the amounserfwes we recognize for accounts
receivable we deem uncollectible. If the financiahdition of some of our customers were to detat@rresulting in their inability to make
payments, a larger reserve might be required.drettent we determine that a smaller or larger vessrappropriate, we would record a credit
or a charge to selling, general and administraixgenses in the period in which we made such ardetation. We may also accept returns
from our wholesale and distributor customers, oexseption basis at the sole discretion of managefoe the purpose of stock re-balancing
to ensure that our products are merchandised iprthiger assortments. Additionally, at the sole ison of management, we may provide
markdown allowances to key wholesale and distribctistomers to facilitate the "in-channel" markdasfiproducts where we have
experienced less than anticipated sell-through.

Sales Returns, Allowances and Discount®V/e record reductions to revenue for estimatedaener returns, allowances and discounts
base our estimates of returns on historical ratesgstomer returns and allowances as well as theifipidentification of outstanding returns
that have not yet been received by us. We alsaaensther factors in forming our judgments to\arat these estimates, including the number
and success of new style introductions, customamitory levels and macroeconomic factors affeatingcustomers, the extent to which we
experience shipping delays or errors, known orectggl product defects and the seasonal naturer tfusiness and products. Certain of these
assumptions, including the impact of macroecondattors, the effects of seasonality, and the siscoErew style introductions, require
significant judgment by management. Accordinglyg #ttual amounts of customer returns and allowamdgsh are inherently uncertain, may
differ from our estimates. We have, in the pasinfbour estimates to be reasonable in light ofad@wuperience. If we determined that actual or
expected returns and allowances were significagréyater or lower than the reserves we had establjshe would record a reduction or
increase, as appropriate, to net sales in thegérizwhich we made such a determination. Provisfonsustomer specific discounts based on
contractual obligations with certain major custosnare recorded as reductions to net sales. Weadsod reductions to revenue for estimated
customer credits as a result of price mddkns in certain markets. Fluctuations in our eaténs for sales returns, allowances and discouny:
be caused by many factors, including, but not Behito, fluctuations in our sales revenue, changegimand for our products and customer
acceptance of new products we offer. During the geded December 31, 2008, we received a subdtaatizgber of return and allowance
requests from its
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wholesale customers that management believes werdrdlarge part, to wholesaler response to rdpidines in consumer spending on a
macroeconomic level as a result of the global esoo@ownturn as well as less-than-anticipated thedugh during the spring/summer season
in 2008. Management granted certain return reqaestsallowances to customers that it believed wiegegically important to our ongoing
business. Accordingly, our estimate for sales ret@nd allowances for the year ended December0BB, 2vas significantly higher than
historical estimates as a result of specific reserelated to these granted return and allowampests.

Management believes that the granting tofrrerequests and allowances to customers in regptothe severe economic downturn was
strategically important to our business. We cammetlict changes in macroeconomic trends, but dutrseugh has since improved in the
wholesale channel. Accordingly, we do not expegrtmt return requests and allowances to customeing future to the extent that we did
during the year ended December 31, 2008. Howewemay grant such requests in the future, on adifriiasis, should management deterr
returns are necessary to the future success dfumimess. We are not currently aware of any circantes that would, in the future, give ris¢
a significant change in sales returns and allowsasea result of the other aforementioned factmswe take into consideration when forming
our judgments regarding the adequacy of our sakesns and allowances reserves.

Inventory Valuation. At least quarterly, we evaluate our inventoogifions and make estimates regarding the netzeddé value of our
inventories and, if necessary, adjust them todket of cost or market. In our evaluation, we us@dard categories to classify inventory be
on the degree to which we believe that the produetg need to be discounted to sell within a reaslengeriod. Certain classifications result in
an impairment of inventory because the Net Readkz®¥hlue ("NRV") is less than the carrying valuetloé inventory. Our estimate of the NRV
of our impaired products is based on significadgjments made by management, including assumpthong éuture demand and market
conditions. Management considers, among other shiogrent sell-through of our products, recennhges in demand for our product as well
as shifting demand between the products we offebaljand regional economic conditions, historiegberience selling through liquidation &
"off-price” channels and the amount of inventoryh@amd. The ultimate results achieved in sellingeeg@and discontinued products in future
periods may differ significantly from managemeetsimates of net realizable value. Fluctuationsunestimated NRV of our inventory may
be caused by multiple factors, particularly giviee sensitivity of certain qualitative factors indilng those regarding global and regional
economic conditions as well as our ability to estienfuture demand and prices based on historigaErence and current sell-through. If we
estimate that the NRV of our inventory is less thi@current carrying cost of that inventory, wearel a write-down equal to the difference
between the cost of the inventory and the estimisifed. This write-down is recorded in cost of saleshe period in which such a
determination is made. Declines in the estimated/ Rour inventory, if the declines result in a teridown of our inventory balance, could
have a significant effect on our reported finanogsults.

From our inception and through 2007, weegigmced substantial growth due to the high conswlemand for our core products and our
expansion into new markets globally. During theryeaded December 31, 2008, we experienced a deolohemand due to the current
economic downturn and the challenges we face irciaedising our expanded product lines in existilglasale channels as well as lessening
demand for our products as such products reachra mature stage in their product life and competiemter the market with imitation
products that are sold at substantially lower gri@&ased on our estimate, we recorded inventoreyddwns of $76.3 million during the year
ended December 31, 2008 with an additional $4.2amiln charges related to losses on future pureltasnmitments for inventory with a
market value lower than cost, of which $2.1 milliwas included as accrued expenses, for the yeaddddcember 31, 2008. Please refer to
Note 3 of our Consolidated Financial Statement$as#t in the "Index To Consolidated Financial 8maents” of
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this Form 10-K. During the year ended Decembe2BD9, we executed against a plan to reduce ountoxe of impaired product and have
been successful in selling or otherwise disposingare than 91% of the product that was impairednduthe year ended December 31, 2008.

Stock-Based CompensationEffective January 1, 2006, we adopted StatemieRinancial Accounting Standards Statement 123Rare
Based Paymen;, as codified in ASC Topic 71&ompensation—Stock Compensatipwhich requires recognition of the fair value bfse-
based compensation over the vesting period of piera We adopted the prospective method for altlsbption grants issued prior to
August 15, 2005, which was the date we initiallgdia Registration Statement on Form S-1 with € & connection with our initial public
offering. Prior to August 15, 2005, we used theimim value method of measuring equity share optamssimilar instruments for either
recognition or pro forma disclosure purposes. Weinae to account for any portion of awards outdiag at the date of initial application
using the accounting principles originally appliedhose awards which were the provisions of APBa&bcodified in ASC 718
"Compensation—Stock Compensatiant its related interpretive guidance.

For stock option grants issued after Audiist2005, we applied the modified prospective méttunder this method we use the Black-
Scholes valuation model to determine the fair valueur stock options, which requires assumptienise made regarding our stock price
volatility, the expected life of the option and exped dividend rates. The volatility assumptionsengerived from our historical volatilities and
historical volatilities of competitors whose shaaes traded in the public markets. If factors cleaagd we use different assumptions for
estimating share-based compensation in future gerighare-based compensation expense may differiaigtin the future from that recorded
in the current period. The amount of stock-basedpansation expense recognized during any fiscaygean fluctuate based on, among other
things, future stock option grants, changes inestimated forfeiture rate pursuant to Topic 7C8mpensation—Stock Compensati¢itSC
718"), and changes in the assumptions used in ek Bcholes valuation model for future stock optipants. Because the calculation of the
estimate for stock-based compensation is reliamhohiple inputs, which in some cases are, theneselgstimates, an increase or decrease in
any of these variables could have a significargafbn the amount of expense recognized duringartiag period.

During the fourth quarter of 2009 we id&at an error in the calculation of stock based pensation for prior periods. To correct these
errors, we recorded additional stock based compiensaxpense of $4.5 million during the year enBedember 31, 2009. See "Recent Eve
for further discussion.

Income Taxes. In July 2006, the Financial Accounting StandaBdard ("FASB") issued FASB Interpretation No. A8¢counting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxd%-IN 48"), as codified in Accounting Standards @imdtion Topic 740'Income Taxes("ASC 740"). Effective
January 1, 2007, we adopted ASC 740, which pressr@bcomprehensive model for how a company shealtbnize, measure, present and
disclose in its financial statements uncertaingasitions that the company has taken or expedek®on a tax return. Though the validity of
any tax position is a matter of tax law, the boflgtatutory, regulatory and interpretive guidanoette application of the law is complex and
often ambiguous. Because of this, whether a taitiposwill ultimately be sustained may be uncertdimder ASC 740, the impact of an
uncertain tax position that is more likely than nbbeing sustained upon examination by the reletaating authority must be recognized at the
largest amount that is more likely than not to b&t@ined. No portion of an uncertain tax positiah be recognized if the position has less than
a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Also, undeiCABIO, interest expense is recognized on the fdunt of deferred benefits for uncertain
tax positions. The adoption of FIN 48, as codified\SC 740, did not have a material impact on ansolidated balance sheet, statement of
operations or cash flows.
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Our annual tax rate is based on our incataytory tax rates and tax planning opportuniieslable to us in the various jurisdictions in
which we operate. Significant judgment is requiredetermining our annual tax expense and in etialg@ur tax positions. We establish
reserves at the time we determine it is probablevillde liable to pay additional taxes relateccertain matters. We adjust these reserves,
including any impact on the related interest anutees, in light of changing facts and circumsesjcsuch as the progress of a tax audit.

Tax laws require items to be included in @ returns at different times than when thesm are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. As a result, the annual tax rate tefieia our consolidated financial statements ied#nt than that reported in our tax return (our
cash tax rate). Some of these differences are pemmbasuch as expenses that are not deductibléritaw return, and some differences reverse
over time, such as depreciation expense. Thesadidifferences create deferred tax assets anditiiedi Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on temporary differences betweefirtancial reporting and tax basis of assetsliabdities. The tax rates used to determine
deferred tax assets or liabilities are the enatztedates in effect for the year in which the diffieces are expected to reverse. Based on the
evaluation of all available information, we recagmiuture tax benefits, such as net operatingdasy forwards, to the extent that realizing
these benefits is considered more likely than not.

We evaluate our ability to realize the beenefits associated with deferred tax assets byzng our forecasted taxable income using both
historical and projected future operating resultts,reversal of existing temporary differencesabd& income in prior carry back years (if
permitted) and the availability of tax planningaségies. A valuation allowance is required to bhaldished unless management determines that
it is more likely than not that we will ultimatefgalize the tax benefit associated with a defeta@dsset.

Undistributed earnings of a subsidiaryaseounted for as a temporary difference, exceptibierred tax liabilities are not recorded for
undistributed earnings of a foreign subsidiary tratdeemed to be indefinitely reinvested in theifm jurisdiction. We have formulated a
specific plan for reinvestment of undistributedrsags of our foreign subsidiaries which demonstaat such earnings will be indefinitely
reinvested in the applicable tax jurisdictions. @dove change our plans, we would be required ¢onga significant amount of deferred tax
liabilities.

We recognize interest and penalties reladathrecognized tax benefits within the incomedagense line in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations. Accruedeasteand penalties are included within the relaaediability line in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetsln accordance with FASB Statement No. 14@0bdwill and Other Intangible Assétsas
codified in ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Othér("ASC Topic 350"), goodwill and intangible assetth indefinite lives are not
amortized but are instead measured for impairmteleat annually, or when events indicate thahgmairment exists. As required by ASC
Topic 350, in our impairment tests for goodwill asttier indefinite-lived intangible assets, we coreghe estimated fair value of goodwill and
other intangible assets to their carrying valughéf carrying value exceeds our estimate of fdinejave calculate impairment as the excess of
the carrying value over our estimate of fair valQer estimates of fair value utilized in goodwitichother indefinite-lived intangible asset tests
may be based upon a number of factors, includimgaesumptions about the expected future operagnigpmnance of our reporting units. Our
estimates may change in future periods due to, grotrer things, technological change, economic itimms, and changes to our business
operations or inability to meet business plans.

During the three month period ended Sep&rb, 2008, our stock price declined substantiatlyich represented a triggering event for
potential goodwill impairment. As of September 3008, we performed an interim goodwill impairmewnaleation, as required under ASC
Topic 350. Based on that evaluation we concludedjoodwill was impaired and we recorded a chargg2@ 8 million, which
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was our entire goodwill balance as of SeptembeRB08. Please refer to Note 5, "Goodwill and InthlegAssets," of our consolidated
financial statements.

Intangible assets that are determined te kiafinite lives, such as customer relationshipse technology, capitalized software, patents
and non-compete agreements are amortized overuseful lives and are measured for impairment eriign events or circumstances indicate
the carrying value may be impaired. In these cagesstimate the future undiscounted cash flowsetderived from the asset to determine
whether or not a potential impairment exists. # darrying value exceeds our estimate of futurésaodnted cash flows, we then calculate the
impairment as the excess of the carrying valudefasset over our estimate of its fair value.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsln accordance with ASC Topic 360-10-Bapairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, test long-
lived assets to be held and used for recoveralifityn events or circumstances indicate the carryéhge of a long-lived asset (asset group)
may be impaired. Events that may indicate the inmpaint of long-lived assets include; (i) a signifitdecrease in the market price of a long-
lived asset (asset group), (ii) a significant adeerhange in the extent or manner in which a loregtlasset (asset group) is being used or in its
physical condition, (iii) a significant adverse olge in legal factors or in the business climate toald affect the value of a long-lived asset
(asset group), including an adverse action or agsest by a regulator, (iv) an accumulation of cegisificantly in excess of the amount
originally expected for the acquisition or constioic of a long-lived asset (asset group), (v) cutrperiod operating or cash flow losses
combined with historical operating or cash flowdes of a particular long-lived asset group or adast of cash flows that demonstrates
continuing losses associated with the use of a-lweg asset group, and (vi) a current expectattiat, more likely than not, a long-lived asset
(asset group) will be sold or otherwise disposesigifificantly before the end of its previouslyiegtted useful life. We evaluate for these ty
of events or circumstances at least quarterly. Reedility of assets to be held and used is meddwye comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset group to future undiscounted cash flowea®rd to be generated by the asset group. An gisagd is the lowest level of assets and
liabilities for which identifiable cash flows ararfely independent of the cash flows of other assed liabilities. If an asset group is considi
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognizedésisured by the amount by which the carrying amotfitite asset group exceeds the fair
value of the asset group. Assets to be disposadeafeported at the lower of the carrying amourfainrvalue less costs to sell. Fair value is
determined by independent third-party appraishis net present value of expected cash flows, @rathluation techniques as appropriate.
Assets to be abandoned or from which no furtheefieis expected are written down to zero at theetthat the determination is made and the
assets are removed entirely from service.

During the year ended December 31, 2009ewmegnized an impairment charge of $18.5 milliarfiged assets, primarily related to
equipment and shoe molds, sales and marketingsamseétassets that we no longer intend to use asmsolidate our warehouse and
distribution space. These charges are recorddtimtpairment charges line item of the consolidatatement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2009, and are accounted for as dsdssabandoned in accordance with ASC Topic"B80perty, Plant and Equipment’Also
refer to Note 8, "Restructuring Activities," of oconsolidated financial statements.

We consider our recent operating and clashlbsses to indicate that the carrying valuessfets to be held and used may not be
recoverable. Through September 30,2009, we hadndieted that we had one asset group in supporsdbdtwear manufacturing, distribution
and sales business as this is the lowest levedgefta and liabilities for which identifiable cashwis are largely independent of the cash flow
other assets and liabilities. Beginning in Q4 2008 have determined that the lowest level of asssddiabilities for which identifiable cash
flows are largely independent of the cash flowstber assets and liabilities is at the retail stevel for assets involved in our retail business.
Assets not included in our retail business are idenad one asset group. We estimated the future
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undiscounted cash flows to be generated by out gssep and compared the future undiscounted dasls fto the carrying amount of the as
group to determine whether the asset group waseeable. Our estimates of future cash flows over#maining useful life of the asset group
were based on management's operating budgets mwh$ts. These budgets and forecasts take intadeoaison inputs from our regional
management related to growth rates, pricing, nevkets and other factors expected to affect thenassi, as well as management's forecasts
for inventory, receivables, capital spending, atiteocash needs. These considerations and expestatie inherently uncertain and, given our
limited operating history of as well as the globabnomic downturn, estimates included in our ofrggebrecasts beyond a three to six month
future period are extremely subjective. Accordinglgtual cash flows may differ significantly fromrcestimated future cash flows. Based on
our analysis the carrying value of our asset gnwap recoverable and there was no impairment irglica&ccordingly, we did not prepare
estimates of the fair value of the asset groupetbddd and used.

Due to the nature of impairment chargeandes in the reserves and expenses related todhasges incurred between reporting periods
can be significant as they are driven by, amongrathings, changes in our strategic operationalfegxaghcial decisions, global and regional
economic conditions, demand for our product ortstgfdemand between different products we offer ather corporate initiatives which may
eliminate or significantly decrease the realizatiérfluture benefits from our long-lived assets aesllt in additional impairment charges in
future periods. Likewise, significant impairmentcges recognized during a reporting period coulettemn adverse affect on our reported
financial results.

Restructuring Charges. We recognize restructuring charges relatedutqptans to close distribution and administratiaeilities
according to SFAS No. 112 Employers' Accounting for Postemployment Benefitsaraendment of FASB Statements No. 5 ané&g 3"
codified in ASC Topic 712 Compensation—Nonretirement Post Employment Befiefitconnection with these activities, we recogniz
restructuring charges for employee terminationscast other restructuring-related costs. We alsogrize restructuring charges related to our
future expense related to the future abandonmefatcdities under the operating leases in accordamith FASB Statement No. 146, "
Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disgddsctivities”, included in ASC Topic 42CEXxit or Disposal Cost Obligations"During the
year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded $14lipmiih restructuring charges for the closure ofimas warehouses and office buildir
and employee severances as well as settlemeneanohation of contracts prior to term. Please r&de¥ote 8, "Restructuring Activities," of
our consolidated financial statements.

The recognition of these restructuring gearrequire that we make certain judgments anthatts regarding the nature, timing and
amount of costs associated with the planned ekitigc To the extent our actual results in exititgse facilities differ from our estimates and
assumptions, we may be required to revise the at#grof future liabilities, requiring the recogaitiof additional restructuring charges or the
reduction of liabilities already recognized. At ttred of each reporting period, we will evaluatebmaining accrued balances to ensure thi
excess accruals are retained and the utilizatiagheoprovisions are for their intended purposeceoadance with developed exit plans. Due to
the nature of restructuring charges, changes itiahgities and expenses related to these chargesred between reporting periods can be
significant as they are driven by, among otherghjrour strategic operational and financial deoisiglobal and regional economic conditions,
staffing levels relative to demand for our produansl other corporate initiatives which may elimentite need for certain assets or staff
positions in our locations. Significant restructigricharges could adversely affect our reportechfiied results in the reporting period in which
the charges are recognized and, to the extenteveeguired to make future cash payments for itarok as severance and lease buyouts or
penalties, our liquidity.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB Stateémen 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 45(®hich amends FASB
Interpretation No. FIN46(R)Y;onsolidation of Variable Interest Entitig8FIN 46 (R)") and is incorporated into ASC Topit(8
Consolidation, to require an enterprise to perform an analysetermine whether the enterprise's variableeastegives it a controlling
financial interest in a variable interest entityda require ongoing reassessments of this nafime standard amends certain guidance in
FIN 46 (R) for determining whether an entity isaiable interest entity and adds additional reabsrsition for making this determination wt
facts or circumstances change. The standard regemeanced disclosures that will provide more parent information about an entity's
involvement in a variable interest entity. The st is effective for the fiscal year that begifteraNovember 15, 2009. We do not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material impaabur consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Accountiran8ards Update ("ASU") 2009-0Generally Accepted Accounting Principles; Amendsent
based on Statement of Financial Accounting Starsltlal 168-The FASB Accounting Standards Codifinadind the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principl("ASU 2009-01"), to amend the ASC Topic 1@enerally Accepted Accounting Principle® establish the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sewfcauthoritative accounting principles recognibgdhe FASB to be applied in the
preparation of financial statements. The codifmatlso contains interpretive releases of the Skd&ufederal securities laws and is a source
of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. ASU 2d@Bis effective for financial statements issuedifiterim and annual periods ending after
September 15, 2009 and shall be applied prospéctiVee adoption of this standard did not have gemi@ impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009M8asuring Liabilities at Fair Valu¢’ASU 2009-05"), an update to ASC Topic 820-10,
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosi—Other. ASU 200965 provides amendments to the fair value measureafdiabilities and provide
clarification on valuation techniques for liab#isi for which a quoted price for an identical liapiln an active market is not available. The
amendments also clarify that, when estimating #firevialue of a liability, a reporting entity is n@quired to include a separate input or
adjustment to other inputs relating to the existeoica restriction that prevents the transfer eflihbility. ASU 2009-05 also provides
amendments to clarify that both a quoted pricenimetive market for the identical liability at theeasurement date and the quoted price for the
identical liability when traded as an asset in etiva market when no adjustments to the quotecefche asset are required are Level 1 fair
value measurements. The guidance provided in AS19-25 is effective for the first reporting periaddluding interim periods) beginning
after September 1, 2009 and shall be applied pobispé/. We do not expect the adoption of this d&nd to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Credit and Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk tcetttent that interest rates change due to inflatioother factors. This exposure is directly radate
to our normal operating and funding activities. August 3, 2009, we fully repaid our remaining obtign on our Revolving Credit Facility
with Union Bank of California, N.A. prior to its maity date of September 30, 2009. The RevolvingdirFacility effectively terminated upon
full repayment. On September 25, 2009, we entaredd Credit Agreement with PNC Bank N.A. (the "Bgrfor an asset-backed revolving
credit facility which provides for borrowings of wp $30.0 million in total, subject to certain mxgions. Principal amounts outstanding under
the Credit Agreement will bear interest at a twecpat (2%) premium over a rate that is the greateither (i) the Bank's published reference
rate, (ii) the Federal Funds Open Rate
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in effect on such day plus one half of one per¢@ri%), or (iii) the sum of the daily LIBOR ratedanne percent (1.0%), with respect to
domestic rate loans. Eurodollar denominated prad@mounts outstanding under the Credit Agreemdhbear interest at the sum of three
one half percent (3.50%) premium over a rate théte greater of (i) the Eurodollar rate, or (ifecand one half percent (1.50%) with respe
Eurodollar loans, as applicable. The Credit Agresmequires monthly interest payments with respedomestic rate loans and at the end of
each period with respect to Eurodollar rate lo&ssof December 31, 2009, an immaterial amount wastanding under the Credit Agreement,
accordingly, there is minimal impact from interestie risk related to our Credit Agreement.

We earned interest income of $0.5 millionowrr cash and cash equivalents during the yeaadebBécember 31, 2009. We have performed
a sensitivity analysis to estimate our exposumaaoket risk of interest rates, and if the weigldagdrage rate of return on cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash were to increadeaease by 1%, the impact on interest incomeadvoalapproximately $0.8 million, net of
tax during the year ended December 31, 2009.

Foreign Currency Exchange Ri

We have significant revenues from foreigles in recent periods. While the majority of exgenattributable to our foreign operations are
paid in the functional currency of the country ihigh such operations are conducted, we pay therityagd our overseas third-party
manufacturers in U.S. dollars. Our ability to it products in foreign markets and the U.S. dalidue of the sales made in foreign curren
can be significantly influenced by foreign currerilictuations. A decrease in the value of foreigmrencies relative to the U.S. dollar could
result in downward price pressure for our prodoctiosses from currency exchange rates. We haverpesd a sensitivity analysis to estimate
our exposure to market risk of foreign exchangesdf the U.S. dollar were to increase or decreas@pplicable, in value by 1%, the impact
on international sales of $389.1 million during ffear ended December 31, 2009 would have beercessise or decrease, as applicable, in
consolidated revenues by $3.9 million. The volgtitif the applicable exchange rates is dependentamy factors that cannot be forecast with
reliable accuracy. In the event our foreign salespurchases increase and are denominated in cigsasther than the U.S. dollar, our
operating results may be affected by fluctuationthe exchange rate of currencies we receive fon sales. Please see Item 7, "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations,” for a discussion of thedotwf foreign exchange rate variances
experienced in the year ended December 31, 2009n¥&tad to, in the future, engage in foreign exg®hedging contracts to reduce our
economic exposure to changes in exchange rate®. dfo engage in foreign exchange hedging, thedgorekchange hedging contracts will be
entered into to hedge specific commitments andigatied transactions but not for speculative afitig purposes. As of December 31, 2009,
we did not have any unsettled foreign exchange ihgdgpntracts.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Bta

The consolidated financial statements ampkementary data are as set forth in the "Index®nsolidated Financial Statements" on
page F-1.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accouants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
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ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Under the supervision and with the parttign of our senior management, including our Chiedécutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of the design and operation of our disclosaméols and procedures, as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangeadof the end of the period covered by this ahreport (the "Evaluation Date"). Based
on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer aldief Financial Officer concluded that as of thealation Date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective such that the informatiating to us, including our consolidated sulzgigis, required to be disclosed in our
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") reddrts recorded, processed, summarized and repwiitdih the time periods specified in
SEC rules and forms, and (i) is accumulated amdroanicated to our management, including our Chiefdative Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisioegarding required disclosure.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéinancial Reporting

Management is responsible for establislimg) maintaining adequate control over financiabrépg, as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Our management asdete effectiveness of our internal control direancial reporting as of December 31,
2008, using the criteria set forth in thternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this assessmanagement has concluded that our internal cbower financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2009.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent stgied public accounting firm, has issued an aitiest report on our internal control over
financial reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm

During the three months ended Decembe2@09, we did not make any material changes tordarnal control over financial reporting
that have materially affected, or are reasonakblyito materially affect, our internal control e\faancial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Crocs, Inc.
Niwot, Coloradc

We have audited the internal control owearicial reporting of Crocs, Inc. and subsidiaftee "Company") as of December 31, 2009,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission. The Company's management is resporfsibheaintaining effective internal control ovendincial reporting and for its assessr
of the effectiveness of internal control over finah reporting, included in the accompanying "Magagnt Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility is to egps an opinion on the Company's internal contrel éimancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed by, or underupersision of, the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pars performing similar functions, and effected g tcompany's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comgfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tree&sof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statetsin accordance with generally accepted acaogiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amdtirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of ingd control over financial reporting, includingetpossibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatbtected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintainedalirmaterial respects, effective internal contreéofinancial reporting as of December 31,
2009, based on the criteria establishethtarnal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#e ended December 31, 2009 of the Company anepart dated February 25, 2010
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarst@tements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 25, 2010
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ITEM 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpoate Governance

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to our definitivexgrstatement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12¢glafter December 31, 2009.

Code of Ethics

We have a written code of ethics in pldw tipplies to all our employees, including oungipal executive officer, principal financial
officer, and controller. A copy of our business ead conduct and ethics policy is available onwabsite: www.crocs.com. We are require:
disclose any change to, or waiver from, our codetloics for our senior financial officers. We intieto use our website as a method of
disseminating any change to, or waiver from, owifiess code of conduct and ethics policy as perdiiyy applicable SEC rules.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to our definitivexgrstatement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12§ slafter December 31, 2009.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficid Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to our definitivexgrstatement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12§ slafter the end of the fiscal year ended Decer@be009, with the exception of those
items listed below.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Corpensation Plans

As shown in the table below, as of Decen®#ier2009, we reserved 7,755,254 shares of comibock for future issuance on exercise of
outstanding options under equity compensation plans

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Number of for Future
Securities Weighted Average Issuance Under
to be Issued Exercise Price of Plans, Excluding
on Exercise of Outstanding Securities Available
Plan Category Outstanding Options Options in First Column
Equity compensation plans appro\
by stockholders(1)(2 7,621,020 $ 7.7¢ 1,756,87.
Equity compensation plans not
approved by stockholders( 134,22¢ $ 0.5¢ —
Total 7,775,25. 1,756,87.

Q) On July 9, 2007, at the annual stockholders' mgetinr stockholders approved the 2007 Equity IrigerRlan (the "200
Plan"), which previously had been approved by aart of directors. The 2007 Plan was effectivefaluly 19, 2007.
The total number of shares of our common s
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available for distribution under the 2007 Plan,30®,000, subject to adjustment for future stodksspstock dividend:
and similar changes in our capitalization.

(2) On April 27, 2005, our board of directors adopteel 2005 Equity Incentive Plan ("the 2005 Plan").January 10, 2006,
our board of directors amended the 2005 Plan te&se the number of shares of our common stockalaifor issuanc
under the 2005 Plan from 11,681,000 shares to 7200 shares. Following the adoption of the 20@hPho future
grants may be made from the 2005 Plan.

3) Represents noplan stock options granted to our officers, direxctand employees prior to the adoption of the 2DQity
Incentive Plan. Following the adoption of the 2@0@n, no future grants may be made from this

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Tranactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to our definitivexgrstatement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12¢glafter December 31, 2009.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to our definitivexgrstatement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12¢glafter December 31, 2009.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(1) Financial Statements
The financial statements filed as parthid teport are listed on the index to financiatestzents on page F-1.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have bamitted because they are not required, are ndicapte or the information is included in the
Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

(3) Exhibit list

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Crocs,. lfiacorporated herein by reference
Exhibit 4.1 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration Staten@mntorm S-8, filed on March 9, 2006 (File
No. 33:-132312)).

3.1 Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certiéiaatt Incorporate of Crocs, Inc.
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.Ctocs, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on July 12, 2007 (File No. 0-51754)).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Crocs, Inc. (Inacated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration Staten@mntorm S-8, filed on March 9, 2006 (File
No. 33:-132312)).

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate (Incorporate@indsy reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Crocs, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 3eld bn August 15, 2005 (File No. 333-
127526)).

10.1*  Form of Indemnity Agreement between Crocs, Inc. @ach of its directors and executive
officers (Incorporated herein by reference to E&HiB.1 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration
Statement on Form-1, filed on August 15, 2005 (File No. =-127526)).

10.2*  Crocs, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the "200&nP) (Incorporated herein by referenc:
Exhibit 10.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration StatetrmmForm S-1, filed on August 15, 2005
(File No. 33:-127526)).

10.3*  Amendment No.1 to the 2005 Plan (Incorporated hdvgireference to Exhibit 10.2.2 to
Crocs, Inc.'s Registration Statement on ForddAS{Amendment No. 4], filed on January
2006 (File No. 33-127526)).

10.4*  Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under tt#2 Plan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Crocs, Inc.'s RegigiraStatement on Form S-1, filed on
August 15, 2005 (File No. 3-127526)).

10.5*  Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option for Non-Expt Employees under the 2005 Plan
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.£tocs, Inc.'s Registration Statement on
Form &-1, filed on August 15, 2005 (File No. &-127526)).

10.6*  Form of Stock Purchase Agreement under the 2005 (laorporated herein by reference
Exhibit 10.5 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration StatetmemForm S-1, filed on August 15, 2005
(File No. 33:-127526)).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14*

10.15*

10.16%

10.17

10.18%

10.21*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under th@2@lan (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration Statetr@mForm S-1, filed on August 15, 2005
(File No. 33:-127526)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice undier 2005 Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Crocs, Inc.'s RegigiraStatement on Form S-1, filed on
August 15, 2005 (File No. 3-127526)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@5 Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Crocs, Inc.'s RegigiraStatement on Form S-1, filed on
August 15, 2005 (File No. 3-127526)).

Form of NonStatutory Stock Option Agreement under the 2005 Htecorporated herein |
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Crocs, Inc.'s RegigiraStatement on Form S-1, filed on
August 15, 2005 (File No. 3-127526)).

Stock Purchase Agreement among 4246519 Canadakinproject Group S.p.A., 3107019
Canada, Inc. and Daniel J. Hunter dated as of 28n2004 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Crocs, Inc.'s Regt&in Statement on Form S-1, filed on
August 15, 2005 (File No. 3-127526)).

Asset Purchase and Property Transfer AgreemeneleetMana Phylon Tech S.A. de C.V.
and Crocs Mexico, S.de.R.L de C.V. dated as of|&&; 2005 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Crocs, Inc.'s Regtfdn Statement on Form S-1, filed on
August 15, 2005 (File No. 3-127526)).

Asset Purchase and Property Transfer AgreementketBt. Vrain Trading, LLC, d/b/a
Crocs Hawaii, LLC and the Registrant dated May2)5 (incorporated herein by refere
to Exhibit 10.16 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration 8ta¢nt on Form S-1, filed on August 15,
2005 (File No. 33-127526)).

Board of Directors Compensation Plan dated Jun@@%9, (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s Quayt&éport on Form 10-Q, filed on August 6,
20009).

Amended and Restated 2007 Senior Executive Def€oadpensation Plan and Non-
Qualified Plan Trust (incorporated herein by refieeeto Exhibit 10.15 to Crocs, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form -K, filed on March 17, 201C

Distribution Agreement between Crocodile Distribuatiand the Registrant dated as of
April 1, 2005 (incorporated herein by referenc&ihibit 10.19 to Crocs, Inc.'s Registration
Statement on Form-1, filed on August 15, 2005 (File No. -127526)).

Kiosk Agreement between Crocodile Kiosk, LLC and Registrant dated as of July 1, 2005
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1a®Crocs, Inc.'s Registration Statement on
Form &1, filed on August 15, 2005 (File No. &-127526)).

Amended and Restated Agreement for Supply betwegndject S.p.A. and the Registrant
dated as of July 26, 2005 (incorporated hereireglfigrence to Exhibit 10.21 to Crocs, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Forr-1, filed on August 15, 2005 (File No. :-127526)).

Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement between thed®aamt and Raymond D. Crogh
dated September 1, 2004 (incorporated herein leyge€e to Exhibit 99.9 to Crocs, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed on March 9, 2006 (File No. 3-132312)).
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Ezmggr Description

10.23* Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement between theidRegit and Ronald R. Snyder da
September 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by refereme&shibit 99.12 to Crocs, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed on March 9, 2006 (File No. 3-132312).

10.26  Membership Interest Purchase Agreement among Cirecsand the Members of
Jibbitz, LLC, dated September 13, 2006 (incorpatéierein by reference to Exhibit 10.4(
Crocs, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filedNovember 13, 2006 (File No. 000-
51754)).

10.27* 2008 Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated herein freace to Exhibit 10.1 to Crocs, Inc.'s
Current Report on Formr-K, filed on July 12, 2007 (File No. 0-51754)).

10.28* 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated hereirrdfgrence to Exhibit 10.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s
Current Report on Formr-K, filed on July 12, 2007 (File No. 0-51754)).

10.29* Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under2B87 Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s Quayt&éport on Form 10-Q, filed on
November 14, 2007 (File No. 0-51754)).

10.30* Form of NonStatutory Stock Option Agreement under the 2007 Blecorporated herein |
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s Quayt&éport on Form 10-Q, filed on
November 14, 2007 (File No. 0-51754)).

10.31* Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement fomNeEmployee Directors under the 2(
Plan (incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBiB8%o Crocs, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q, filed on November 14, 2007 (File No. (-51754)).

10.32* Employment Agreement dated as of January 16, 290Gt between Crocs, Inc. And
Russell Hammer (incorporated herein by referendextubit 10.1 to Crocs, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q, filed on May 15, 2009 (File No. 0-51754)).

10.43* Employment Agreement dated February 9, 2009 bybatdeen Crocs, Inc. and John
McCarvel (incorporated herein by reference to EiHib.1 to Crocs, Inc.'s Current Report
on Form &K, filed on February 13, 2009 (File No. (-51754)).

10.44* Employment Agreement dated February 9, 2009 bybatdeen Crocs, Inc. and John
Duerden (incorporated herein by reference to CufReport on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2,

10.47* Board of Directors compensation plan dated Jun@89 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Crocs, Inc.'s Quarterly Repartform 10-Q, filed on May 7, 2009 (File
No. 00(-51754))

10.48* Separation agreement between Ronald R. Snyder aud,Gnc. dated June 30, 2009
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.&tocs, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q, filed on May 7, 2009 (File No. 0-51754)).

10.49 Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated &aper 25, 2009, by and among
Crocs, Inc., Crocs Retail, Inc., Crocs Online, J@@cean Minded, Inc., Jibbitz LLC,
Bite, Inc. and PNC Bank, N.A. (incorporated herdgynreference to Current Report on
Form ¢-K filed with the Securities and ExchangeCommissiarSeptember 30, 200¢
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.50 First Amendment to Revolving Credit and8itg Agreement, dated October 14, 2009, by
and among Crocs, Inc., Crocs Retail, Inc., Crockn@ninc., Ocean Minded, Inc.,
Jibbitz LLC, Bite, Inc. and PNC Bank, N.A. (incamated herein by reference to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on October 15,
2009)
10.51ft Confidential separation agreement and Generalgelbg and between Crocs, Inc. and Erik
Rebich, dated December 31, 2(
211t Subsidiaries of the Registra
23.11t Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLI
31.11tt Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 13¢a) ol
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adoptedipatgo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act.
31.21tt Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adoptedipatgo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act.
321t Certification of the Chief Executive Officer andi€hFinancial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Segiérof the Sarban-Oxley Act.
* Compensatory plan or arrangement
T The Registrant has been granted confidential treatnvith respect to portions of these exhibits.

Tt Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized, as of February 25, 2010.
CROCS, INC.

a Delaware Corporatic

By: /s/ JOHN H. DUERDEN

Name: John H. Duerde
Title: President and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidgrelow as of February 25, 2010 by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOHN H. DUERDEN President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director February 25, 2010
John H. Duerde (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ RUSSELL C. HAMMER Senior Vice President—Finance,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Offic
Russell C. Hammer (Principal Financial and Accounting February 25, 2010
Officer)
/s/ W. STEPHEN CANNON
Director February 25, 2010
W. Stephen Cannc
/sl RAYMOND D. CROGHAN
Director February 25, 2010
Raymond D. Crogha
/s RONALD L. FRASCH
Director February 25, 2010
Ronald L. Frascl
/s/ PETER A. JACOBI
Director February 25, 2010
Peter A. Jacot
/s/ RICHARD L. SHARP
Chairman of the Board February 25, 2010
Richard L. Sharj
/sl THOMAS J. SMACH
Director February 25, 2010

Thomas J. Smac
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Crocs, Inc.
Niwot, Coloradc

We have audited the accompanying cons@ibtlance sheets of Crocs, Inc. and subsidigdhies'Company”) as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, and the related consolidated stateménfzeoations, stockholders' equity (deficit), amdit flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2009. These financitdments are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemersiscban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated finansi@tements present fairly, in all material respettie financial position of Crocs, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008treniesults of their operations and their cash $léov each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accimgnprinciples generally accepted in the United&taf America.

We have also audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting OgbtdBoard (United States), the Compa
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2009, based on the criteria establighkddrnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datdauzey 25, 2010 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtrver financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 25, 2010
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CROCS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Revenue! $ 64576 $ 721,58¢ $ 847,35
Cost of sale: 337,72( 486,72: 349,70:
Restructuring charge 7,08¢ 901 —
Gross profil 300,96: 233,96¢ 497,64¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 311,59: 341,51¢ 268,97¢
Foreign currency transaction losses (gains) (665) 25,43¢ (10,059
Restructuring charge 7,62:% 7,664 —
Goodwill impairment charge — 23,861 —
Asset impairment chargs 26,08t 21,917 —
Charitable Contribution 7,51( 1,84¢ 95¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (51,189 (188,287 237,76
Interest expens 1,49 1,79¢ 43¢
Gain on Charitable Contributic (3,169 — —
Other expense (income), r (895) (565) (2,999
Income (loss) before income tax (48,62 (189,51() 240,32t
Income tax expense (benel (6,547%) (4,439 72,09¢
Net (loss) incomt $ (42,07 $ (185,07 $  168,22¢
Income (loss) per common sha
Basic $ 0.49 3 (229 $ 2.0¢
Diluted $ 049 3 (229 $ 2.0C
Weighted average common shal
Basic 85,112,46 82,767,54 80,759,07
Diluted 85,112,46 82,767,54 84,194,88

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisents.
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CROCS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 77,34: $ 51,66¢
Restricted cas 1,144 —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfaoants of $3,973 an
$5,262, respectivel 50,45¢ 35,30¢
Inventories 93,32¢ 143,20!
Deferred tax assets, r 7,35¢ 11,36¢
Income tax receivabl 8,611 24,417
Other receivable 16,14( 4,64
Prepaid expenses and other current a 12,87 8,77:
Total current asse 267,25¢ 279,37:
Property and equipment, r 71,08 95,89:
Restricted cas 1,50¢€ 2,92:
Intangible assets, n 35,98¢ 40,89:
Deferred tax assets, r 18,47¢ 21,23
Other asset 15,43! 15,69:
Total Assets $ 409,73¢ $ 455,99¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 23,43 $ 35,131
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 53,58( 50,07¢
Deferred tax liabilities, ne 9 30
Accrued restructuring charg 2,61¢ 1,43¢
Income taxes payab 6,371 24,42(
Note payable, current portion of lc-term debt and capital lea
obligations 64C 22,43
Total current liabilities 86,65¢ 133,53
Long term debt and capital lease obligations, fieuaent portior 912 —
Deferred tax liabilities, ne 2,192 2,915
Long term restructuring 52C 95¢
Other liabilities 31,83¢ 31,427
Total liabilities 122,11¢ 168,83t
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6, 9 anc
Stockholders' equity
Common shares, par value $0.001 per share; 250@D@uthorizes
86,224,760 issued and 85,659,581 shares issuedusstdnding in
2009, 83,543,501 issued and 83,019,501 issuedwtsthoding in
2008 85 84
Treasury Stock, at cost, 565,179 and 524,000 shagzectively (25,260) (25,02)
Additional paic-in capital 266,47 232,03
Deferred compensatic — (24¢€)
Retained earning 22,15¢ 64,23:
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 24,16¢ 16,077
Total stockholders' equit 287,62( 287,16:
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equ 409,73¢ $ 455,99

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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CROCS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY (DEF ICIT)

(In Thousands)

Accummulated

Other Total Stock
Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Comprehensive  Holders  Comprehensive
Paid in Deferred Retained Equity
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Compensation Earnings Income (Deficit) Income (Loss)

BALANCE—December 31, 200 78,68 $ 79 — % — $ 131,79 $ (5,702 ¢ 81,08. $ 1,006 $ 208,25¢
Amortization of stock compensati — — — — 18,57¢ 3,10¢ — — 21,68
Excess tax benefit stock based compensi — — — — 43,21¢ — — — 43,21¢
Forfeitures — — — — (195) 19t — — —
Exercises of stock options and vesting of

shar-based award 4,04( 4 — — 18,54 — — — 18,54°
Treasury Stocl (524) — 524 (25,029 — — — — (25,02)
Net income — — — — — — 168,22¢ — 168,22( $ 168,22¢
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — — — 9,207 9,20: 9,20:
Total comprehensive lo: $ 177,43:
BALANCE—December 31, 20C 82,19¢ $ 83 524 $ (25,029 $ 211,93t $ (2,402 $ 249,30¢ $ 10,20¢ $ 444,11
Amortization of stock compensati — — — — 16,95: 1,38¢ — — 18,33¢
Forfeitures — — — — (131) 131 — — —
Exercises of stock options and vesting of

shar-based award 821 1 — — 3,281 637 — — 3,91¢
Net loss — — — — — — (185,076 — (185,076 $ (185,074
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — — — 5,86¢ 5,86¢ 5,86¢
Total comprehensive lo: $ (179,20%)
BALANCE—December 31, 200 83,01¢ $ 84 524 $ (25,02 $ 232,03 $ (246) $ 64,23 $ 16,077 $ 287,16:
Amortization of stock compensati — — 17,18¢ 20¢ — — 17,397
Tender Offel — — 16,197 — — — 16,197
Excess tax benefit stock based compens: — — — — — — —
Forfeitures (11€) — — — (299) 38 — — (163)
Exercises of stock options and vesting of

shar-based award 1,85¢ 1 — — 1,24¢ — — — 1,24¢
Adjustment for prior period RSA Grar 93¢
Treasury Stocl (41) — 41 (23¢) — — — — (23¢)
Net loss — — — — (42,07%) — (42,079 $ (42,07¢)
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — 8,091 8,091 8,091
Total comprehensive lo: $ (33,987
BALANCE—December 31, 20C 85,65¢ $ 85 565 $ (25,26() $ 266,47: $ — $ 2215* $ 24,16¢ $ 287,62

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CROCS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net (loss) incoms

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rReshcprovided by operating activiti

Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss on disposal of fixed ass:
Unrealized loss (gain) on foreign exchai
Deferred income taxe
Goodwill impairment
Asset impairmen
Inventory writdown charge
Loss on purchase commitmel
Charitable contribution
Gain on charitable contributiol
Non-cash restructuring charg
Bad debt expens
Share based compensat
Share based compensation from tender
Excess tax benefit on sh-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabi—net of effect of acquired business
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Accrued restructurin
Income taxes receivab

Cash provided by operating activiti

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of marketable securi
Sales of marketable securiti
Cash paid for purchases of property and equipi
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipr
Cash paid for intangible ass:
Restricted cas
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from note payable,
Repayment of note payable and capital lease oluigs
Debt issuance cos
Excess tax benefit on sh-based compensatic
Exercise of stock optior
Purchase of treasury sto
Cash (used in) provided by financing activit
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of yea
Cash and cash equivale—end of yea

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
$ (42,079 $ (18507) $ 168,22
36,67: 37,45( 20,94¢
(776) 632 19¢
(11,26) 21,57( (8,589
5,39¢ (5,429 (14,860
— 23,83 —
26,02 21,92 =
2,56¢ 76,25t 1,82¢
= 4,20( =
7,42¢ 1,84¢ 95¢
(3,149 = =
2,19¢ — —
1,31¢ 3,15¢ 4,671
15,23; 18,97¢ 21,68
16,19 = =
— — (43,219
(13,259 111,311 (83,949
44,82 16,39 (154,379
(13,919 (4,347) (10,919
(17,38) (60,169 27,14¢
(19,309 11,55 79,17
1,20¢ 2,39¢ =
23,16: (23,639 —
61,10¢ 72,861 8,03¢
(1,509 — (64,88
— — 87,20t
(20,059 (55,55 (57,379
2,47¢ 2,38¢ —
(6,979 (10,659 (16,529
327 (1,629 1,75:
— (7,979 (12,39)
(25,73) (73,439 (62,21)
292 76,02 7,00(
(23,079 (60,707 (542)
(45¢) — —
— — 43,21¢
1,29¢ 3,28¢ 18,54,
(239 — (25,02)
(22,19) 18,60 43,20(
12,49 (2,69) 3,75¢
25,67t 15,33( (6,32)
51,66¢ 36,33t 42,65¢
$ 7734 $ 51668 $ 3633
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CROCS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informa—cash paid during the year fc
Interest $ 1,491 $ 1581 $ 44
Income taxe: $ 12,39: $ 16,367 $ 19,99:
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash, investing, and financing activiti

In conjunction with the acquisitions made, lialgli were assumed as follov

Fair value of assets acquir $ — 3 — 3 7,074

Cash paic $ — % — 5,09:¢

Liabilities assume: $ — % — % 1,981
Accrued acquisitions purchase pr $ — & — 3,42¢
Assets acquired under capitalized lee $ 1,76( — —
Accrued purchases of property and equipn $ 282 $ 1033 $ 9,77¢
Accrued purchases of intangibl $ 2411 $ 2,268 $ 1,38¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CROCS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. FORMATION AND BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

Crocs, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collesljy the "Company") are engaged in the design, ldpmeent, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of consumer products, primarily casaiadl athletic shoes and shoe charms, from specésiys referred to as Croslite. Wholly-
operated subsidiaries include EXO ltalia ("EXO"jieh designs and develops EVA (Ethylene Vinyl Atetdased finished products,
primarily for the footwear industry; Jibbitz, LLCJ{bbitz"), a unique accessory brand with cologfaép-on charms specifically suited for the
Company's shoes; and Ocean Minded, LLC ("Ocean &titjd which designs, manufactures, markets andluigés high quality leather and
EVA based sandals primarily for the beach, adven&md action sports markets.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Consolidatior-The consolidated financial statements includeatteunts of Crocs, Inc. and all of its subsidiarfdsof the
Company's subsidiaries are 100% operated exce@rtms India Private Limited. The non-controllimgérest in this subsidiary are immaterial
and are included in Other (income) expenses—néh@Company's consolidated statements of incoména@ther liabilities on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets. All intepamy transactions and balances are eliminatedrisaddidation. The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Companykedtities that are wholly-operated by the Compasmriable interest entities for which the
Company is the primary beneficiary, and entitiest #ire not variable interest entities but are gptiontrolled subsidiaries of the Company.

Management Estimates-The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatlgepted
in the United States of America, ("GAAP"). These@mting principles require management of the Campga make certain estimates,
judgments and assumptions. Management believethiaistimates, judgments and assumptions made adoannting for items and matte
such as, but not limited to, the allowance for dtwltaccounts, sales-returns and discounts, impaitrassessments and charges, recoverability
of assets, including deferred tax assets, uncadaipositions, sharbased compensation expense, fair value of acqiritedgibles, assessm
of lower of cost or market on inventory, usefuklévassigned to long-lived assets, depreciatiorpemdsions for contingencies, are reasonable,
based on information available at the time theynaagle. These estimates, judgments and assumpétaraffect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities as of the date of the consoliddtrdncial statements, as well as the reported amsafirevenue and expenses during the periods
presented. Management also makes estimates irssegssaments of potential losses in relation to tenea or pending legal and tax matters.
Note 1¢&—Legal Proceedings. Actual results could materidiffer from these estimates. For matters not eeldb income taxes, if a loss is
considered probable and the amount can be reagoestihated, the Company recognizes an expensbdastimated loss. If there is the
potential to recover a portion of the estimated livem a third party, the Company makes a sepassiessment of recoverability and reduces
the estimated loss if recovery is also deemed fleba

Concentration of Risk—The Company's cash and cash equivalents are mmedtai several different financial institutionsamounts the
typically exceed U.S. federally insured limits nrfinancial institutions in international jurisdizhs where insurance is not provided. The
Company has not experienced any losses in suchluaiscand believes it is not exposed to significaadit risk.
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

The Company considers its concentratidnnetated to accounts receivable to be mitigatetheyCompany's credit policy, the
insignificance of outstanding balances owed by éadividual customer at any point in time and tle®graphic dispersion of these customers.

The Company relies on both internal an@metl manufacturers for its products. Establiskrgplacement source for the Company's
product offerings could require significant additié time and expense.

Variable Interest Entities—According to Financial Accounting Standards Bo@FASB") Interpretation ("FIN") No. 46R:Consolidatior
of Variable Interest Entities,"incorporated in Accounting Standards Codificaffmpic 810"Consolidations"("ASC 810"), Variable Interest
Entities ("VIES") lack one or more of the charaigtics of a voting interest entity as describedveh@SC 810 provides that a controlling
financial interest in an entity is present whereatity has one or more variable interests thatapzcted to absorb a majority of the entity's
expected losses, receive a majority of the entigsglual returns, or both. The entity that is dateed to be the primary beneficiary holds the
controlling financial interest and is required tmesolidate the VIE. Accordingly, the Company coigadks VIEs in which the Company is
deemed to be the primary beneficiary.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The carrying value of financial instruments, irdihg cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approtérfeir value due to their short maturities. Basadorrowing rates currently available to the
Company, with similar terms, the carrying valueshaf capital lease obligations and the line of itr@gproximate their fair values.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents represent cash andtsimarthighly liquid investments with maturities thfee
months or less at date of purchase. The Comparsidens receivables from credit card companies tocalsé equivalents, if received within f
days. The carrying amounts reflected in the codatdid balance sheet for cash and cash equivajgmtsxdmate fair value due to the short
maturities.

Restricted Cash-Restricted cash represents cash commitments plymalated to building and lease deposits. Thesifecation of
restricted cash on the consolidated balance skemireent or noncurrent is dependent on the duratidhe restriction and the purpose for
which the restriction exists.

Accounts Receivable-Accounts receivable represent amounts due fronomests. Accounts receivable are recorded at invaaredunts
net of reserves and allowances, are not collare@iand do not bear interest. The Company usbsstsestimate to determine the required
allowance for doubtful accounts based on a vaoéfactors, including the length of time receivabée past due, economic trends and
conditions affecting our customer base, significam-time events and historical write-off experien8pecific provisions are recorded for
individual receivables when we become aware ofsdorner's inability to meet its financial obligatson

Inventories—Raw materials and supplies are valued at the l@fveost, replacement cost, or net realizable valNierk in process and
finished goods are valued at the lower of costatrrealizable value. Cost is determined on the ifirsfirst out basis. The cost of work in
process and finished goods consists of the castvoimaterials and an applicable share of the ddabor and manufacturing overhead. See
Note —Inventories for further discussion.
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Marketable Securities-Marketable securities consist of certificates epasit with maturities greater than three montltsugnto three
years at the time of purchase. These securitieishvare classified as available for sale, are edrait fair value, with unrealized gains and lo
net of any tax effect reported in stockholders'ityoas accumulated other comprehensive loss, anfield at financial institutions. As of
December 31, 2009, marketable securities of $0lgomand $0.9 million are included in the Prepaitd Other Assets and the long-term Other
Assets line items, respectively, of the Compangtssolidated balance sheets. The Company did net fuay marketable securities as of
December 31, 2008.

Property and Equipment-Depreciation of machinery and equipment is computging the straightne method based on estimated us
lives ranging from two to five years. Leasehold imgments are amortized on the straight-line bagss their estimated economic useful lives
or the lease term, whichever is shorter. Duringyiers ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200 &aweded depreciation expense of
$29.7 million, $30.7 million and $17.0 million, yexctively, of which $15.6 million, $18.3 million r$11.3 million, were recorded in cost of
sales, with the remaining amounts recorded inrggljeneral and administrative expenses. See Neferdperty and Equipment for further
discussion.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets-In accordance with ASC Topic 36Broperty, Plant and Equipmen{"ASC 360"), the Company
estimates the future undiscounted cash flows tddoed from an asset to assess whether or nateate impairment exists when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value of a{lived asset, including property and equipment fimite-lived intangible assets, may be
impaired. If the carrying value exceeds the esenadifuture undiscounted cash flows, the Compatgutates the impairment as the excess of
the carrying value of the asset over the estimtits fair value. See Note 4—Property and Equipnaerd Note 5—Goodwill and Intangibles
for further discussion.

Capitalized Software-The Company capitalizes certain internal and estiesoftware acquisition and development costshibagefit
future years in accordance ASC Topic 33atangibles—Goodwill and Othér("ASC 350"). Internal-use capitalized softwarestsoare
amortized over their expected useful life, whiclgénerally seven years. The Company capitalizeainerosts associated with software suc
costs of employees and contractors devoting timteasoftware development projects and externattizosts for materials and services. In
costs associated with internally-developed-and-sséiivare are expensed until management deterntiagsed on its judgment, that the project
has reached the application development stager tigeapplication development stage is achievdaseguent additions, modifications or
upgrades to internal-use software are capitalizdyglto the extent that they allow the software éofprm a task it previously did not perform.
Software maintenance and training costs are exgeangbe period in which they are incurred. As @dember 31, 2009, capitalized software
consisted primarily of our enterprise resourceayssoftware, warehouse management software antdgf@ale software. Ongoing
assessments of the recoverability of capitalizétiveme development costs require management to foakgnents. At least annually, we
consider the potential impairment of capitalizeftvgare using guidance in ASC 360. In accordancé tiis guidance, we consider the
substantive service potential of the software, gearin the extent or manner in which the softwangsied or is expected to be used, significant
changes made or planned to be made to the softeadethe actual cost of software development orification compared to expected cost.
a result of this analysis, we determined that gpeimment should be recorded
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

related to capitalized software as of DecembelB09. See Note 5—Goodwill and Intangibles Assetdudher discussion.

Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwilin accordance with ASC Topic 350, goodwill reprasehe excess purchase price paid
the fair value of assets acquired and liabilitissumed in acquisitions. The Company assesses gbtmvimpairment annually on the last day
of the fourth quarter, or more frequently if eveatsl circumstances indicate impairment may havaroed. If the carrying value of goodwill,
including intangibles with indefinite lives, excesits implied fair value, the Company records apaimment loss equal to the difference.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets primarily contgi$ acquired trade names. See Note 5—Goodwilllatahgible Assets for further discussion.

Earnings per Share—Basic earnings (loss) per common share ("EPSpisputed by dividing the net income available tonowon
stockholders by the weighted average number of comshares outstanding for the period. Diluted Efffects the potential dilution from
securities that could share in the earnings ofbmpany. Anti-dilutive securities are excluded frdituted EPS.

Recognition of Revenues-Revenues are recognized when the customer tdleard assumes risk of loss, collection of related
receivables is reasonably assured, persuasiveredadsd an arrangement exists, and the sales priibeed or determinable. Title passes on
shipment or on receipt by the customer dependintpemrountry of the sale and the agreement witlctistomer. Allowances for estimated
returns, allowances and discounts are recognized@duction of the related revenue when it is mded.

Shipping and Handling Costs-Shipping and handling costs are expensed as eatamd included in cost of sales. Freight billed to
customers is included in revenues.

Share-Based Compensatierln accordance with ASC Topic 7X8ompensation—Stock CompensatigitSC 718"), we use the
prospective method for option grants and restristedk issued prior to August 15, 2005, the datevbith the Company filed its initial
Registration Statement on Form S-1, and the matlfi@spective method for option grants issued &ftegust 15, 2005. The Company was
required to adopt the prospective method for grprits to August 15, 2005 as the Company had dlettteralue employee grants using the
minimum value method under ASC 718. For option tramd restricted stock accounted for under thegactive method, the Company will
continue to account for the grants under the isitivalue-based method. Therefore, the Company nima®cord any compensation expense
for stock options granted to employees prior to ¥sid 5, 2005 if the exercise price equaled thenfairket value of the stock option on the ¢
of grant, and the exercise price, number of shaligible for issuance under the options and vegtegods were fixed.

ASC 718 generally requires all share-bgmssanents to employees, including grants of emplayeek options, to be recognized in the
financial statements based on their grant-datevédires. ASC 718 also requires the fair value ¢$tamding options vesting after the date of
initial adoption to be recognized as a charge &rajons over the remaining vesting period.

As a result of the adoption of ASC 718,began (i) using the fair value method to recogshzare-based compensation and (ii) estimating
forfeitures for purposes of recognizing the rentayfair value of all unvested awards. In additiae, use the straight-line method to recognize
stock-based
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

compensation expense over the vesting term for@epk and non-employees for our outstanding steekds granted after January 1, 2006.

Deferred compensation represents the ueaggirtion of employee grants made prior to Aug&st2005 and is recorded as a reduction of
equity. The fair value of employee grants is fixdlate of grant, or the measurement date, if,lateile grants to non-employees are
remeasured to fair value at each reporting peridd vesting occurs. See Note 10—Equity for furtdescussion.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Camy identified an error in the calculation of stdidsed compensation expense that effected its
previously issued 2008 consolidated financial statets. The error was identified after the Compathytsl-party equity accounting software
provider notified its clients, including the Compathat it made a change to how its software pnogealculates stock-based compensation
expense. Specifically, the prior version of thiftware calculated stock-based compensation expganseorrectly continuing to apply a
weighted average forfeiture rate to the vestedgouf stock option awards until the grant's fimabt date rather than reflecting actual
forfeitures as vested, resulting in an understatermkstock-based compensation expense in certiogs prior to the grant's final vest date in
2008 and 2009. Because the Company's stock optiarda generally vest on a monthly basis afteritise dnniversary date of the award, the
Company under-recognized stock-based compensatpmmse in certain periods. This error changesithiag of stock-based compensation
expense recognition, but does not change thedtitek-based compensation expense. As stock-basggersation expense is a non-cash item,
this error did not impact net cash provided by afiens in any period. This error resulted in theenstatement of stock-based compensation
expense, with a corresponding understatement afiaia paid in capital, in the approximate amounit$4.5 million in 2008 which has been
corrected in 2009. The Company does not believieditizer the understatement of stock-based comfiensaxpense in 2008 or the related
effect of correcting the error in 2009 are material

Advertising—Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andugton costs are generally expensed when the tsingris first run.
Advertising expenses were $7.4 million, $16.8 moilliand $5.5 million for the years ended Decemief809, 2008, and 2007, respectively
and are included in selling, general, and admialiste expenses.

Research and DevelopmentResearch and development costs are expensed aethdiesearch and development expenses amout
$7.7 million, $6.4 million, and $5.3 million for ¢hyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2Gpkatively, and are included in Selling,
general, and administrative expenses in our Catetelil Statement of Operations.

Foreign Currency Translation and Foreign Crency Transactions—The U.S. dollar is the Company's reporting curyerssets and
liabilities of foreign operations denominated icdbcurrencies are translated at the rate of exgghanthe balance sheet date. Revenues and
expenses are translated at the weighted averagefrakchange during the applicable period. Adjestts resulting from translating foreign
functional currency financial statements into W8llars are included in the foreign currency tratish adjustment, a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in stockhsléquity. Gains and losses generated by traosaatenominated in foreign currencies
are recorded in Selling, general and administraigense in our Consolidated Statement of Opemtiothe period in which they occur.
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

For the year ended December 31, 2009, tmepany recognized realized losses and unrealiziegd ga foreign currency transactions of
$10.6 million and $11.3 million, respectively. Rbe year ended December 31, 2008, the Company mzenrealized losses and unrealized
losses on foreign currency transactions of $3.8aniland $21.6 million, respectively. For the yeaded December 31, 2007, the Company
recognized realized losses and unrealized gairisreign currency transactions of $1.5 million arf&l@million, respectively. These foreign
currency exposures are primarily associated wittables and receivables arising from intercompaagsactions. As these costs are associatec
with operational activities, the associated realiaed unrealized gains and losses have been intlidlein Foreign currency transaction loss
(gains), net in our Consolidated Statement of Qjmrs.

Derivative Foreign Currency Contracts-The Company is exposed to global market riskduiting the effect of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. During the year endedrdeee31, 2007, the Company used derivatives to gefinancial exposures that occur in
the normal course of business. The Company doelsatdtor issue derivatives for trading purposee Tompany formally documents all
relationships between hedging instruments and hiedgms, as well as its risk-management objecthee strategy for undertaking hedge
transactions. This process includes linking alivdgives to either specific assets and liabilitesthe balance sheet, specific firm commitments
or forecasted transactions. The Company has enitgietbrward exchange contracts to hedge certaitigns of future cash flows denomina
in foreign currencies. These contracts were nagdesed as hedges under ASC 8Dgrivatives and Hedging'' The futures contracts were
marked to market and gains and losses were reagjiizzarnings. The net realized gains and lossabése contracts were not material for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 20@7/Cdmpany has no unsettled derivative contracté Becember 31, 2009.

Income Taxes—The Company accounts for income taxes using tbetamd liability method. This approach requiresrécognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expk@iture tax consequences of temporary differebetseen the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of other assets and liabilities. The Companyides for income taxes at the current and futu@cted tax rates and laws applicable in
each taxing jurisdiction. Prior to the Company'sva@rsion to a C corporation on January 4, 2005Ci@pany was not a taxpaying entity for
U.S. federal and state income tax purposes.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company éatbpIN 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxeahich has been incorporated in
ASC Topic 740'Income Taxes("ASC 740"). ASC 740 requires the use of a two-stpproach for recognizing and measuring tax benefit
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return dgsuodures regarding uncertainties in income tasitfpms. The adoption of ASC 740 did not
have a material impact on the Company's consolidaé¢dance sheet, statement of operations or casls.fWe recognize interest and penalties
related to income tax matters in Income tax exp@mser Consolidated Statement of Operations. Sate li3—Income Taxes for further
discussion.

Taxes Assessed by Governmental AuthoritieBaxes assessed by governmental authorities teatigactly imposed on a revenue
transaction, including value added tax, are reabidea net basis and are therefore excluded frées,sas allowed under ASC 605-45-50-3,
"Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted teeonental Authorities”
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Reclassifications—The Company reclassified foreign currency trarieadbsses (gains), net and charitable contribstiorthe statement
of operations from selling, general, and admintateaexpenses. There was no change to income (imsn)continuing operations as a result of
these reclassifications.

Recent Accounting Pronouncementsin June 2009, the FASB issued FASB Statement 86, Amendments to FASB Interpretation
No. 46(R), which amends FASB Interpretation No. FIN46(Bpnsolidation of Variable Interest EntitigSFIN 46 (R)") and is incorporated
into ASC Topic 810Consolidation, to require an enterprise to perform an analysgetermine whether the enterprise's variable éstegives
it a controlling financial interest in a variablgérest entity and to require ongoing reassessnoétités nature. The standard amends certain
guidance in FIN 46 (R) for determining whether atitg is a variable interest entity and adds addii reconsideration for making this
determination when facts or circumstances chane.standard requires enhanced disclosures thapbneilide more transparent information
about an entity's involvement in a variable inteeegity. The standard is effective for the fisgaar that begins after November 15, 2009. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this stantdehave a material impact on the Company's dafeged financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Accountiran8ards Update ("ASU") 2009-0Ggenerally Accepted Accounting Principles; Amendmient
based on Statement of Financial Accounting Starslilal 168—The FASB Accounting Standards Codificaia the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principl("ASU 2009-01"), to amend the ASC Topic 1@enerally Accepted Accounting Principle® establish the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sewfcauthoritative accounting principles recognibgdhe FASB to be applied in the
preparation of financial statements. The codifmathlso contains interpretive releases of the Skeufederal securities laws and is a source
of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. ASU 2dlBis effective for financial statements issuedifiterim and annual periods ending after
September 15, 2009 and shall be applied prospéctiVbe adoption of this standard did not have #emi@ impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009M8&asuring Liabilities at Fair Valu¢'ASU 2009-05"), an update to ASC Topic 820-10,
Fair Value Measurements and Disclost—Other.ASU 2009-05 provides amendments to the fair valeasurement of liabilities and provic
clarification on valuation techniques for liab#isi for which a quoted price for an identical liapiln an active market is not available. The
amendments also clarify that, when estimating direvialue of a liability, a reporting entity is natquired to include a separate input or
adjustment to other inputs relating to the existeoica restriction that prevents the transfer eflihbility. ASU 2009-05 also provides
amendments to clarify that both a quoted pricenimetive market for the identical liability at theeasurement date and the quoted price for the
identical liability when traded as an asset in etiva market when no adjustments to the quotecefche asset are required are Level 1 fair
value measurements. The guidance provided in AS19-25 is effective for the first reporting periaddluding interim periods) beginning
after September 1, 2009 and shall be applied potispdy. The Company does not expect the adoptfahis standard to have a material img
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

3. INVENTORIES
Inventories by major classification ard@ows (in thousands):

December 31

2009 2008
Finished good $ 88,77t $ 126,07¢
Work-in-progres: 22C 184
Raw materials 4,33¢ 16,94

$ 93,32¢ $ 143,20!

During the year ended December 31, 20@Cthmpany donated certain inventory items to chialetorganizations. The inventory items
consisted of end of life units, some of which wiedéy valued, partially impaired or fully impaired@he contributions made were expensed at
their fair value of $7.5 million for the year endedcember 31, 2009, in accordance with ASC Sub€TépD-25 Contributions MadeAs the
fair value of the inventory contributed exceedadcirrying amount, a gain was recognized of $3Ikomifor the year ended December 31,
2009, resulting in a net reduction of inventony$df3 million as of December 31, 2009.

In the year ended December 31, 2008, thepaoy recorded approximately $76.3 million of inigeg write-down charges and an
additional $4.2 million in charges related to Iasea future purchase commitments for inventory aitihharket value lower than cost, of which
$2.1 million was included as an accrued expensg Becember 31, 2008. These charges are reportheé icost of sales line item in the
consolidated statement of operations for the yedeé December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2008munt remains accrued for losses on
purchase commitments.
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CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment includes the follay/in thousands):

December 31,

2009 2008
Machinery and equipme| $ 82,73 $ 108,55:
Leasehold improvemen 38,43¢ 32,77
Subtotal 121,16¢ 141,32

Less accumulated depreciation ¢
amortization (50,085 (45,43)
Total Property and Equipme $ 71,08 $ 95,89:

Depreciation of machinery and equipmembisiputed using the straight-line method based timated useful lives ranging from two to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortizetherstraight-line basis over their estimated eotnaiseful lives or the lease term,
whichever is shorter. During the years ended Deeer@b, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we recorded depregiatipense of $29.7 million,
$30.7 million and $17.0 million, respectively, ohieh $15.6 million, $18.3 million and $11.3 milliowere recorded in cost of sales, with the
remaining amounts recorded in selling, generaladrdinistrative expenses. As the Company transthgeending fixed assets and accumulated
depreciation balances utilizing the balance shedtange rate and records depreciation expense thgngeighted average of exchange rates
for the applicable period, a difference betweenréwarded depreciation expense and the changeimadated depreciation exists.

Certain equipment held under capital le@sélse amounts of $0.4 million and $9,000 netafuanulated depreciation at December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively, are classified aspageit and amortized using the straight-line metiwat the lease term. Amortization of
equipment under capitalized leases is includecepretiation expense.

During the year ended December 31, 20@Ciimpany recognized an impairment charge of $hdl®n on fixed assets, primarily
related to shoe molds and distribution facilityetssOf the impairment charge recognized, $2.lignilvas in the Europe segment, $4.8 mill
was in the Americas segment and $11.6 million wasé Corporate and other group. The impairmentgehan molds related primarily to sk
styles that the Company either no longer intendadaufacture or styles for which the Company hasemwolds on hand than necessary to
meet projected demand. The impairment charge dritditon facility assets related to equipment &rtlires for the Company's warehouse
and distribution centers that were closed and dateded. These charges are recorded in the impairoferges line item of the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBhe2009. The impairments are accounted for assas be abandoned, in accordance’
ASC Section 360-35-1%mpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

During the year ended December 31, 20@8Ciimpany recognized an impairment charge of $2@l®n on fixed assets, primarily
related to equipment and shoe molds. Of the impaitroharge recognized, $11.3 million was in the Acas segment, $4.4 million was in the
Europe segment and $5.2 million was in the Corgoaad other group. Management evaluated the prioducapacity at Company-operated
facilities compared with demand projections andacity requirements and made the decision to abaoeéidain tooling and equipment that
represented excess capacity. These charges ardeddn the impairment charges line item of thesohidated statement of operations for the
year ended December 31, 20
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At December 31, 2009, the Company class®i@.3 million as assets held for sale, primarlgdnnection with the closure and
consolidation of certain of the Company's distiidutand manufacturing facilities. The assets hetdsale consist of equipment, vehicles and
fixtures and were recorded on the consolidatednoalaheet at the lower of carrying value or falugdess costs to sell, in accordance with
ASC Paragraph 360-10-35-48¢ccounting While Held for Saleand are included in the line item prepaid expg@s®l other current assets on
the Company's consolidated balance sheet. Dursnge¢hr ended December 31, 2009, $0.5 million icgeds were received on the sale of
assets previously classified as held for sale,za$@.2 million gain was recognized on the saleragdrded in the line item selling, general and
administrative expenses on the Company's consetidgtatements of operations.

5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

The Company's goodwill balance of $23.8iarilas of December 31, 2007, was primarily relatethe acquisitions of Ocean Minded and
Bite in 2007, Jibbitz and Fury in 2006, and Croesm&da in 2004.

The goodwill balance of Fury in the amoah$1.0 million was written off in the three montlsded March 31, 2008 prior to its
liquidation in June 2008.

During the three months ended Septembe?@8, the Company's stock price declined substhntivhich represented a triggering event
for potential goodwill impairment. Accordingly, 8eptember 30, 2008, the Company performed animgoiodwill impairment evaluation.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite Bveust be tested for impairment at least once agreaore frequently if management belie
indicators of impairment exist. Carrying values emenpared with fair values, and when the carryialy® exceeds the fair value, the carrying
value of the impaired asset is reduced to itsvaline.

Management reviewed the results of thempiehry analysis and concluded that the entire &2aillion balance of the Company's
goodwill was impaired at September 30, 2008. Mamaage reviewed the results of the final analysis plated during the fourth quarter of
2008 and concluded that the provisional impairnaeliistment recorded at September 30, 2008 shotildeneevised and that the Company's
goodwill was fully impaired as of December 31, 200 Company's annual goodwill impairment evabratiate.

The following table summarizes the activitthe Company's goodwill account during the yeaded December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 23,75¢
Less: Goodwill impairment charg (23,867
Impact of foreign currency translati 10¢€

Balance at December 31, 20 $ —
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Intangible Assets

During the year ended December 31, 20@9Cthmpany recognized an impairment charge of $Ml&mon intangible assets. The
impairment charge is primarily related to the Compsidecision to no longer pursue the Tagger latésnal B.V ("Tagger") brand and the
decision to discontinue the use of certain capgialisoftware assets as part of the Company's casting activities and is included with the
Americas segment. These charges are recorded imfizérment charges line item of the consolidatadesnent of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2009, and are accounted fasatsdo be abandoned, in accordance with ASCABe®8i0-35-15|mpairment or Dispos:
of Long-Lived Assets.

In June 2008, the Company decided to ligpgid-ury after efforts to sell the entity were wtassful. As a result, the Company wrote off
$0.3 million related to the remaining customer tieleship intangible assets and trademarks. Fuincisided within the Americas segment.

As a result of the Company's evaluatiomdéfinite lived intangible assets, performed fue year ended December 31, 2008, the Jibbitz
trade name, with a book value of approximately $0ilion, and patents the Company no longer inteidstilize, with a book value of
approximately $0.6 million, were fully impairedbBitz is included within the Americas segment.

The following table summarizes the Compsugentifiable intangible assets at December 30924hd 2008 (in thousands):

2009 2008
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible asset:
Patents, copyright:
and trademark $ 567 $ 1,39¢ $ 4277 $ 8,19C $ 694 $ 7,49¢
Customer relationshiy 5,92¢ 4,912 1,01¢ 6,07t 3,68¢ 2,39(
Core technolog' 4,61¢ 4,61¢ — 4,001 3,60z 39¢
Non-competition
agreemen 63€ 594 42 63€ 46€ 17C
Capitalized softwar 38,88¢ 8,23t 30,64¢ 35,30¢ 4,87: 30,431

Total Intangible asse  $ 55,73t $ 19,75. $ 3598 $ 54,21: $ 13,31¢ $ 40,89.

Intangible assets that are determined te fiaite lives are amortized over their usefukvon a straight-line basis for patents, core
technology, non-competition agreement and capédlsoftware. Customer relationships are amortized straight-line basis or an accelerated
basis. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 02007, amortization expense recorded for intdegissets with finite lives was
$7.0 million, $6.6 million and $4.1 million, resgaely, of which $1.6 million, $0.9 million and nivas recorded in cost of sales,
respectively,with the remaining amounts recordeskilfing, general and administrative expensesafRurtizable intangible assets denomin;
in a foreign currency, the Company translates ttérg asset and accumulated amortization at ttenbalsheet rate and records amortization
expense using the weighted average rate of exctangjge applicable period. A difference betweea thcorded amortization expense and the
change in accumulated
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5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

amortization exists. Below are the weighted avegagertization periods by major intangible assesclar the Company as of December 31,
2009.

Weighted Average Amortization

Intangible Asset Class Period
Patents 10 years

Customer Relationshif estimated customer lif
Core Technolog' 5 years
Non-competition Contractual term
Agreemen

Capitalized Software Shorter of 7 years or

remaining life of technoloc

Estimated future annual amortization ohigible assets is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal years ending December 31, Amortization

2010 $ 7.3
2011 7.C
2012 6.€
2013 6.C
2014 4.€
Thereaftel 4.t
Total $ 36.C

Certain software held under a capital léaghe amount of $1.5 million net of accumulatedoatization is classified as capitalized
software and amortized using the straight-line metbver the useful life. Amortization of capitalizeoftware under capitalized leases is
included in amortization expense on the Comparmy'salidated statements of operations.

6. ACQUISITIONS

On April 1, 2008, the Company acquired samally all of the assets of Tidal Trade, IncTiffal Trade"), the Company's third-party
distributor in South Africa, for $4.6 million. THéompany recorded $1.4 million in customer relatiops on the date of acquisition. As part of
the acquisition, the Company repurchased invergogyiously sold to Tidal Trade and accordingly igiaed a reduction of revenue of
approximately $2.1 million.

On April 2, 2008, the Company acquired saisally all of the assets of Tagger, a privateitiéd liability company incorporated under the
laws of the Netherlands that manufactures messdyages. Tagger was partially operated by the MamgDBinector of Crocs Europe B.V. The
Company acquired all of the assets of Tagger fdd $#llion, of which approximately $90,000 was @ssid to inventory and the remaining
$1.9 million was assigned to the value of the Taggalemark on the date of acquisition. For the yemled December 31, 2009, we made the
decision to no longer pursue the Tagger Internati@nV ("Tagger") brand and, accordingly, recor@@dimpairment charge of $1.9 million to
impair the assets related to the acquisition asudsed in Note 5—Goodwill and Intangible Assets.
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See Note 5—Goodwill and Intangible Assetsf@irther discussion of impairment of goodwill aintangible assets originally recorded in
connection with the aforementioned acquisitions.

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other liabilitiesudel the following (in thousands):

December 31
2009 2008
Accrued compensation and bene $ 21,000 $ 10,17¢
Fulfillment and freight and dutie 10,76¢ 7,83z
Professional service 4,32¢ 4,34(
Sales/Use tax payak 4,33( 3,57
Accrued loss on purchase commitmt — 2,102
Distributor inventory buybac — 5,26(
Other 13,14¢ 16,78

$ 53,58( $ 50,07¢

8. RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

During the year ended December 31, 20@Cthmpany announced its decision to further restradgts operations and has made certain
organizational changes in order to better aligiscasth revenues. This decision included the clesfrvarious warehouses and office buildi
as well as settlement and termination of contrpdty to term. During the year ended December 8D92the Company incurred restructuring
charges of $14.7 million, of which $7.1 millionircluded in costs of sales. Of the restructuringrghs taken, $5.6 million related to the
termination of operating leases and other costscéged with closing the facilities and relocatemgployees; $3.8 million related to the
termination of its manufacturing agreement withiact party in Bosnia and its sponsorship agreemétht Association of Volleyball
Professionals ("AVP"); $1.1 million related to oloiag a release from any further obligations uritierpurchase agreement with Bite, LLC;
and $0.5 million relating to the termination of saiting arrangements with former key employees.i#althl restructuring charges included
$3.7 million in severance costs, consisting prigasf $0.4 million for the restructuring of the Cpmny's distribution facilities in Europe and
Asia; $0.4 million in severance and $0.4 milliorstock compensation expense related to the Congaeparation agreement with its former
General Counsel; and $1.6 million of stock compgasaand $0.2 million in deferred compensation exgeein connection with the Company's
separation agreement with its former Chief Exeau@®fficer in which certain stock options, restrittock awards and deferred compensation
were accelerated. See Note 10—Equity for furthecwsion.

Of the restructuring charges discussed @b®®.3 million was in the Americas segment, $3iflan was in the Europe segment,
$0.4 million was in the Asia segment and $4.5 wnillivas in the Corporate and other group.

During the year ended December 31, 20@8Cthmpany announced its decision to restructum@pisations. This decision included the
closure of its Canadian and Brazilian manufactufauglities and the consolidation of Canadian disttion activities into other existing North
American operations. The

F-19




Table of Contents

CROCS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

8. RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Company has established reserves to cover futwerkmobligations related to the closure of the Céaradnd Brazilian manufacturing
operations and the move of the Canadian distribuijmerations.

During 2008, the Company sold assets rejat the Company's Canadian manufacturing opasfior a net gain of approximately
$0.8 million. The gain on disposal of assets i®reed in the selling, general and administrativeezses on the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 200&€Tlere no assets held for sale as of Decemb&O088,

Reserves are included in the line itemswsat restructuring charges and long-term restrirgiin the Company's consolidated balance
sheets and are recorded under the line item régting charges within costs of sales and sellirgegal and administrative expenses on the
Company's consolidated statements of operations.

Reserves at December 31, 2009, were $3libmiconsisting of $0.5 million of accrued termiion benefits, $2.2 million of rent
obligations for leased facilities, net of expecsetblease income, and $0.4 million of contract teation fees and termination benefits
accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 7X20mpensation—Nonretirement Post Employment Behafits ASC Topic 420EXxit or
Disposal Cost Obligation".

The following table details the changethim restructuring accruals during the year endezeBPéer 31, 2009 (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, Cash December 31,
Description 2008 Additions Payments Adjustments(1) 2009
Termination benefit $ 67¢ $ 1,711 $ (2,111 $ 24C 3 51€
Operating lease exit cos $ 1,48¢ 5,58¢ (4,089 (752) $ 2,23:
Other restructuring cos $ 234 5,30¢ (5,199 39 $ 387
$ 2,39¢ $ 12,60 $ (11,397 $ 473 $ 3,13¢

(1)  Adjustments relate primarily to the exit of a portiof a facility lease in Canada and differencessiltang from the
translation of the liability balance at the balasbeet rate and restructuring expense translatie ateighted average r
of exchange for the applicable peri
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Notes payable and capital lease obligateamsist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2009 2008
Revolving credit facility $ — $ 2242
Capital lease obligatior 64C 9
Long-term portion of capital leas

obligations 911 —
Total notes payable and capital lease

obligations $ 1,551 $ 22,43:

Notes Payable

As of December 31, 2008, the Company hat4saillion in outstanding borrowings on its Revialy Credit Facility with Union Bank of
California, N.A. The Company initially entered irtftee Revolving Line of Credit agreement on May 8)2, the agreement was amended
eleven times to extend the maturity date and adligsinterest rate, as well as to modify the agesgrfrom an unsecured line of credit to be
secured by substantially all of the Company's letélial property. On August 3, 2009, the Compatly fepaid its remaining obligation on its
Revolving Credit Facility prior to its maturity dabf September 30, 2009. The Revolving Credit Rgailas effectively terminated upon full
repayment. The Company did not incur any pendltiethe early payment and termination of the Rewg\Credit Facility.

On September 25, 2009, the Company eniete@ Revolving Credit and Security Agreement (iBeedit Agreement"”) with PNC Bank,
N.A., which matures on September 25, 2012. The iCfgfteement provides for an as-backed revolving credit facility of up to $30 mdl in
total, which includes a $17.5 million sublimit foorrowings against the Company's eligible inventar$2 million sublimit for borrowings
against the Company's eligible inventorytiansit, and a $4 million sublimit for letters akdit. The total borrowings available under thedir
Agreement at any given time are subject to custgmeserves and reductions to the extent the Con'pasget borrowing base changes.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are secuyedltof the assets of the Company, including etleivables, equipment, general
intangibles, inventory, investment property, sulasigstock and leasehold interests. The Credit Agrent requires the Company to prepay
borrowings under the Credit Agreement in the eémertain dispositions of property.

Principal amounts outstanding under thediC¥&greement bear interest at a two percent (28#)ngum over a rate that is the greater of
either (i) PNC's published reference rate, (ii) Heeleral Funds Open Rate in effect on such daygriashalf of one percent (0.5%) or, (iii) the
sum of the daily LIBOR rate and one percent (1.084h respect to domestic rate loans. Eurodollaroteinated principal amounts outstand
under the Credit Agreement bear interest at thecfultiree and one half percent (3.50%) premium aveate that is the greater of (i) the
Eurodollar rate, or (ii) one and one half percdn5Q%) with respect to Eurodollar loans, as appleaThe Credit Agreement requires monthly
interest payments with respect to domestic rated@and at the end of each period with respect todgllar rate loans.

The Credit Agreement contains certain qustity restrictive and financial covenants. The Comypaas in compliance with these financial
covenants as of December 31, 2009.
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As of December 31, 2009, the Company haidhamaterial amount of outstanding borrowings urnttier Credit Agreement and had issued
and outstanding letters of credit of $1.1 milliohish were reserved against the borrowing base.ngutie year ended December 31, 2009,
$0.5 million in fees and third-party costs incurired¢onnection with the Credit Agreement were azieéd as deferred financing costs.

10. EQUITY

On November 1, 2007, the Company's boadirettors approved an authorization to repurch@st one million shares of its common
stock. On April 14, 2008, the board of directorsoehpproved an additional authorization to repwselan additional 5,000,000 shares of our
common stock. Share repurchases under these astionis may be made in the open market or in mlyategotiated transactions. The timing
and actual number of shares repurchased will deperadvariety of factors including price, corporatel regulatory requirements and other
market conditions. The repurchase authorizationsaldnave an expiration date and do not obligageQbmpany to acquire any particular
amount of shares of its common stock. The repurchathorizations may be modified, suspended oodigwued at any time. On November 7,
2007, the Company repurchased approximately 524bafes for a total of approximately $25.0 million.

On November 11, 2009, the Compensation Citteerapproved "withhold to cover" as a tax paynmaathod for certain named executive
officers (NEOSs) vesting in restricted stock awafésur elections were made in 2009 in which a tota1,179 shares were withheld and placed
in treasury, increasing the treasury share baltmbé5,179 at December 31, 2009.

Share-Based Compensation

Under the modified prospective method, cengation expense recognized in the year ended eredt, 2009, includes:
(i) compensation expense of all share-based paygeanted after August 15, 2005 but not yet veatedf January 1, 2006, based on the grant
date fair value estimated in accordance with AS@id @18 "Compensation—Stock CompensatighASC 718"), and (ii) compensation
expense for all share-based payments granted sudrstelp January 1, 2006, based on the grant diatealae estimated in accordance with the
provisions of ASC 718. Results for prior periodsdaot been retrospectively adjusted. The Compaogrds compensation expense related to
non-employees under the provisions of ASC 718 andriging Issues Task Force EITF 96-A8counting for Equity Instruments that are
Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring, ocanjunction with Selling, Goods or Servi("EITF 96-18"), as codified in ASC Topic 505
"Equity", and recognizes compensation expense over thiaggsriods of such awards. Total pre-tax sharedasmpensation expense,
including options and non-vested shares, was $88l@n, including $2.2 which is included in restturing charges, for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2009. Included in this is $&6liBon related to the Company's tender offer tivas completed in April 2009. Also
included in the $33.6 million of share-based conspéinn expense is $2.0 million of accelerated ngstharges related to the separation
agreements with the Company's former Chief Exeeu@ifficer and former Vice President, General Colasd Secretary, which are included
as restructuring charges, and are discussed furtiew. Total pre-tax share-based compensationnsepeecognized was $19.0 million, and
$21.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2888 2007. Due to our loss position in the yealedrDecember 31, 2009 and 2008, the
Company did not recognize any associated tax bisnésociated tax benefits in the year ended Dbeedl, 2007 were approximately
$6.4 million.
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Capitalization of the stock based compensationimtentory and intangibles as part of the overhalmtation was $528,267 and $117,707,
respectively, for 2009 and $150,000 and $49,00Q00:8.

ASC 718 also required the Company to chahgelassification of any excess tax benefitsizedlon the exercise of stock options or
issuance of restricted stock unit awards in exoé#isat which is associated with the expense reieegifor financial reporting purposes in its
consolidated statement of cash flows. These amauatpresented as a financing cash inflow rather &% a reduction of income taxes paid in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Company has computed the fair valugptibns granted using the Black-Scholes optionipgiecnodel. In order to calculate the fair
value of the options, certain assumptions are megiarding components of the model, including rigefinterest rate, volatility, expected
dividend yield rate, and expected option term. @fearto the assumptions could cause significansadgnts to the valuation. For options
granted before August 15, 2005, expected volatiliys not considered for employee grants as the @oynwas a non-public entity at the grant
date of these options. For stock option grantseidsifter the filing of the Company's initial Regigion Statement on Form S-1 on August 15,
2005, the minimum value method is no longer usetithe Company used a volatility rate of 50-60% bedan to include estimated forfeiture
rates. The Company estimated the volatility oE@smon stock at the date of grant based on therltat volatility of the underlying shares of
common stock as well as the historical volatiliffcomparable companies. The Company factored botiisl forfeiture rates, expected future
retention rates, and vesting periods of the optiordetermine the average expected term. The reskihterest rate for periods within the
contractual life of the options is based on the.J1®asury yield curve in effect at the time offegcant. Accordingly, the Company has
computed the fair values of all options grantedrauthe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ap@ddn using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model and the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Expected volatility 50- 60% 50% 50%
Dividend yield — — —
Risk-free interest rat 1.44%-2.75% 2.81% 4.5&%
Expected life (in years 459-6.8¢ 4.5¢ 5.C

Equity Incentive Plans

There were 134,228 stock options outstandsmof December 31, 2009 that were granted toesfj directors and employees prior to the
adoption of the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. Follogithe adoption of the 2007 Plan, no future grarag be made from this Plan.

The Company adopted the 2005 Equity Ingerfilan (the "2005 Plan™) on August 15, 2005. Tle& Bermits the grant of non-qualified
stock options, incentive stock options, and reiddtock to eligible employees, consultants andemployee members of our Board of
Directors. As of December 31, 2009, 2,663,625 optiwere outstanding under the 2005 Plan and neshaere available for future issuance
under the 2005 Plan.

The Company adopted the 2007 Equity Ingerflan (the "2007 Plan™) on July 19, 2007. ThenPkarmits the grant of nogualified stocl
options, incentive stock options, restricted stoekfricted
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stock units, stock appreciation rights, performamaitss, common stock or any other stock-based ateaetigible employees, consultants and

non-employee members of our Board of DirectorsoPBecember 31, 2009, 5,906,417 options, restristedk and awards were outstanding
under the 2007 Plan and 1,756,874 shares wereablafbr future issuance under the 2007 Plan.

Stock options under both the 2005 Plantaad?007 Plan generally vest ratably over four gedth the first year vesting on a "cliff" basis
followed by monthly vesting for the remaining thigsars. Restricted stock awards generally vesbisataver three years.

Stock Option Activity

The following summarizes stock option ti@gtions under the 2005 and 2007 Plans for thegmded December 31, 2009:

Weighted Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Life Intrinsic Value

Options Shares Price (Years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 9,898,46. $ 14.6- 7.6 $ 29z
Granted 2,412,001 3.64
Exercisec (575,81) 2.17
Forfeited or expires (3,979,39) 23.2¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,755,25. $  7.67 748 $ 15,29(
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 3,723,42. $ 9.3: 59t $ 6,45¢
Vested and expected to ves

December 31, 200 6,052,999 $ 7.9 711 $ 11,697

Options awarded under the 2005 Plan pa@eptember 30, 2006 are exercisable immediatetii@date of grant with the exception of
408,842 shares granted to members of the Boardre€rs. In order to preserve the vesting provisiof the immediately exercisable options,
the options that are exercised early are subjeztrépurchase right by the Company at the lowexefcise price or fair market value of the
underlying stock at the date of repurchase. Ttpanehase right expires on vesting of the underlyipgion. Immediately exercisable stock
options outstanding under the 2005 Plan were 14833at December 31, 2009 of which 1,499,950 atg fidlsted and no longer subject to the

repurchase right. Options awarded after Octob20Q@6 are exercisable as they vest. As of Decenthe2(®9, no options have been exercised
early.

The weighted average fair value of optigranted during the years ended December 31, 2002@08 and 2007 was approximately
$2.01, $4.90, and $15.83, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of all opi@xercised during the years ended December 39, 2008 and 2007 was $1.0 million,
$9.4 million and $113.7 million, respectively. Caslceived from stock option exercises for the yeaded December 31, 2009 and 2008 was
$1.2 million and $3.3 million, respectively with mcome tax benefit due to the Company's loss jposiThe total grant date fair value of st
options vested during 2009, 2008, and 2007 wa0$h@llion, $22.5 million and $19.2 million, respiaely.
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The outstanding options at December 3192G@ the following characteristics:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average

Number of Contractual Life Exercise Number Exercise Fair Value
Exercise Prices Shares (Years) Price Exercisable Price Determination
$0.51- 1.69 2,835,84! 73C $ 12¢ 1,301,47. $ 1.3t Black-Scholes
$1.70- 10.50 3,689,35! 7.9¢€ 7.1C 1,533,81 18.4% Black-Scholes
$10.51- 14.98 569,76: 5.9C 14.32 455,43 14.27 Black-Scholes
$14.99- 22.92 234,06¢ 5.84 22.2: 176,99¢ 22.27 Black-Scholes
$22.93- 47.88 320,93 7.2€ 32.2¢ 193,86¢ 31.6¢ Black-Scholes
$47.89- 59.98 105,29: 7.4¢ 56.C 61,83¢ 56.2( Black-Scholes

7,755,25. 74 $ 7.67 3,723,442, $§ 9.3:

As of December 31, 2009, the Company hswkid unvested options to purchase 4.0 million shafréhe Company's common stock with a
weighted average grant date fair value of $3.050fA3ecember 31, 2009, the Company had $12.3 mibiototal unrecognized share-based
compensation expense related to unvested optiehsf expected forfeitures, which is expected t@aimortized over the weighted average
period of 2.95 years.

Tender Offer. Due to declines in the market price of the Canmys common stock, the exercise prices of a satstamumber of
outstanding stock options held by the Company'si@yeps far exceeded the market price of our comstack as of April 2, 2009 (referred to
as "underwater options"). This decline in the Conysmcommon stock price substantially eliminatealitttentive and retention value of the
options previously granted to the Company's emm@syéccordingly, on April 2, 2009, after a compnesige review of our compensation
program, the Company offered to purchase stoclongtivith exercise prices equal to or greater tHadh3P per share for cash from certain
eligible employees (the "Tender Offer") in orderréstore the incentive value of the Company's l@mgy performance award programs.
Individuals eligible to participate in the Tendeif& were those employees, including officers and-amployee directors, who continued to
employees or directors of the Company from the 1&hr2009 offer date to the offer's expiration dateApril 30, 2009. Participation in the
Tender Offer was voluntary. As a result of the Tem@ffer, the Company made an aggregate cash payh$0.1 million to repurchase
2,315,951 options that were tendered to the Compargordingly, the Company recorded a charge of$fillion in the quarter ended
June 30, 2009 related to previously unrecognizedeshased compensation expense for these tendaiedso Of this $16.3 million charge,
$13.3 million was recorded to selling, general addhinistrative expenses and $3.0 million was resdid cost of sales. Additionally, the pool
of shares available for future grant under the 2BQuity Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plan") increabgd17,700 shares as a result of the Tender
Offer. Shares tendered that were originally grarfitech the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2005rP)are not available for future grant.
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10. EQUITY (Continued)
Non-vested Stock Awards

The following summarizes stock award tratisas for the year ended December 31, 2009:

Weighted Average
Grant Date

Non-vested Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31,

2008 939,00( $ 3.87
Granted 1,282,111 2.4%
Vested (783,207 2.8¢
Forfeited or expirel (115,66%) 4.0¢
Outstanding at December 31,

2009 1,322,241 $ 3.04

At December 31, 2009, the Company had 8#l4bn of total unrecognized share-based compénsaxpense related to non-vested stock
awards, net of expected forfeitures. The non-vesteck awards are expected to be amortized ovexdighted average period of 2.08 years.

Separation Agreement

During the twelve months ending December2BD9, the Company entered into two separatioaeagents, the first with its former Chief
Executive Officer and the second with its formecé&/President, General Counsel and Secretary. Rurgutnese agreements, vesting of
321,195 options to purchase Company common stodk 48,251 restricted stock awards were accelerhtddg the twelve months ended
December 31, 2009 and 62,604 options to purchasg@ay Common stock will vest during 2010. Additibygpursuant to the terms of the
separation agreement, the Company's former Chiefive Officer forfeited 267,707 options to purse&ompany common stock. The
Company recorded a charge of $2.0 million and $@IRon to restructuring charges related to theedemtion of the vesting of these options
and restricted stock awards, and the accelerafideferred compensation expense, respectively.
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11. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

The Company established a relationship ®itanghai Shengyiguan Trade, Ltd Co ("ST") forgbhgpose of serving as a distributor of the
Company's products in the People's Republic of &hiine Company has determined that ST is a variatdeest entity for which it is the
primary beneficiary and there are no other non+adlitig interests. The Company currently contrdldasiness activities and absorbs
substantially all of the expected residual retiand substantially all of the expected losses ob&Jed on agreements with ST. The Company
determined that it is the primary beneficiary of I8fvirtue of its variable interest in the equifyST. All voting rights have been assigned to
the Company and there is a transfer agreement bat®&€ and the Company under which all of the egaggets, and liabilities are to be
transferred to the Company at the Company's selgeation, subject to certain conditions. Accordinghe Company's consolidation of ST d
not reflect a non-controlling interest.

The Company did not provide material finahsupport in 2009 for the funding of ST's opeyati. The consolidated financial statements
include $6.4 million in total assets as of Decengier2009, primarily consisting of cash, inventand receivables, partially offset by
$0.3 million in liabilities as of December 31, 20@8imarily consisting of accounts payable and aedrexpenses, and excluding liabilities
related to the support provided by the Company tkeryear ended December 31, 2008, the Companyde$4.0 million of financial suppc
for the funding of ST's operations. As of Decem®kr2008, the consolidated financial statementsidec$15.8 million in total assets,
primarily consisting of cash, inventory and recéeies, partially offset by $2.0 million in liabilgs, primarily consisting of accounts payable
accrued expenses, and excluding liabilities rel&tettie support provided by the Company.

12. ALLOWANCES

The changes in the Company's allowancedabtful accounts and reserve for sales returnsaiodiances for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, are as follawh@usands):

Balance at Charged Deductions Balance at
Beginning to costs and and End
of Year expenses write-offs of Year
Year ended December 31, 20!
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,69 $ 4671 $ 2566 $ 3,79
Reserve for sales returns and allowar $ 2812 % 7,16¢ $ 3,991 $ 5,991
Year ended December 31, 20!
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 379 $ 3091 $ 162« $ 5,267
Reserve for sales returns and allowar $ 5991 $ 52597 $ 39,75: $ 18,83¢
Year ended December 31, 20!
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 5262 % 1262 $ 2551 $ 3,97
Reserve for sales returns and allowar $ 18,83¢ $ 8,36¢ $ 21,33t $ 5,86¢

The amounts reflected as "charged to @aisexpenses” in the table for sales returns dodahces above are net of the original sale less
the value of the inventories expected to be retlirne
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13. INCOME TAXES
Income Tax Provision
The expense (benefit) for income taxes isted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Curren—U.S. federa $ (5452 $ (9,162) $ 38,39¢
Curren—U.S. state — 20¢€ 3,64¢
Curren—foreign (6,490 9,951 44,91¢
Total current income taxe (11,945 99t 86,96¢
Deferre—U.S. federa (1,330 7,27¢ (5,269
Deferre—U.S. state — 728 (727)
Deferre—foreign 6,72¢ (13,429 (8,870
Total deferred income tax 5,39¢ (5,429 (14,86¢€)
Total income tax expense

(benefit) $ (6,549 $ (4,43H) $ 72,09¢

Income (loss) before taxes is as followstiiousands):

December 31,

2009 2008 2007
u.s. $ (63,967 $ (124,50) $ 95,04¢
Foreign 15,34( (65,009 145,27
Total $ (48,62) $ (189,51() $ 240,32

Reconciliations of the statutory federaldme tax rate to the Company's actual rates bas@ttome or loss before income taxes are
summarized as follows:

December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Consolidated income before ta» 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes net of federal bel 9.C 14 0.8
Foreign tax rate differentii (12.00 (119 (6.7
Permanent portion of equity

compensatiol (13.6) — 0.7
Charitable donations of invento 11.1 0.8 —
Change in valuation allowan (36.5) (26.1) —
Benefit of international restructurir 28.1 — —
Other (8.9 2.6 0.2

13.&%  2.3% 30.(%
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13. INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The Company's deferred income tax assetdiailities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2009 2008
Current deferred tax asse

Accrued expense $ 18,16 $ 18,98(

Inventory 1,391 14,317

Intangible asset 257 374

Other 1,47¢ 73¢

Valuation Allowance (12,859 (25,330
Total current deferred tax ass $ 842¢ $ 9,08C
Current deferred tax liabilitie:

Property and equipmen $ (1,080 $ —
Total current deferred tax liabilities $ (1,080 $ —
Non-current deferred tax asse

Accrued expense $ — $ 6,14

Stock compensation exper 11,34¢ 7,20z

Inventory 432 —

Long-term accrued expens 10,06: 1,11¢

Net operating loss and charital

contribution carryover 35,201 13,84«

Intangible assel 1,33¢ 3,31¢

Property and equipme 1,722 1,211

Future uncertain tax position offs 13,501 12,58¢

Valuation Allowance (51,569 (23,789
Total nor-current deferred tax asst $ 22,036 $ 21,64:
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie:

Accrued expense $ (4619 $ —

Other (1,13¢) (1,079

Total nor-current deferred tax liabilie $ (5,750 $ (1,079

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, U.S. incameforeign withholding taxes have not been pravide approximately $178.7 million and
$114.5 million, respectively, of unremitted earrsrgf subsidiaries operating outside of the U.S . s€hearnings are estimated to represent the
excess of the financial reporting over the tax basbur investments in those subsidiaries. Thaseirgs, which are considered to be
indefinitely reinvested, would become subject t& Uncome tax if they were remitted to the U.S. @hunt of unrecognized deferred U.S.
income tax liability on the unremitted earnings hasbeen determined because the hypothetical leimu is not practicable.

The Company has deferred tax assets refateettain deductible temporary differences inaas tax jurisdictions for which the Compa
has recorded a valuation allowance of $64.4 milagainst these deferred tax assets because theaByroplieves that it is not more likely tt
not that the Company will be able to realize thdskerred tax assets. The significant componentiseofleferred tax assets for which a valua
allowance has been applied consist of net operéiBggs in certain tax
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13. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

jurisdictions for which management believes theredt sufficient positive evidence that such nedrating losses will be realized against fut
income and book expenses not deductible for tagqaas in the current year such as inventory imgaitneserves, equity compensation and
unrealized foreign exchange loss that would in@eash net operating losses in the same jurisdgtibhese temporary differences are
amounts which arose in jurisdictions where (i) entrlosses exist, (ii) such losses are in exceasyfoss carryback potential, (jii) no tax
planning strategies exist with which to overcomehsiesses, and (iv) no profits are projected ferftillowing year. For these reasons it is
determined that it is more likely than not thatseleferred tax assets will not be realized aralw@tion allowance has been provided with
respect to these deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2009, the Company has fédral and state net operating loss and charitaii&ibution carryforwards of
$69.1 million and $130.6 million which will expieg various dates between 2013 and 2029. The Confpeigyes that it is not more likely
than not that the benefit from certain U.S. fedaral state net operating losses will be realizéé. Company has provided a valuation
allowance of $25.9 million on the deferred tax #&sselating to these federal and state net oper&iss carryforwards.

At December 31, 2009, the Company has dexba foreign deferred tax asset of $5.7 millidtenting the benefit of $30.8 million in
foreign net operating loss carryforwards. Such mlefetax assets expire at various dates betweed &0d 2029. The Company believes it is
more likely than not that the benefit from certireign net operating loss carryforwards will balized. The Company has provided a
valuation allowance of $5.7 million on the deferted assets relating to these foreign net operaisg carryforwards.

The Company had approximately $23.6 miliiomet deferred tax assets at December 31, 2088rokimately $7.4 million of the net
deferred tax assets are located in foreign jurisdis for which a strong earnings history and etgeuture profits indicated that it is more
likely than not that such deferred tax assetslvéltealized. Pre-tax profit of approximately $2f#lion is required to realize the net deferred
tax assets.

At December 31, 2009, approximately $13illian of net deferred tax assets consist of deféax assets related to FIN 48 liabilities,
under ASC Topic 740, that would be realized if sliahilities are actually incurred. The deferred éssets represent primarily the reduction in
withholding tax expense that would occur upon altbsvance of intercompany royalty expense by vaitaxing authorities. Approximately
$42.5 million of unrecognized tax benefits would/&@&o be recognized to realize these deferreddsgts.

As a result of certain realization requiesits under ASC 718, the table of deferred tax asset liabilities shown above does not include
certain deferred tax assets at December 31, 2@@%tbse directly from tax deductions related toitygcompensation in excess of
compensation recognized for financial reportinguiBgwill be increased by $2.9 million if and wheach deferred tax assets are ultimately
realized. The Company uses tax law ordering foppsed of determining when excess tax benefits haee realized.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and erglamount of unrecognized tax benefits pursuant3€ A40 (formerly FIN 48) is as follows (in
thousands):

2009 2008 2007
Unrecognized tax bene—

January 1 $ 28,21( $ 11,26¢ $ —
Gross increas—tax positions

in prior period 1,44(C 13,06: 4,381
Gross decreasestax position:

in prior period (4,86¢) — —
Gross increases—tax positio

in current perioc 4,381 4,86¢ 6,87
Settlement: — (985)
Lapse of statute of limitatior — — —
Unrecognized tax bene $ 29,16! $ 28,21( $ 11,26«

The unrecognized tax benefits of $29.2iamll $28.2 million and $11.3 million at December, 3009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, if
recognized, would reduce the Company's annualteféetax rate.

Interest and penalties related to incomditdilities are included in income tax expenséhia Company's consolidated statement of
operations. During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Compatyrded approximately $0.8 million, $1.6 milliand $0.5 million, respectively, of
penalties and interest which resulted in a cumegadiccrued balance of penalties and interest & B#lion, $2.1 million and $0.5 million at
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company's unrecognized tax benefitsisbprimarily of tax positions related to interqoamy transfer pricing in multiple
international jurisdictions. The gross increasetéorpositions in current and prior periods in 2@9%5.8 million primarily includes specific
transfer pricing exposures in various jurisdictiohke gross decrease for tax positions in prioiogerin 2009 of $4.9 million relates to a
restructuring of international operations resultimg remeasurement of related uncertain tax positpreviously recorded. The Company
believes that it is reasonably possible that noeiases or decreases to unrecognized tax beneffiscaiir in the next twelve months.

As of December 31, 2009, the following y@ars remain subject to examination for the majasglictions where the Company conducts
business:

United State: 2005 to 200
Canade 2005 to 200
Netherlands 2005 to 200
Singapore 2004 to 200
Japar 2005 to 200

State income tax returns are generallyesilip examination for a period of 3 to 5 yearsrdfiting of the respective return. The state
impact of any federal changes remains subject aonéxation by various state jurisdictions for a pdrup to 2 years after formal notification to
the states.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic income (loss) per common share ("ERSComputed by dividing the net income availableommon stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding fquetied. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilatibhat could occur if certain outstanding
stock options
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

are exercised, restrictions lapse on restricteckstvards and preferred stock is converted. Adtitidie securities are excluded from diluted
EPS.

The following is a reconciliation of thember of shares used in the basic and diluted ERfetations for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007:

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except share and per share dat

Net income (loss) attributable to commot

stockholders for basic computation $ (42,079 $ (185,079 $ 168,22
Reconciliation of net income (loss) for dilutive
computation:
Net income (loss) attributable to comnr
stockholders $ (42,079 $ (185,07 $ 168,22
Preferred dividen: — — —
Net income (loss) for dilutive computatir $ (42,079 $ (185,079 $ 168,22
Basic income (loss) per common shar:
Weighted average common shares outstan 85,112,46 82,767,54 80,759,07
Basic income (loss) per common sh $ (0.49) $ (2.2 $ 2.0¢
Diluted income (loss) per common share
Weighted average common shares outstan 85,112,46 82,767,54 80,759,07
Dilutive effect of stock option — — 3,144,60
Dilutive effect of unvested stoc — — 291,19¢
Weighted average diluted common shares
outstanding 85,112,46 82,767,54 84,194,88
Diluted income (loss) per common sh $ (049 $ 229 $ 2.0C

Due to the Company's net loss for the yeaded December 31, 2009 and 2008, the dilutivecetf stock options and awards were not
included in the computation of EPS, as their indnsvould have been anti-dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2606822006 there were options outstanding whichccpatentially dilute basic EPS in the
future, but which were not included in diluted E®Stheir effect was anti-dilutive. The weightaeerage exercise price per share for the op
was $5.94, $4.42, and $48.35 for 2009, 2008, afd 2@spectively. The following table summarizes dnti-dilutive securities:

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

Anti-dilutive effect:
Stock options 4,020,57. 10,103,37 906,70(
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The Company leases space for certain affiises, warehouses, vehicles and equipment uedses expiring at various dates through
2026. Certain leases contain rent escalation ctassep rents) that require additional rental an®imthe later years of the term. Rent expense
for leases with step rents or rent holidays is gacxed on a straight-line basis over the minimuasésterm. Deferred rent is included in the
consolidated balance sheet in accrued expensed.réat expense was $59.6 million, $52.7 milliond &26.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectivetjudied in such amounts are contingent rents of 8ifllion, $4.2 million and $1.8 million
in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Minimum future annual rental commitmentslennon-cancelable operating leases for each diibsucceeding years as of
December 31, 2009, are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal years ending December 31,

2010 $ 44,74¢
2011 29,76(
2012 19,10:
2013 19,08¢
2014 14,55¢
Thereaftel 43,51«
Total Minimum Lease Payments( $ 170,77:

1) Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimulnhesse rentals of $0.6 million due in the future
under noncancelable subleases. They also do rlatdacontingent rentals which may be paid undetage
retail leases on a basis of percentage of salesdess of stipulated amour

At December 31, 2009, the Company had @aseltommitments with its third-party manufactufers52.1 million in inventory.

On July 26, 2005, the Company enteredamtamended and restated four-year supply agreesitbnfEinproject S.P.A., the former
majority owner of Crocs Canada, pursuant to whith@ompany has the exclusive right to purchasendtterial for the manufacture of finish
shoe products, except for certain current custataalings (including boot manufacturers). The supgglieement was extended through
June 30, 2010, and provides that the Company mieéthom purchase requirements to maintain exclusiitoughout the term of the
agreement. The pricing is to be agreed upon eaafterand fluctuates based on order volume, cuyrBactuations, and raw material prices.

The Company indemnifies certain of its vensdand its directors and executive officers farcsfied claims. As of December 31, 2009, the
Company has not paid or been required to defendralgmnification claims, and accordingly, has natraed any amounts for its
indemnification obligations.

The Company guarantees the payment diiits-party manufacturer in China for purchases afamal for the manufacture of finished
shoe products. The maximum potential amount ofrbupayments the Company could be required to mallenthe guarantee is €2.1 million
(approximately $3.0 million) as of December 31, 200he Company evaluates the estimated loss faguheantee under ASC Topic 450
"Contingencies'; and as interpreted by ASC Topic 4&kuarantees”. The
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Company considers such factors as the degree bébilidy of an unfavorable outcome and the abiiitynake a reasonable estimate of the
amount of loss. The Company has recourse as amoattemmon law. As of December 31, 2009, the Camggeas not made any payments
under the guarantee and as of December 31, 208%dtaecorded a liability related to the guaraimeies financial statements as the Company
does not believe the potential obligation undes thiarantee is material.

16. RELATED PARTIES
The Company entered into the following tedaparty transactions:

In connection with a separation agreembetCompany and its former Chief Executive Offieatered into an exclusive distribution
agreement that commenced July 1, 2005. The disivilbagreement is for specified territories in CahAmerica and has an initial term of two
years. The agreement provides for renewal peribtleedformer Chief Executive Officer's option, ffexified sales volumes are attained. Pri
under this agreement is set at a discount off th@iany's then current wholesale pricing. Additibnadffective July 1, 2005, the Company
and the former Chief Executive Officer entered iatoagreement providing him the right to licensé/anfranchise airport kiosks selling the
Company's products for a period of 10 years, stitjethe Company's right to terminate the agreeriepecified numbers of kiosks are not
opened in timeframes specified.

17. OPERATING SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company operates in the consumer ptsduogdustry internationally in which the Companysigges, manufactures, markets and
distributes footwear, apparel and accessoriesng@009 the Company changed the information thatprasented to the chief operating
decision maker and has restated its revenues, dafiog@ and amortization, operating income and lbwed assets below. The Company
identifies its reportable segments as those gebgrapgions that represent 10% or more of its reeepnperating income (as defined below), or
total assets. The Company has three reportableesggnAmericas, Europe and Asia. All of the repaoigasegments derive their revenue from
the sale of footwear, apparel and accessoriesCbhepany evaluates performance and makes decidiang allocating resources to its
operating segments based on financial measuresasugvenue and operating income.

Operating income is the primary measure lsethe Company's chief operating decision makewviluate segment operating
performance and to decide how to allocate resouccesgments. Operating income is defined as dpgraicome before asset impairment
charges and restructuring charges. The Companyateal the performance of its segments based plynaarithe results of the segment with
allocating corporate expenses, or indirect genadahinistrative and other expenses. The corporatether category includes (i) Ocean
Minded, (ii) Colorado Footwear CV, and (iii) corpde category, which maintains corporate costs agdtock-based compensation, research
and development, brand marketing, legal expensgsediation on global long-lived assets such agimaboling, IT systems, and other global
costs that are not allocated to the regions.

Segment profits or losses include adjustmtmeliminate intercompany profit or losses aeiicompany sales. Segment assets include the
elimination of any intersegment profits or lossefiventory, however, include the elimination afercompany receivables. Segment assets,
primarily the Americas, include certain long-livadsets that are depreciated in the corporate agtdge to their global functionality. Negative
assets within Corporate and other primarily incletiminations of
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investments made from the Americas segment in tifver @eportable segments. Net revenues as showw bepresent sales to external
customers for each segment.

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Revenues

Americas $ 298,000 $ 361,66' $ 498,50:
Europe 106,90( 150,71° 179,70:
Asia 237,50: 204,94! 167,48(
Total segment 642,40¢ 717,32! 845,68!
Corporate and othe 3,361 4,26¢ 1,66¢

Total consolidate!
revenues $ 645,767 $ 721,58¢ $ 847,35(

Operating Income
Americas $ 2122t $ (43,52%) $ 166,17¢
Europe 11,02¢ 99C 77,13:
Asia 57,83¢ 16,63 75,22
Total segment 90,09( (25,90)  318,53:
SG&A Restructuring (7,623) (7,669 —
Asset Impairmen (26,08 (45,789 —
Corporate and othe (107,56¢)  (108,93) (80,76%)

Total consolidated
operating income (los (51,184  (188,28) 237,76

Interest Expens 1,49¢ 1,792 43¢
Gain on charitable

contributions (3,169) — —
Other expense (income;

net (895) (565) (2,997)
Income (loss) befor

income taxe! (48,62)  (189,51() 240,32t
Depreciation an

Amortization:

Americas $ 10,45¢ $ 10,46F $ 8,15¢

Europe 3,43 3,80z 1,363

Asia 6,65¢ 5,63¢ 1,13¢

Total segment 20,552 19,90¢ 10,65
Corporate and othe 16,11¢ 17,54t 10,29:

Total consolidated
depreciation and

amortization $ 36,67 $ 37,45 $ 20,94¢
Assets:
Americas $ 277,45 $ 284,38(
Europe 66,83¢ 60,70¢
Asia 151,05: 127,82.
Total segment 495,34« 472,91
Corporate and othe (85,60¢€) (16,912

Total consolidated asse $ 409,73¢ $ 455,99¢
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The Company's sales by product line arfelasvs (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Footweal $ 611,13¢ $ 660,73 $ 763,30:
Other 34,62¢ 60,85t 84,04

$ 645,76¢ $ 721,58¢ $ 847,35

December 31

Long-lived assets 2009 2008
United State: $ 33,34: $ 64,34(
Canade 2,101 1,857
Mexico 7,28( 2,30z
North America Tota 42,72 68,49¢
Asia-Pacific 19,59¢ 12,72(
Europe 8,18¢ 14,02«
Other 57¢ 64¢

$ 71,08 $ 95,89:

Total for countries outside the Unit
States $ 37,74. $ 31,55:

There were no customers who representeddrQ¥ore of consolidated revenues during the yeaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007.

18. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 31, 2006, the Company filed a claimp with the ITC against Acme Ex-Im, Inc., AusteaUnlimited, Inc., Cheng's
Enterprises, Inc., Collective Licensing Internaigi.LC, D. Myers & Sons, Inc., Double Diamond Dilstition, Ltd., Effervescent, Inc., Gex-
Sports, Inc., Holey Soles Holdings, Ltd., Inter-flacTrading Corporation, and Shaka Holdings, Iradleging patent and trade dress
infringement and seeking an exclusion order bantlfiegmportation and sale of infringing products August 10, 2006, the Company filed a
motion to voluntarily remove its trade dress cldiom the investigation to focus on the patent clkiffhe Company's motion was granted by
Order No. 20 on August 24, 2006. The utility andige patents asserted in the complaint were isgsugtge Company on February 7, 2006 and
March 28, 2006 respectively, by the United Statete® and Trademark Office. The ITC has issued fiegerminations terminating Shaka
Holdings, Inc., Inter-Pacific Trading Corporatigkgme Ex-Im, Inc., D. Myers & Sons, Inc., Australimlimited, Inc. and Gen-X Sports, Inc.
from the ITC investigation No. 337-TA-567 on thesisaof settlement and Cheng's Enterprises, Inthesuspension of accused activities. The
ITC Administrative Law Judge ("ALJ") issued an laitDetermination of non-infringement related tceasf the patents at issue. The Company
filed a petition with the Commission to review tlistermination. The Commission granted the Compgapgtition and on February 15, 2007,
after briefing by the parties, the Commission vaddhe ALJ's determination of namfringement with respect to the remaining respansi@anc
remanded it to the ALJ for further proceedings ¢stest with the Commission's order. In light of the
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18. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

Commission's Order, the procedural schedule andrigedate were reset pursuant to Order No. 38iahwas held before the ALJ from
September 7 to 14, 2007. The ALJ issued an Iritetermination on April 11, 2008 with a finding of miolation, finding infringement of the
utility patent by certain accused products, bub éilsding that the utility patent was invalid asvadus. The ALJ also found that the design
patent was valid, but not infringed by the accusextiucts. The Company filed a Petition for Revigthe Initial Determination which was d
on April 24, 2008. On June 18, 2008, the Commisg@sned a Notice that it would review the ALJ'glfirgs in the Initial Determination with
respect to the determination of non-infringementhef design patent and the determination of initgliaf the utility patent. On July 25, 2008,
the Commission issued a Notice of its decisioretmtnate the Investigation with a finding of nolaition as to either patent. Crocs filed a
Petition for Review of the decision with the UnitSthtes Court of Appeals for the Federal CircuiSaptember 22, 2008, and filed its initial
brief on January 21, 2009. Briefing before the Fabd€ircuit was completed in April 2009 and oragaments were heard on July 10, 2009. On
October 4, 2009, the Company and Collective Liaagsinternational, LLC reached a settlement. CtilledLicensing, International, LLC
agreed to cease and desist infringing on the Coy'paatents and to pay the Company certain monedtamnages, which was recorded upon
receipt. On February 24, 2010, the Federal Cifowihd the Commission erred in finding that theitytibatent was obvious and reversed the
Commission's determination of non-infringementtef tesign patent. The case has been remandeddieek@ommission for a determination
of infringement of the utility patent and any apmiate remedies.

On April 3, 2006, the Company filed a coaipt in the U.S. District Court for the District Gbolorado alleging patent and trade dress
infringement and seeking injunctive relief agaiAsme EX-IM, Inc., Australia Unlimited, Inc., ChesdEnterprises, Inc., Collective Licensing
International, LLC, D. Myers & Sons, Inc., Doublébhond Distribution, Ltd., Effervescent, Inc., G¥rSports, Inc., Holey Soles
Holdings, Ltd, Inter-Pacific Trading Corporatiorh&ka Holdings, Inc., and Does 1-10 based uponinartdity and design patents that were
issued to the Company on February 7, 2006 and M28¢cR006 respectively, by the United States PatedtTrademark Office. Consent
judgments have been entered against Shaka Holdimgs)nterpacific Trading Corporation and Acme-Im, Inc. The Company entered into a
settlement with Australia Unlimited, and filed gsiation for dismissal of all claims and countaiots on January 25, 2007. The Company has
entered into a settlement agreement with D. Myefo&s and obtained a consent judgment in connettt@ewith on May 23, 2007. This
action has been stayed pending resolution in tReRToceeding, Investigation No. 337-TA-567, whislturrently on appeal to the U.S. Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. On June 11,2Q@08e Company filed a Notice of Voluntary DismissiGen-X Sports, Inc. on the basis of
settlement and on November 4, 2009, the Compagg &lNotice of Voluntary Dismissal with prejudideGollective Licensing
International, LLC on the basis of settlement.

The Company and certain current and forofezers and directors have been named as defesdanomplaints filed by investors in the
United States District Court for the District of lBado. The first complaint was filed in Novemb@&02Z; several other complaints were filed
shortly thereafter. These actions were consolidatet] in September 2008, the Court appointed ag&saxtiff and counsel. An amended
consolidated complaint was filed in December 200& amended complaint purports to state claimsmu8detion 10(b), 20(a), and 20A of the
Exchange Act on behalf of a class of all persone pirchased the Company's stock between April @7 20d April 14, 2008 (the "Class
Period"). The amended complaint alleges that, duttie Class Period, defendants made
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18. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

false and misleading public statements about thragamy and its business and prospects and thatessilg the market price of the Compar
stock was artificially inflated. The amended conialso claims that certain current and formerceffs and directors traded in the Company's
stock on the basis of material non-public informatiThe amended complaint seeks compensatory damadeehalf of the alleged class in an
unspecified amount, interest, and an award of s’ fees and costs of litigation. The Companiebes the claims lack merit and intends to
defend the action vigorously. Motions to dismiss eurrently pending with the Court. Due to the meimé uncertainties of litigation and becal
the litigation is at a preliminary stage, the Compaannot at this time accurately predict the udtienoutcome of the matter.

On May 11, 2009, Crocs Europe B.V. receigéetter from Dr. Ing. H.c.F. Porsche AG ("Porsglataiming that the Company's use of the
"Cayman" shoe model designator infringes upon tBeinmunity Trademark Registration of the mark "CAXNM" in class 25. Porsche is
requesting that Crocs Europe B.V. immediately ceasbdesist use of the Cayman mark and pay Possatterney's fees in conjunction with
the issuance of the notice letter. On July 30, 206@Company was served with notice of an injumctigainst Crocs Europe BV's use of the
Cayman mark in Germany. On December 16, 2009 tle®eint was entered into where Crocs Europe B.¥ dggeed to pay Porsche certain
damages and cease using the mark CAYMAN as ad@dignator. This matter is considered closed.

On December 8, 2009, Columbia Sportsweangzmy ("Columbia®) filed an Amended Complaint adpihe Company as a defendant
case between Columbia and Brian P. O'Boyle andhlIRe. in the Multnomah County Circuit Court iretBtate of Oregon. Columbia has
asserted claims against the Company for misapaiogmi of trade secrets, aiding and abetting breddiduciary duty, intentional interference
with contract, injunctive relief, disgorgement aandlaccounting. The Amended Complaint also seekadasin an unspecified amount, return
of patent rights, reasonable attorney's fees asts @nd expenses against the Company. On Janua2@ 2% the Company filed an Answer to
the Amended Complaint. The Company denies Colusblaims in the Amended Complaint and intends fertthis action vigorously. Due
to the inherent uncertainties of litigation andédngse the litigation is at a preliminary stage,@oenpany cannot at this time accurately predict
the ultimate outcome of the matter.

Although the Company is subject to othégdition from time to time in the ordinary courdebaisiness, including employment, intellect
property and product liability claims, the Compasyot party to any other pending legal proceedthgsthe Company believes will have a
material adverse impact on its business.
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Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30(a) September 30 December 31(a)

Year Ended December 31, 200
Revenue! $ 134,89: $ 197,72: $ 177,14. $ 136,01.
Cost of Sales—Restructuring

Charges — 5,26¢ 513 1,307
Gross profil 49,73: 101,11: 89,85( 60,26¢
Restructuring charge 38 5,91t 17 1,65:
Asset impairment chargt 69 23,65¢ 1,72z 63¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (22,567 (24,519 8,97( (13,079
Net income (loss (22,41 (30,28)) 22,06¢ (11,449
Basic income (loss) per comm

share $ 0.27) $ (0.36) $ 0.2¢ $ (0.19)
Diluted income (loss) per commu

share $ 0.27) $ (0.3¢) $ 0.28 % (0.19
Year Ended December 31, 200€
Revenue: $ 198,54( $ 222,77C $ 174,18" $ 126,09:
Cost of Sale—Restructuring

Charges — 901 — —
Gross profit(b] 85,23¢ 90,28¢ 2,39¢ 56,04«
Restructuring charge 3,84¢ 1,371 2,45( 89t
Goodwill impairment charge 1,03¢ — 22,83 —
Asset impairment chargt 9,77 2,90z 8,75: 484
Loss from operation (6,409 (2,947) (136,026 (42,910
Net income (loss (4,527 2,132 (147,980 (34,70)
Basic income (loss) per comm

share $ (0.05) $ 0.0 $ 1.79 $ (0.42)
Diluted income (loss) per commu

share $ (0.0%) $ 0.0 $ 1.79 $ (0.42)

(a) Asdisclosed in Note 2, the Company identified amnreduring the fourth quarter of 2009 in the c#dtion of stock-based
compensation. This error resulted in the undenstate of stock-based compensation expense, withrasponding
understatement of additional paid in capital, ia #pproximate amounts of $4.5 million as of Decen3ie 2008.
Additional amounts of stock-based compensatiorppfeximately $1.0 million and $0.5 million shouldve been
recognized in the I and 39 quarters, respectively. In connection with the darOffer during the 29 quarter, the
Company inadvertently corrected approximately $2ililon of the then existing cumulative error offapximately
$6.0 million. The Company recorded an additionaB$8illion in stock-based compensation during therth quarter of
2009 to correct the balance of this error.

(b) For the three months ended September 30, 200&dhmany had significant inventory write-down chargesset
abandonment, and wr-down of goodwill which effects the comparabilitythveen periods

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-083€ Topic 855Subsequent Eventsequires the Company to disclose the date through
which subsequent events have been evaluated. Tinp&ty has evaluated subsequent events througlateehe financial statements were
issued, and has determined there are no othercudrseevents to be reported, other than as foll@wsFebruary 25, 2010, the Company
announced that John McCarvel was appointed as Ehifutive Officer and Director of the Company effee March 1, 2010. Mr. McCarvel
succeeds John H. Duerden, who left his positioRrasident, Chief Executive Officer and Directotlud Company.
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EXHIBIT 10.51

CONFIDENTIAL SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

This Confidential Separation Agreement @mheral Release ("Agreement”) is entered into batvierik Rebich (hereinafter "Employee™)
and Crocsjnc. (hereinafter the "Company"), hereinafter odtileely referred to as the "Parties." As used is tkgreement, the "Company" st
include Crocs, Inc. and any of its affiliates, ddizgies, or divisions. Should Employee fail to exte this Agreement by December 31, 2009,
the offer extended hereunder shall be deemed reMek€ompany. Simultaneously herewith, Employee @athpany are executing a separate
Consultant Services and Confidentiality Agreemesgibning on January 1, 2010 (the "Consulting Agresett) (the reference to of which is a
mere recital and the parties agree that the egtérnin such Consulting Agreement is not consideratinder this Agreement and that the terms
of the Consulting Agreement are not incorporatednn way into each other by this mere recital).

Employee's employment with the Company teated effective as of December 31, 2009. By ttase&ment, Employee and the Comp
desire to resolve any claims or disputes Employag nave against the Company that exist at the tiiseAgreement is executed by the
Parties. Therefore, in consideration of all mupraimises contained herein and other good and viuaimsideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, iagreed by and between Employee and the Compamjiawss:

1. The Company will pay Employee thensaf $ 250,000.00 (which equates to one year's falsey), plus $125,000.00 (which
represents the Employee's anticipated target blmm009 if Employee was employed by the Companthatime of the determination of the
bonus award) for a total amount of $375,000.00\{&8znce Amount”), less any and all required andithorized deductions and withholdin
Company will pay the Settlement Amount within sey@ncalendar days following December 31, 200€;aimpany is in receipt of a notarized
copy of this Agreement executed by Employee, at ageh signed letter of resignation by which Employesigns as Secretary of any
Company's entities and Employee has returned &athpany property (except that Employee may keggtnirent Blackberry and laptop after
such computer has been mirror imaged by the Compéhypepartment and Employee will make such compavailable for reimaging as
requested by Company and will return the same aleomand of the Company). In addition, the Comparlyastelerate the vesting of the
33,334 unvested shares of Crocs, Inc. stock onrkeee31, 2009, subject to the RSA Agreement entetedetween Company and Emplo
on or about November 17, 2008 (the "08 RSA Gramfployee will be responsible for the payment of taxes on the 08 RSA Grant that are
due and payable to the Company prior to transf&mployee.

Employee shall also be entitled to partitgpin the Company's health insurance programpggable to officers in good standing who
retire from the Company so long as Company, isadlse discretion, continues to offer the same tomfaremployees. Employee acknowledges
that nothing herein requires Company to continusuich health insurance plan in the future. Compaitiygive Employee reasonable notice of
its decision to terminate such coverage in theréutu

2. The Company and Employee represathivarrant to each other that no amount is obligdak paid to or from the Company in
relation to the Employee's employment with the Camypthrough December 31, 2009, except pursuahigciigreement. Employee
acknowledges that Employee has received all wagether compensation owed to Employee for Emplayservices to the Company through
the effective date of Employee's separation, thaptyment referenced in paragraph 1, above addition to any wages or other compens:
owed to Employee and that Employee is not otheresgiled to the payment referenced in paragragfmiployee shall submit any requests
allowed expense reimbursements (with proper doctatien) by December 31, 2009 or such expense régjaball be deemed denied.

3. For and in consideration of this égment, Employee, for himself and his respectivs heuccessors and assigns, hereby releas
discharges the Company, its successors, assigarstsag




representatives, attorneys, principals, insur&sast and present directors, officers, sharemlled employees, and any and all other persons
firms or corporations who are or might be liableotigh Company, from any and all claims, actionssea of action, damages, demands, costs,
loss of service, expenses, wages, or compensdtimmydkind (hereinafter "Claims"), whether suchi@s are known or unknown, arising from
the beginning of time to the date of this Agreement

The Claims released by this Agreement ighe)ut are not limited to:
(a) any and all Claims arising out ofelating to the statements, actions or omissiorte@Company;

(b) any and all Claims for any allegedawful discrimination, harassment, retaliation eprisal, or other alleged unlawful
practices arising under any federal, state, or Istedute, ordinance or regulation or common lag|uding, without limitation, Claims
under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, ¢hCivil Rights Act of 1991, the Americans With Diglities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1981, the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the EdRal Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Faibba Standards Act, the
Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Coloradag®/Act, the Colorado Anti-Discrimination Act, tharfily and Medical Leave Act,
or any similar state laws or statutes;

(c) any and all Claims for alleged wrangir constructive discharge, breach of contraetabh of implied contract, failure to ke
any promise, breach of a covenant of good faithfamdlealing, breach of fiduciary duty, estopmifamation, infliction of emotional
distress, fraud, misrepresentation, negligencedsanent, retaliation or reprisal, invasion of peiyanterference with contractual or
business relationships, any other wrongful emplaynpeactices, and violation of any other principfecommon law;

(d) any and all Claims for compensatiéamy kind, including, without limitation, salarppnuses, commissions, wages, stock-
based compensation or stock options, vacationgay retirement or pension plan contributions;

(e) any and all Claims for back pay, frpay, reinstatement, other equitable relief, comspéory damages, damages for alleged
personal injury, liquidated damages and punitiveages;

(H any and all Claims for attorneysdecosts and interest; and
(g) any and all Claims relating to Emmels employment with the Company and/or Employssgigration from the Company.

However, nothing herein is intended to depEmployee of the benefits of the Indemnificatdgreement entered into between Employee
and Company on or about August 9, 2005 as appédabEmployee during the course of his employmatit the Company through
December 31, 2009. As such, said Indemnificatiore&ment is specifically excluded from any releasasaivers provided by Employee to
Company herein.

4. To the extent not otherwise requibgdaw, the Parties expressly agree that theyke#p the terms of this Agreeme&iERICTLY
CONFIDENTIAL . The Parties further agree that they will not camioate (orally or in writing), or in any way voltarily disclose or allow
or direct others to disclose the terms of this &gnent to any person, judicial or administrativeraxyeor body, business entity or associatiol
anyone else for any reason whatsoever, unlessregbiai do so to enforce the terms of this Agreepmmpursuant to lawful subpoena or to an
order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or #iseswise required by law (including any disclostequired under applicable SEC regulations);
except that Employee may disclose the terms ofAgigement to Employee's spouse, attorney andrtéirancial advisor, and the Company
may publicly disclose the terms of this Agreementexjuired by any SEC regulations or other applécktw, and/or may also disclose the
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Agreement to persons within the Company with a neddow, the Company's attorneys, and the Compday'or financial advisors. If a non-
public disclosure is made to any of the persorntediabove, Employee and the Company agree to indoich persons of the confidentiality
requirements of this Agreement and will not make disclosure to such persons without first obtajrtime agreement of those persons to keep
the information confidential. It is expressly agtabat the provisions of this paragraph are esslgmtbvisions of, and partial consideration for,
this Agreement between the Parties. However, ésdstbove, the parties hereto acknowledge thateams or copies of this Agreement that
are required to be publicly disclosed under anylieaiple SEC regulations shall not violate this ps@mn. As such, if any terms of this
Agreement are publicly disclosed, through an SHxgfior otherwise, such terms shall be considenetié public domain for the purpose of
this Agreement and further disclosure of such teshadl not be considered a breach of this Agreerbgrither party.

5. Employee recognizes that his dealinghe matter in which he has been involved aith the personnel of the Company are
confidential to the Company. "Confidential infornoat’ means information (1) disclosed to or knownkbyiployee as a consequence of or
through his employment with the Company; (2) natagally known outside the Company's business; @aphd/kich relates to the Company's
business. It is understood that such Confidemi@rination of the Company includes matters that Byge has learned from other employees
of the Company. For a period of five (5) years frihia execution date of this Agreement, Employeémat, except as the Company may
otherwise consent or direct in writing, reveal @ctbse, sell, use, lecture upon, or publish angfidential Information of the Company, or
authorize anyone else to do these things at arg/¢ither during or subsequent to his employmerit thié¢ Company, except as required by a
lawful subpoena or to an order of a court of corapejurisdiction, or upon written consent of then@many. In the event information is
requested pursuant to a lawful subpoena or order & court of competent jurisdiction, Employee agr® provide written notice to the
Company before responding to such subpoena or.oftler clause shall continue in full force and effeith respect to any specific
Confidential Information and shall cease only whteat specific portion of the Confidential Informati becomes publicly known through no
fault of Employee. For the purposes of this Agrestm€onfidential Information shall not include imfioation that: (i) is in the public domain
other than through the fault of the receiving pafity is already lawfully in the receiving party®ssession at the time of the disclosure by the
disclosing party; (iii) is disclosed to the receigiparty by a third party who is not, to the reaggvparty's knowledge, prohibited from
disclosing the information pursuant to any fidugjarontractual or other duty to any such person.

6. Employee affirms that he has retdrak of the Company's property, documents anddofidential information in his possession or
control or will do so by the close of business at@mber 31, 2009. Employee also affirms that, édo#st of his knowledge, he is in posses
of all of his property that he had at the Compapy&mises and that the Company is not in possessiany of his property.

7. Employee has not assigned any claimights released in this Agreement.

8. If contacted by a third party forederence or inquiry, the Company will follow itemeral policy of providing to prospective
employers only Employee's dates of employment ansitipns held.

9. By entering into this Agreement, @@mpany does not admit that it engaged in anywfoleor improper conduct, or that it is legally
obligated to Employee in any way.

10. The consideration stated herein rgregtual and not merely a recital. The Partiegtoeexecute and deliver this Agreement after
being fully informed of its terms, contents anceetk. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreensemniegotiated agreement that both Parties
have reviewed with their attorneys, that both Rartiave had a full opportunity to revise the lagguaf the Agreement, and that, in the evel
a dispute, the Agreement should not be construadynvay




either for or against a party based on whethertcpéar party was or was not the primary draftethias Agreement.

11. This Agreement shall be effectiveding on the Parties, and in full force and effewnediately following the execution of the
Agreement by both Parties.

12. This Agreement may be executed imtemparts and shall be fully enforceable in allarelg if executed in such manner as if it had
been executed as a single document. Signatureismethtay facsimile shall constitute effective exéonitof this Agreement.

13. Employee and the Company agree thtiteaterms of this Agreement are contained is tticument, that no statements or
inducements have been made contrary to or in additi the statements herein, that the terms haredbinding on and enforceable for the
benefit of Employee's successors and assignsthtba@greement shall be governed by Colorado law,that the provisions of this Agreement
are severable, so that if any paragraph of thiségrent is determined to be unenforceable, the ptraigraphs shall remain valid and fully
enforceable.

Accepted and agreed as of this day of 20009.

EMPLOYEE FREELY AND KNOWINGLY, AND AFTER DUE CONSID ERATION ENTERS INTO THIS SEPARATION
AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE INTENDING TO WAIVE, S ETTLE AND RELEASE ALL CLAIMS HE HAS OR
MIGHT HAVE AGAINST THE COMPANY.

ERIK REBICH
STATE OF COLORADC )
) ss.
COUNTY OF BOULDER )
The above and foregoing instrument was askedged before me by Erik Rebich, this day of , 2009.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

Notary Public
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CROCS, INC.

By:
Title:
Name:
STATE OF COLORADC )
) ss.
COUNTY OF BOULDER )
The above and foregoing instrument was askedged before me by , the
this day of , 200

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

Notary Public

5

afocCs, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 21
List of Subsidiaries
State/Country of
Name organization or incorporation

Western Brands Holding Company, |i Colorado
Crocs Online, Inc Colorado
Crocs Retail, Inc Colorado
Jibbitz, LLC Colorado
Fury, Inc. Colorado
Ocean Minded, Inc Colorado
Crocs Marine, Ltd Cayman
Crocs Puerto Rico, In Puerto Ricc
Crocs Mexico S.de.R.L. de C Mexico
Crocs Servicios S.de.R.L. de ( Mexico
4246519 Canada In Canade
Crocs Canada, Ini Canade
Colorado Footwear C.\ Netherlands
Crocs Europe B.V Netherland:
Crocs UK Limited United Kingdom
Exo ltalia, S.r.l. Italy
Crocs Nordic Oy Finland
Crocs Asia Pte. Ltc Singapore
Crocs Australia Pty. Lt Australia
Heirs and Grace Pty. Lt Australia
Crocs New Zealand Limite New Zealanc
Crocs Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong
Crocs Industrial (Hong Kong) Co. Lt Hong Kong
Crocs Industrial (Shenzhen) Co. L China
Crocs Brasil Comercio de Calcados Lt Brazil
Bite, Inc. Colorado
Crocs Foundation, Int Colorado
Crocs Stores O Finland
Crocs Stores B.V Netherlands
Crocs Germany Gmk Germany
Crocs Korea Pte Ltc Korea
Crocs India Private Limite India
Crocs Argentina S.r. Argentina
Panama Footwe: Panam:
Crocs India Retail Limite: India
Crocs Trading (Shanghai) Co. L China

Crocs South Africi
Crocs BH LLC
Crocs CIS

RA Footweal

South Africa
Bosnie-Herzegovine
Russia
United State:
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincRegistration Statement No. 333-159412 on Fefhand Registration Statement Nos. 333-
132312 and 333-144705 on Forms S-8 of our repattisdd=ebruary 25, 2010, relating to the consoldifiteincial statements of Crocs, Inc.
(the Company) and the effectiveness of Crocs dirttérnal control over financial reporting, appegrin this Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Crocs, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2009.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 25, 2010
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EXHIBIT 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION
I, John Duerden, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KCofcs, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) antblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theétaxmmmittee of the registrant's board of directorgor persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 25, 201 /s JOHN DUERDEN

John Duerden
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION
I, Russell C. Hammer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KCofcs, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) antblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theétaxmmmittee of the registrant's board of directorgor persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 25, 201 /sl RUSSELL C. HAMMEF

Russell C. Hammer

Chief Financial Officer, Senior Vice President—
Finance and Treasure

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer of Crocs, Inc. (the "Coamy"), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.<
81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarkaxkes-Act of 2002, that to the best of their knoslde:

1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company Far year ended December 31, 2008 ("Form 10-K") fodlgnplies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or section 15(dhef$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78nv)80(d), and

(2)  The information contained in the Form 10-K fairlgepents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company for the period covered by this Fornk10-

Date: February 25, 201 /s/ JOHN DUERDEN

John Duerden
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

/sl RUSSELL C. HAMMER

Russell C. Hammer

Chief Financial Officer, Senior Vice President—
Finance and Treasure

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

A signed original of this written statemeaguired by Section 906 has been provided to Ctacsand will be retained by Crocs, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiots staff upon request.
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